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It is pleasure to invitc you to uttnd the 2014 Annual Mecting of

Stockholders of The llershey Company to be held at 1000 ani Lastern

1aylight 1imc on Euesday April 29 2014

Business scheduled to he considered at the meeting includes the election

of eleven directors ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the

Companys independent auditors fhr 2014 and nombinding advisory
rote on approval of the Companys execulivc compensation say on pay
Management will resiew the Company 2013 perfhrmanc and will he

ar ailable to respond to questions durinq the meeting

The meeting nill he held at GIANT enter 550 \test Ilersheypark Drire
Hershey Penns lvania Directions to GIANT Center are included ith these

materials The doors to GIANT Center will open at 830 mm Many of ou

may recall that we agreed to look into different venue for this years
meeting We assessed all the local possibilities and determined that none of

them could accommodate our needs Therefhrc will return to GIANI
enter but will use floor seating to eliminatc the need to maneuver anr stairs

to access the seiting Please note the only entrance to the meeting will be at

the rear entrance of GIANT Center and transportation from the parking area

will be available There will be designated seating for those usin
wheelchairs or requiring special assistance

If you plan to attend the meeting you will need am AIMISSION TICKET
arid governmenkissued PhOTO iDENTIFICATION to gain admission

Any of the following items will serve as your ADMISSION TICKIl

Ike Notice of internet Availability of Proxy Materials ou

received by mail directing ou to the website where prox materials

could be accessed

The top half of your Proxy Card if you receired your proxy
materials in paper form

An Admission Ticket supplied by ow Investor Relations

Department upon your request if your pn xy materials eve

delivered by email or

To Our Stockholders



lett horn your broker bank or other holder of record or your most recent

account statement indicating that you were th beneficial owner of Hershet stock of

th or ite ii hares ai he in stir et name

II ri einb th it if itre name holder and want to vote your har es ot the

in yoc
viP in hi inp legal proxy from your broker bank or other holder of record

rio eeu ii lv mc vsur es will he in place at the nnuaI Meeting We highly recommend

yc
ot ai ty

itei ud In ndbagn md package to the meeting as il such itenis nil he

icpc ci vii ons rid sI up objec such as pocPetknires and scissors cell phones pager

liii re ci di dcv cc will it be permitted inside tI ned ng room

ote It tic cli ibute rottiiy ballots dat nip If meeting 11 you pPm to vote at he

meeti pick rip
Plot at it Votmg oth upon your arrival and place it in one of the ballot

hove Ic taLc ma ecu it Boot rca or ins de tho iIit him room or submit your ballot to

ush it II mit Ic gnatc dunn th meetino

\f ii rh Li visit IISRSIIFY CF/OCOLA lit WOk visitors ntcr on the dat of the

ii ii eeti tip P1 in he th it thu eir the visitoi center will be open from 00 to

00 tn On ii offering stockholders special 25/ disc ourit on selected items You

at tic ccl oa vii ADMIaSION TlC in any of the forms described above it

Ill SF Al WORLD receive the rpecial discount

SIU ptr presen itic of yo ii res at the meeting we encourage you to submit ui

ii Ian the it paT ii ldT ante by lntrret phone mail Please retbi to oui

ial ci for re nfbri ito non how tc vote your shares

laW ii eim it the meeting

Regards

Limes Nemels

ha man of the Board of Directors
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John Bllbrey
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Dear Stockholder

The hershey Company delivered anoth good year of financial and marketplace results in 2013

Confctionery is an advantaged category and Her shey continues to perfbrm strongly as category

leader Our results put us in solid position and show that our responses to changing market

cond tions are driving ove all categoiy gruwtli

Hersheys net sales increased 76 percent in 2013 versus year ago gir ing us another year of

record net sales at $7146079 000 This was our fourth consecutive year of at Ic ist percent sales

growth Our 2013 adjusted earnings per share diluted growth was 148 percent our fifth

consecutive ar of double digit perccntage EPS increases

Our 2013 performance demonstrates that our business model is irorking We recogmze however

that consumer needs and behavior continuously evolve This is why weve been building our

prop aetary insights lriven Perfhrmance platform and our capabilities as knowledge comp my
In 2014 we will use our consumer data and insights to understand consumer liopping patter ns

purchasing decisions arid consumption so we can go to market with the right products in the right

plac merchandised to meet the everyday needs of our consumcrs Our initial work in thi are

has already contributed to accelerated profitable organic sales growth and enabled hershey to

reclaim its candy mint and gum category leadership position in 2013 in the United States with

31 percent share of the mar ket

We believe the investments were making in our businesses around the rld position rir fbi

furti er growth Our focus on our key global brands is fueling company growth with Kersheys

Reeses Kisses Jolly Ranclur and ice Breakers combined sales in 2013 rip about per cent

compared to the prior year in the United States our core brands such as Reeses Kt Kat and

Rain as well as Brovkstdc all guint unset hre

Im gleased th the continued success of our international husinc ssc For the frill eai our

international net sales increased about 16 percent including the impact of foreign currency

exch mnge rates This puts us on track to achieve close to $1 billion in sales in these markets by thr

end of 2014 highlight our intcrnational progress last year was our announcement to acquire

the welhkriovvn Chinese confectioncry company Shanghai Golden Monkey The itrem gth of

Sham ghai Golden Monkeys complementary product portfolio manufacturing expertise and overall

distribution capabilities gives us the opportunity to niakc the iconic brands of both companies

even more powerful in our fastestgiow ing
market

In 2013 Hershey was the fastest growing chocolate company in hina reflecting consunu is

response to innovation such is hersheys Drops and hersheys Kisses ieluxe Chocolale and

effective advertising support of our brands As result China ii as our best performing

inter national market with fulkear rctail takeaway up about 45 pcrcerrt importantly in

November we crossed major milestone achieving 102 percent share of the China chocolate

nra rhet

Our momentum gives us confidence that the investments were made arid will continue to make

in consunier insights and route4ounaiket will benefit our business in the near md long term
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The Hershey Company

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

DATE AND TIME April 29 2014 at 1000 a.m Eastern Daylight Time

PLACE GIANT Center

550 West Hersheypark Drive

Hershey PA 17033

ITEMS OF BUSINESS Elect eleven directors

Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Companys
independent auditors for 2014

Approve on non-binding advisory basis resolution approving

executive compensation

Discuss and take action on any other business that is properly

brought before the meeting

WHO CAN VOTE You can vote at the meeting and at any adjournment or

postponement of the meeting if you were stockholder at the close of

business on February 28 2014 the record date for the annual

meeting

By order of the Board of Directors

Leslie Turner

Senior Vice President

General Counsel and Secretary

March 18 2014

Your vote is important Instructions on how to vote are contained in our proxy
statement and in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials Please cast your
vote by telephone or over the Internet as described in those materials Alternatively if

you requested copy of the proxy/voting instruction card by mail you may mark sign
date and return the proxy/voting instruction card in the envelope provided
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The Hershey Company

100 Crystal Drive

Hershey Pennsylvania 17033

March 18 2014

PROXY STATEMENT

For the Annual Meeting of Stockholders

To Be Held on April 29 2014

The Board of Directors of The Hershey Company Delaware corporation is furnishing this proxy

statement to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies for our 2014 annual meeting of

stockholders The meeting will be held on April 29 2014 at 1000 a.m Eastern Daylight Time or

EDT at GIANT Center 550 West Hersheypark Drive Hershey Pennsylvania 17033 Valid

proxies received in connection with the annual meeting may be voted at the annual meeting and

at any adjournments or postponements of that meeting

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the

2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on April 29 2014

Our notice of annual meeting and proxy statement annual report to stockholders

electronic proxy card and other annual meeting materials are available on the Internet

at www.proxyvote.com We intend to begin mailing our Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy

Materials to stockholders on or about March 18 2014 At that time we also will begin mailing

paper copies of our proxy materials to stockholders who requested them Please see page of this

proxy statement for more information on how these materials will be distributed



INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING ANI VOTING

Annual Meeting Information

What is proxy statement and why is it important

We hold meeting of stockholders annually This years meeting will be held on April 29 2014

There will be certain items of business that must be voted on by our stockholders at the meeting

and our Board of Directors is seeking your proxy to vote on these items This proxy statement

contains important information about The Hershey Company and the matters that will be voted

on at the meeting Please read these materials carefully so that you have the information you

need to make informed decisions Throughout this proxy statement we will refer to ourselves as

The Hershey Company Hershey we our or the Company

How are proxy solicitation and other required annual meeting materials

distributed

The Securities and Exchange Commission or SEC has adopted rules that allow us to mail

notice to our stockholders advising that our proxy statement annual report to stockholders

electronic proxy card and related materials are available for viewing free of charge on the

Internet Stockholders may then access these materials and vote over the Internet or request

delivery of full set of materials by mail or email We have elected to utilize this process for the

2014 annual meeting We intend to begin mailing the required notice called Notice of Internet

Availability of Proxy Materials or Notice to stockholders on or about March 18 2014 The proxy

materials will be posted on the Internet at www.proxyvote.com no later than the day we begin

mailing the Notice If you receive Notice you will not receive paper or email copy of the proxy

materials unless you request one in the manner set forth in the Notice

The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials contains important information including

The date time and location of the annual meeting

brief description of the matters to be voted on at the meeting

list of the proxy materials available for viewing on www.proxyvote.com and the control

number you will use to access the site and

Instructions on how to access and review the proxy materials online how to vote your

shares over the Internet and how to get paper or email copy of the proxy materials if

that is your preference

These rules give us the opportunity to serve you more efficiently by making the proxy materials

available quickly online and reducing costs associated with printing and postage

What is proxy

proxy is your legal designation of another person to vote the stock that you own The person you

designate to vote your shares is also called proxy We have provided an electronic proxy card at

www.proxyvote.com that you will use to vote your shares online or by telephone If you requested

paper copy of our proxy materials you also can vote using the proxy card enclosed with those

materials On our proxy card you will find the names of the persons designated by the Company

to act as proxies to vote your shares at the annual meeting When you submit valid proxy the

people named on the proxy card as proxies are required to vote your shares at the annual meeting

in the manner you have instructed Please turn to page for more information about voting your

shares



What is the record date and why is it important

The record date is the date used by our Board of Directors to determine which stockholders of the

Company are entitled to receive notice of and to vote on the items presented at the annual

meeting Our Board established February 28 2014 as the record date for the 2014 annual

meeting

What is the difference between registered stockholder and stockholder who
owns stock in street name

If you hold shares of Hershey stock directly in your name you are registered stockholder If you

own your Hershey shares indirectly through broker bank or other holder of record those shares

are held in street name

How do gain admission to the annual meeting

If you owned Hershey stock on the record date you may attend the annual meeting If you are

registered stockholder you must bring with you the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy

Materials and government-issued photo identification such as valid drivers license or

passport to gain admission to the meeting If you did not receive Notice because you elected to

receive paper copy of the proxy materials please bring the admission ticket printed on the top

half of the proxy card supplied with those materials together with your government-issued photo

identification to gain admission to the meeting If you receive your proxy materials by email

please call our Investor Relations Department at 800 539-0261 and request an admission ticket

for the meeting

If you hold your shares in street name and want to attend the meeting you must bring your

government-issued photo identification together with

The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials you received from your broker

bank or other holder of record or

letter from your broker bank or other holder of record indicating that you were the

beneficial owner of Hershey stock as of the record date for the meeting or

Your most recent account statement indicating that you were the beneficial owner of

Hershey stock as of the record date for the meeting

What will occur at the annual meeting

Following opening remarks stockholders will be offered an opportunity to submit completed

voting ballots on the proposals to be presented at this years meeting Following the vote we will

provide an update on our business followed by an opportunity for stockholders to ask questions

Finally we will provide preliminary report on the votes cast for each of the proposals presented

at the meeting



What proposals will be voting on and how does the Board of Directors

recommend vote

Board

Proposal Recommendation

No Election of eleven directors each to serve until the next annual FOR

meeting of stockholders and until his or her successor has been all nominees

properly elected and qualified

No Ratification of the Audit Committees selection of KPMG LLP as our FOR

independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31 2014

No Approval on non-binding advisory basis of resolution approving FOR

the Companys executive compensation

What other matters might arise at the meeting

We are not aware of any other matters that will be brought before the stockholders at the annual

meeting Except under very limited circumstances stockholder proposals and nominations for

director had to be submitted to us in advance and meet certain requirements in order to be

eligible for consideration at the meeting We described those requirements in our 2013 proxy

statement If any other item of business is properly presented for vote at the annual meeting

the proxies will vote validly executed proxies returned to us in accordance with their best

judgment Procedures for submitting stockholder proposals and nominations for director for the

2015 annual meeting are described beginning on page 92

Voting Information

Does Hershey have more than one class of stock outstanding

We have two classes of stock outstanding Common Stock and Class Common Stock As of the

record date for the annual meeting there were 162776016 shares of Common Stock outstanding

and 60619777 shares of Class Common Stock outstanding All shares of Common Stock and

Class Common Stock outstanding as of the record date are entitled to be voted at the meeting

What are the voting rights of each class of stock

You may cast one vote for each share of Common Stock that you held as of the close of business on

the record date You may cast ten votes for each share of Class Common Stock that you held as

of the close of business on the record date

What is quorum and why is it important

quorum is the minimum number of votes entitled to be cast that must be present either in

person or by proxy at the annual meeting in order for business to be conducted at the annual

meeting Votes will be deemed to be present at the meeting if stockholder of record

Attends the meeting in person or

Properly submits proxy in advance of the meeting by Internet telephone or proxy card

On most matters the votes of the holders of the Common Stock and Class Common Stock are

counted together However there are some matters that must be voted on only by the holders of



one class of stock We will have quorum for all matters to be voted on at the annual meeting if

the following number of votes is present in person or by proxy

For any matter requiring the vote of the Common Stock voting separately majority of the

votes of the Common Stock outstanding on the record date

For any matter requiring the vote of the Class Common Stock voting separately

majority of the votes of the Class Common Stock outstanding on the record date

For any matter requiring the vote of the Common Stock and Class Common Stock voting

together without regard to class majority of the votes of the Common Stock and Class

Common Stock outstanding on the record date

It is possible that we could have quorum for certain items of business to be voted on at the

annual meeting and not have quorum for other matters If that occurs we will proceed with

vote only on the matters for which quorum is present

Abstentions are counted as being present and entitled to vote in determining whether quorum is

present Shares as to which broker non-votes exist will be counted as present and entitled to

vote in determining whether quorum is present for any matter requiring the vote of the

Common Stock and Class Common Stock voting together as class but they will not be counted

as present and entitled to vote in determining whether quorum is present for any matter

requiring the vote of the Common Stock or Class Common Stock voting separately as class

broker non-vote occurs when nominee such as broker bank or other holder of record

holding shares for street name owner cannot vote on particular proposal because the nominee

does not have discretionary voting power for that particular matter and has not received

instructions on how to vote from the street name owner

What vote is required to approve each proposal

Proposal No Election of Directors Eleven directors are to be elected at our annual meeting As

required by our certificate of incorporation and by-laws

One-sixth of the total number of our directors which equates presently to two directors

will be elected by the holders of our Common Stock voting separately as class

The remaining nine directors will be elected by the holders of our Common Stock and

Class Common Stock voting together without regard to class

You can cast your vote FOR any or all of the director nominees named on the proxy card or

WITHHOLD your vote on any or all of the nominees Please refer to the voter website

www.proxyvote.com for voting instructions If you requested paper copy of the proxy materials

voting instructions are contained on the proxy card enclosed with those materials

Directors will be elected by plurality That means the nominees who receive the greatest number

of properly cast FOR votes will be elected

Robert Malcolm and Anthony Palmer have been nominated by the Board for election by the

holders of our Common Stock voting separately at the 2014 annual meeting The other director

nominees have been nominated for election by the holders of our Common Stock and Class

Common Stock voting together Please go to page 28 for more information about Proposal No

Proposal Nos and Each of Proposal Nos and will be approved if the holders of record of

our Common Stock and Class Common Stock representing majority of the votes present in

person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the annual meeting vote in favor of each proposal We
have provided additional information about these proposals in this proxy statement



How can vote my shares before the meeting

If you are registered stockholder there are three ways to vote your shares before the meeting

By Internet www.proxyvote.com Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions

until 1159 p.m EDT on April 28 2014 Have your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy

Materials or proxy card with you when you access the website and follow the instructions

to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form

By telephone 800-690-6903 Submit your vote by telephone until 1159 p.m EDT on

April 28 2014 Have your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy card

in hand when you call and then follow the instructions you receive from the telephone

voting site

By mail If you requested paper copy of the proxy materials mark sign and date the

proxy card enclosed with those materials and return it in the postage-paid envelope we

have provided To be valid proxy cards must be received before the start of the annual

meeting Proxy cards should be returned to The Hershey Company do Broadridge

51 Mercedes Way Edgewood New York 11717

If your shares are held in street name your broker bank or other holder of record may provide you

with Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials Follow the instructions on the Notice to

access our proxy materials and vote online or to request paper or email copy of our proxy

materials If you received these materials in paper form the materials included voting

instruction card so you can instruct your broker bank or other holder of record how to vote your

shares

Further instructions on how to vote your shares are provided on the Notice of Internet Availability

of Proxy Materials the voter website www.proxyvote.com and elsewhere in this proxy statement

If you requested paper copy of the proxy materials voting instructions also are contained on the

proxy card enclosed with those materials

Can vote at the meeting

If you are registered stockholder you can vote at the meeting any shares that were registered in

your name as the stockholder of record as of the record date

If your shares are held in street name you are not holder of record of those shares and cannot

vote them at the annual meeting unless you have legal proxy from the holder of record If you

plan to attend and vote your street-name shares at the annual meeting you should request legal

proxy from your broker bank or other holder of record and bring it with you to the meeting

If you plan to vote at the meeting please pick up ballot at the designated voting booth upon your

arrival You may then either deposit your ballot in any of the designated ballot boxes located

inside the meeting room before the meeting begins or submit your ballot to meeting usher at the

time designated during the meeting Ballots will not be distributed during the meeting Shares

may not be voted after the po11s close

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting we strongly encourage you to vote by proxy prior

to the meeting



Can revoke my proxy or change my voting instructions once submitted

If you are registered stockholder you can revoke your proxy and change your vote prior to the

annual meeting by

Sending written notice of revocation to our Corporate Secretary at 100 Crystal Drive

Hershey Pennsylvania 17033 the notification must be received by the close of business

on April 28 2014

Voting again by Internet or telephone prior to 1159 p.m EDT on April 28 2014 only the

latest vote you submit will be counted or

Submitting new properly signed and dated paper proxy card with later date your

proxy card must be received before the start of the annual meeting

If your shares are held in street name you should contact your broker bank or other holder of

record about revoking your voting instructions and changing your vote prior to the meeting

If you are eligible to vote at the annual meeting you also can revoke your proxy or voting

instructions and change your vote at the annual meeting by submitting written ballot before the

polls close

What will happen if submit my proxy but do not vote on proposal

If you submit valid proxy but fail to provide instructions on how you want your shares to be

voted properly submitted proxies will be voted

FOR the election of all director nominees

FOR the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent auditors

and

FOR the approval of the Companys executive compensation

If any other item is properly presented for vote at the meeting the shares represented by your

properly submitted proxy will be voted at the discretion of the proxies

What will happen if neither submit myproxy nor vote my shares in person at the

annual meeting

If you are registered stockholder your shares will not be voted

If your shares are held in street name your broker bank or other holder of record may vote your

shares on certain routine matters The ratification of independent auditors is currently

considered to be routine matter On this matter your broker bank or other holder of record can

Vote your street-name shares even though you have not provided voting instructions or

Choose not to vote your shares

The other matters you are being asked to vote on are not routine and cannot be voted by your

broker bank or other holder of record without your instructions When broker bank or other

holder of record is unable to vote shares for this reason it is called broker non-vote



Are abstentions and broker non-votes counted in the vote totals

If you mark or vote abstain on either Proposal No or the abstention will have the effect of

being counted as vote AGAINST the proposal Broker non-votes with respect to Proposal

Nos and are not included in vote totals and will not affect the outcome of the vote on those

proposals

How do vote if am participant in one of the Companys 401k Plans

If you are participant in either The Hershey Company 401k Plan or The Hershey Company

Puerto Rico 40 1k Plan you may have certain voting rights regarding shares of our Common
Stock credited to your account in the plan You do not own these shares They are owned by the

plan trustee

The plan provides you with voting rights based on the number of shares of Hershey Common
Stock that were constructively invested in your plan account as of the close of business on the

record date We originally contributed these shares to the plan on your behalf as matching or

supplemental retirement contributions You may vote these shares in much the same way as

registered stockholders vote their shares but you have an earlier deadline Your vote must be

received by the plan trustee by 1159 p.m EDT on April 24 2014 You may vote these shares by

following the instructions provided on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials and

on the voter website www.proxyvote.com If you requested paper copy of the proxy materials

you also may vote by mail by signing dating and returning the proxy/voting instruction card

included with those materials

By submitting voting instructions you will direct the plan trustee

How to vote the shares of Common Stock allocated to your account in the plan and

How to vote portion of the shares of Common Stock allocated to the accounts of other

participants in the plan who have not submitted voting instructions by the deadline

The plan trustee will submit one proxy to vote all shares of Common Stock in the plan The

trustee will vote the shares of participants submitting voting instructions in accordance with their

instructions and will vote the remaining shares of Common Stock in the plan in the same

proportion as the final votes of all participants who actually voted Please note that if you do not

submit voting instructions for the shares of Common Stock in your account by the voting deadline

those shares will be included with the other undirected shares and voted by the trustee as

described above Because the trustee submits one proxy to vote all shares of Common Stock in the

plan you may not vote plan shares in person at the annual meeting

How do vote my shares in the Companys Automatic Dividend Reinvestment

Service Plan

Computershare our transfer agent has arranged for any shares that you hold in the Automatic

Dividend Reinvestment Service Plan to be included in the total registered shares of Common

Stock shown on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy card we have

provided you By voting these shares you also will be voting your shares in the Automatic

Dividend Reinvestment Service Plan



Additional Information about the Annual Meeting

Who will pay the cost of soliciting votes for the annual meeting

We will pay the cost of preparing assembling and furnishing proxy solicitation and other required

annual meeting materials We do not use third-party solicitor It is possible that our directors

officers and employees might solicit proxies by mail telephone telefax electronically over the

Internet or by personal contact without receiving additional compensation We will reimburse

brokers banks and other nominees fiduciaries and custodians who nominally hold shares of our

stock as of the record date for the reasonable costs they incur furnishing proxy solicitation and

other required annual meeting materials to street-name holders who beneficially own those

shares on the record date

What is householding

The SEC has adopted rules that allow us to send in single envelope our Notice of Internet

Availability of Proxy Materials or single copy of our proxy solicitation and other required annual

meeting materials to two or more stockholders sharing the same address We may do this only if

the stockholders at that address share the same last name or if we reasonably believe that the

stockholders are members of the same family If we are sending Notice the envelope must

contain separate Notice for each stockholder at the shared address Each Notice must contain

unique control number that each stockholder will use to gain access to our proxy materials and

vote online If we are mailing paper copy of our proxy materials the rules require us to send

each stockholder at the shared address separate proxy card

We believe this rule is beneficial both to our stockholders and to us Our printing and postage

costs are lowered anytime we eliminate duplicate mailings to the same household However
stockholders at shared address may revoke their consent to the householding program and

receive their Notice in separate envelope or if they have elected to receive full copy of our

proxy materials in the mail receive separate copy of these materials If you have elected to

receive paper copies of our proxy materials and want to receive separate copy of these materials

for our 2014 annual meeting please call our Investor Relations Department toll free at

800 539-0261 If you consented to the householding program and wish to revoke your consent for

future years simply call toll free 800 542-1061 or write to Broadridge Householding

Department 51 Mercedes Way Edgewood New York 11717

What does it mean if received more than one Notice or proxy card

You probably have multiple accounts with us and/or brokers banks or other holders of record You

should vote all of the shares represented by these Notices/proxy cards Certain brokers banks and

other holders of record have procedures in place to discontinue duplicate mailings upon

stockholders request You should contact your broker bank or other holder of record for more

information Additionally our transfer agent Computershare can assist you if you want to

consolidate multiple registered accounts existing in your name To contact our transfer agent

write to Computershare P.O Box 30170 College Station Texas 77842-3170 or for overnight

delivery to Computershare 211 Quality Circle Suite 210 College Station Texas 77845 or call

800 851-4216 Domestic Holders

201 680-6578 Foreign Holders

800 952-9245 Domestic TDD line for hearing impaired

312 588-4110 Foreign TDD line for hearing impaired



Will you publish the results of voting

Preliminary results of voting will be announced at the annual meeting We also will publish voting

results in current report on Form 8-K that we will file with the SEC within four business days

following the meeting If the Inspector of Elections for the annual meeting has not yet certified the

voting results as final on the day we file the Form 8-K we will note in the filing that the results

are preliminary and publish the final results in subsequent Form 8-K within four business days

after the final voting results are known The final results also will be posted in the Investors

section of the Companys website www.thehersheycompany.com as soon as they are certified by

the Inspector of Elections for the annual meeting Questions also may be directed to our Investor

Relations Department at 800 539-0261
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GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

What is corporate governance

Corporate governance is the process by which companies govern themselves

At The Hershey Company day-to-day business activities are carried out by our employees under

the direction and supervision of our Chief Executive Officer or CEO The Board of Directors

oversees these activities In doing so each director is required to use his or her business judgment

in the best interests of the Company The Boards responsibilities include

Review of the Companys performance strategies and major decisions

Oversight of the Companys compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the

integrity of its financial statements

Oversight of management including review of the CEOs performance and succession

planning for key management roles and

Oversight of compensation for the CEO key executives and the Board as well as

oversight of executive compensation policies and programs

What principles has the Board established with respect to corporate governance

The general principles governing the functions of our Board and its committees are contained in

the following documents

Corporate Governance Guidelines Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide the

basic framework for the Boards role in the governance of the Company The guidelines

include the Boards policies regarding director independence qualifications

responsibilities access to management and outside advisors compensation continuing

education oversight of management succession and stockholding requirements They also

provide process for directors to annually evaluate the performance of the Board

Board Committee Charters The Board has adopted charter for each standing committee

of the Board the Audit Committee the Compensation and Executive Organization

Committee the Finance and Risk Management Committee the Governance Committee

and the Executive Committee The charters comply with the requirements of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the rules of the SEC and the listing standards of the New

York Stock Exchange We believe the charters reflect current best practices in corporate

governance

Code of Ethical Business Conduct The Board has adopted Code of Ethical Business

Conduct Adherence to this Code assures that our directors officers and employees are

held to the highest standards of integrity The Code covers areas such as conflicts of

interest insider trading and compliance with laws and regulations The Audit Committee

oversees the Companys communication of and compliance with the Code

You can view the Corporate Governance Guidelines committee charters and Code of Ethical

Business Conduct in the Investors section of our website www.thehersheycompany.com We will

post amendments to any of these documents on our website as soon as possible after the effective

date of the amendment If any amendment or waiver of the Code of Ethical Business Conduct

applies to directors or executive officers our posting will appear within four business days of the

amendment or waiver
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What is the composition of the Board and how often are members elected

There currently are eleven members of the Board Each members term will expire at the annual

meeting As discussed in greater detail beginning on page 28 the Board is recommending that you
reelect each of these eleven members for an additional one-year term at the annual meeting

Which directors are independent and how does the Board make that

determination

The Board determines which of our directors are independent For director to be considered

independent under the listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange the Board must

affirmatively determine that the director has no direct or indirect material relationship with The

Hershey Company The Board has adopted categorical standards for independence that the Board

uses in determining which directors are independent The Board bases its determination of

independence for each director on the more stringent independence standards applicable to Audit

Committee members regardless of whether such director serves on the Audit Committee These

standards are contained in our Corporate Governance Guidelines which are available for viewing

in the Investors section of our website www.thehersheycompany.com

Applying the categorical standards for independence the listing standards of the New York Stock

Exchange and rules of the SEC the Board determined that the following directors recommended

for election at the annual meeting are independent Pamela Arway Robert Cavanaugh
Charles Davis Mary Kay Haben Robert Malcolm James Mead James Nevels

Anthony Palmer Thomas Ridge and David Shedlarz The Board determined that

John Bilbrey President and Chief Executive Officer of The Hershey Company is not

independent because he is an executive officer of the Company

Although there were no transactions relationships or arrangements of the type or category

described under the categorical standards that would disqualify any of the directors other than

Mr Bilbrey from being independent in making its independence determinations with respect to

Messrs Cavanaugh Mead and Nevels the Board considered each of their roles as independent

members of the board of directors of Hershey Trust Company and the board of managers

governing body of Milton Hershey School and certain transactions the Company had or may
have with these entities

Hershey Trust Company as trustee for the trust established by Milton and Catherine

Hershey that has as its sole beneficiary Milton Hershey School is our controlling stockholder

Throughout this proxy statement as the context permits we refer to Hershey Trust Company in

its capacity as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School as the Milton Hershey School

Trust Hershey Trust Company the Milton Hershey School Trust and companies owned by the

Milton Hershey School Trust are considered affiliates of the Company under SEC rules During

2013 we had number of transactions with the Milton Hershey School Trust and companies
owned by the Milton Hershey School Trust involving the purchase and sale of goods and services

in the ordinary course of business and the leasing of real estate at market rates We have outlined

these transactions in greater detail in the section entitled Certain Transactions and

Relationships beginning on page 89 of this proxy statement We have provided information about

Company stock owned by the Milton Hershey School Trust and by Hershey Trust Company as

investments beginning on page 39

Messrs Cavanaugh Mead and Nevels do not receive any compensation from The Hershey

Company from Hershey Trust Company or from Milton Hershey School other than compensation

they receive or will receive in the ordinary course as board members of each of those entities In
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addition Messrs Cavanaugh Mead and Nevels do not participate in Board decisions in

connection with the Companys transactions with the Milton Hershey School Trust and companies

owned by the Milton Hershey School Trust The Board therefore concluded that the relationships

Messrs Cavanaugh Mead and Nevels have with the Company other than as directors of the

Company are not material

Do our independent directors meet separately in regularly scheduled executive

sessions and if so who presides at those meetings

Our independent directors meet regularly in executive session at the conclusion of every Board

meeting and at other times as the independent directors deem necessary Each executive session

is chaired by James Nevels our Chairman of the Board In the Chairmans absence executive

sessions are chaired by an independent director assigned on rotating basis Members of the

Audit Committee Compensation and Executive Organization Committee Finance and Risk

Management Committee Governance Committee and Executive Committee also meet regularly in

executive session at the conclusion of committee meetings Additional information about executive

sessions is contained in our Corporate Governance Guidelines which are available for viewing in

the Investors section of our website www.thehersheycompany.com

Can communicate with directors

You may communicate with our directors in several ways Communications regarding accounting

internal accounting controls or auditing matters may be addressed to the Audit Committee at the

following address

Audit Committee

do Corporate Secretary

The Hershey Company

100 Crystal Drive

P.O Box 810

Hershey PA 17033-0810

You also may email the Audit Committee at auditcommittee@hersheys.com Finally you may

submit your comments confidentially and anonymously if you desire to the Audit Committee by

calling the Hershey Concern Line at 800 362-8321 or by accessing the Hershey Concern Line

website at www.HersheysConcern.com

You may contact the independent directors at the following address

Independent Directors

do Corporate Secretary

The Hershey Company
100 Crystal Drive

P.O Box 810

Hershey PA 17033-0810

You also may email the independent directors at independentdirectors@hersheys.com or contact

the independent directors using the Hershey Concern Line telephone number or website noted

above

The Audit Committee will address communications from any interested party in accordance with

our Board-approved Procedures for Submission and Handling of Complaints Regarding

Compliance Matters which are available for viewing in the Investors section of our website at
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www.thehersheycompany.com Communications to the Audit Committee independent directors

and Hershey Concern Line are processed by the Office of General Counsel The Office of General

Counsel reviews and summarizes these communications and provides reports to the Audit

Committee on periodic basis Communications regarding any accounting internal control or

auditing matter are reported immediately to the Audit Committee as are allegations about our

officers Solicitations junk mail and obviously frivolous or inappropriate communications are not

forwarded to the Audit Committee but copies are retained and made available to any director who

wishes to review them

How often did the Board meet in 2013

The Board held six regular meetings and three special meetings in 2013 Each director attended

at least 86% of all of the meetings of the Board and committees of the Board on which he or she

served in 2013 Average attendance for all of these meetings equaled 94%

What is the Companys policy regarding Board members attendance at the annual

meeting

Directors are expected to attend our annual meetings of stockholders All ten directors that were

standing for election at our 2013 annual meeting held on April 30 2013 were in attendance at

that meeting An eleventh director Ms Haben was appointed to the Board after the 2013 annual

meeting

What is the Boards leadership structure and why is it the best structure for the

Company at this time

The Boards current leadership structure separates the roles of the Chairman of the Board of

Directors and the Chief Executive Officer Our Chairman of the Board presides at all Board and

stockholder meetings approves the agendas for all Board meetings and sees that all orders

resolutions and policies adopted or established by the Board are carried into effect The Board has

determined that our Chairman is an independent member of the Board under the listing

standards of the New York Stock Exchange and our Corporate Governance Guidelines Our Chief

Executive Officer is responsible for the Companys strategic focus and oversees the day-to-day

operations of the Company He also serves as member of the Board and is the primary liaison

between the Board and Company management

Our Board believes that separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is the

best governance model for the Company at this time Under this model our Chairman can devote

his attention to assuring that the Company has the proper governance controls in place that our

Board is properly structured from the standpoints of membership size and diversity and that

management has the support it needs from the Board to carry out the Companys strategic

priorities The Chief Executive Officer relieved of the duties normally performed by the

Chairman is free to focus his entire attention on growing and strengthening the business

What is the Boards role in risk oversight

Our Board takes an active role in risk oversight In August 2009 the Board established Finance

and Risk Management Committee This Committee was established in part to enhance the

Boards oversight of how senior management manages the material risks facing the Company

The Finance and Risk Management Committee is composed of independent directors and operates

in accordance with written charter The Committee meets periodically with management to

discuss risk topics pursuant to the Committees rolling agenda Reports are then provided by the
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Committee to the Board at the Boards next regularly scheduled meeting The Chair of the

Finance and Risk Management Committee also meets at least annually with the Audit Committee

to discuss the Companys risk management programs The Audit Committee includes summary

of these discussions in its report to the Board at the Boards next regularly scheduled meeting

In addition when setting the performance measures and goals for the Companys incentive plans

for 2013 and 2014 the Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of the Board

received managements views on whether the incentive plans measures or goals may encourage

inappropriate risk-taking by the Companys officers or employees Management noted and the

Committee concurred and reported to the full Board that the performance measures and goals

were tied to the Companys strategic objectives and achievable financial performance centered on

the Companys publicly announced financial expectations As such the incentive plans were

believed not to encourage risk-taking outside of the range of risks contemplated by the Companys

business plan

What are the committees of the Board and what are their functions

The Board has five standing committees Audit Compensation and Executive Organization

Finance and Risk Management Governance and Executive The Board also establishes from

time to time committees of limited duration for special purpose Our Corporate Governance

Guidelines require that every member of the Audit Committee Compensation and Executive

Organization Committee Finance and Risk Management Committee and Governance Committee

be independent
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Audit Committee 11 meetings in 2013

Members Charles Davis Chair

Pamela Arway
James Mead

James Nevels

Independence The Board determined that all directors on this Committee are

independent under applicable listing standards of the New York Stock

Exchange Rule 1OA-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended and the Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines

Responsibilities Assists the Board in its oversight of the integrity of the Companys
financial statements the Companys compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements the qualifications and independence of the

Companys independent auditors and the performance of the

independent auditors and the Companys internal audit function

Directly oversees and has direct responsibility for the appointment

compensation retention and oversight of the work of the independent

auditors

Approves all audit and non-audit engagement fees and terms with the

independent auditors

Reviews and oversees in consultation with the Finance and Risk

Management Committee the guidelines and policies governing the

process by which the Company assesses and manages risk and

Administers our Procedures for Submission and Handling of Complaints

Regarding Compliance Matters

Charter current copy of the charter of the Audit Committee may be viewed on

the Companys website at www.thehersheycompany.com in the Investors

section The charter prohibits any member of the Audit Committee from

serving on the audit committees of more than two other public companies

unless the Board determines that such simultaneous service would not

impair the ability of the director to effectively serve on the Committee

Should the Board ever make such determination it will be posted on

the Companys website

Qualifications The Board has determined that all directors on this Committee are

financially literate The Board also determined that Messrs Davis Mead

and Nevels qualify as audit committee financial experts as defined in

SEC regulations and that each has accounting or related financial

management expertise
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Compensation and Executive Organization Committee 10 meetings in 2013

Members Robert Cavanaugh Chair

Mary Kay Haben
Robert Malcolm

Anthony Palmer

David Shedlarz

Ms Haben was appointed to the Compensation and Executive

Organization Committee effective August 2013

Pamela Arway served as member of the Committee during the

entirety of 2013 Effective January 2014 Ms Arway rotated off the

Committee

Independence The Board determined that all directors on this Committee are

independent under the applicable listing standards of the New York

Stock Exchange and the Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines

Responsibilities Establishes the compensation of the Companys executive officers other

than the Chief Executive Officer and oversees the compensation policies

and programs for all executive officers

Evaluates the performance of and recommends to the independent

directors of the full Board as group the compensation of the Companys

Chief Executive Officer

Reviews and recommends to the full Board the form and amount of

director compensation

Grants performance stock units stock options restricted stock units and

other rights under the Long-Term Incentive Program of the Companys

Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Incentive Plan

Establishes target-award levels and makes awards under the Annual

Incentive Program of the Incentive Plan

Administers the Incentive Plan

Monitors executive compensation arrangements for consistency with

corporate objectives and stockholders interests

Reviews the executive organization of the Company and

Monitors the development of personnel available to fill key executive

positions as part of the succession planning process

Charter current copy of the charter of the Compensation and Executive

Organization Committee may be viewed on the Companys website at

www.thehersheycompany.com in the Investors section
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The Compensation and Executive Organization Committee recommends or establishes director

and executive officer compensation in accordance with the authority granted by its charter and

the Board-approved compensation plans the Committee oversees The Committee may delegate its

responsibilities under limited circumstances to subcommittee composed only of subset of

Committee members Also under the terms of the Board- and stockholder-approved Incentive

Plan the Committee is authorized to provide our CEO with limited authority to make stock-based

awards to employees other than executive officers in connection with recruitment retention

performance recognition or promotion The Incentive Plan does not authorize our CEO to make

grants to our executive officers

The Committee engaged Mercer US Inc Mercer an executive compensation consultant to

provide independent assistance to the Committee with respect to the Committees development

and refinement of our compensation policies and the Committees assessment of whether our

compensation programs support our business objectives are market competitive and are cost-

efficient

Under its engagement letter with the Committee Mercer has acknowledged that the firm is

retained by and performs its services for the Committee while working with management to

provide advice counsel and recommendations that reinforce the Companys business strategy

economics organization and management style Mercer has provided and continues to provide

services and products to the Company in addition to its work for the Committee including

services related to global compensation consulting and surveys for various geographies Mercer

and its affiliates also provide products and services to the Company that are unrelated to

compensation including expatriate consulting services provided by Mercer international

benefits consulting and claims processing services provided by Mercer brand strategy and

design services provided by Lippincott and property insurance consulting services provided by

Marsh USA Inc and Marsh INSCO LLC The Committee reviews all fees for services related to

executive and director compensation provided by Mercer to the Committee as well as fees for

compensation-related products and services provided to the Company in the United States The

Committee also reviews fees paid to Mercer for compensation-related products or services

provided to the Company outside the United States The Committee has no role in the

engagement of Mercer or Mercer affiliates that provide products or services to the Company that

are unrelated to compensation however the Committee reviews the fees for such products and

services concurrently with its review of compensation-related fees paid to Mercer

The fees paid to Mercer and its affiliates for services provided in 2013 were as follows

Services related to executive and director compensation 275893

Other services

Compensation-related products and services $194456

Services unrelated to compensation $932417

Total other services $1126873

The Committee also received and discussed with Mercer its letter to the Committee addressing

factors relevant under SEC and New York Stock Exchange rules in assessing Mercers

independence from management and whether Mercers work for the Committee has raised any

conflicts of interest as well as Mercers belief that no conflict of interest exists and that it serves

as an independent advisor to the Committee The factors addressed included the extent of any

business or personal relationships with any member of the Committee or any executive officer of

the Company Mercer and its affiliates provision of other services to the Company the level of

fees received from the Company as percentage of total revenue of each of Mercer and Mercers

parent company the policies and procedures employed by Mercer to avoid conflicts of interest and
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any ownership of Company stock by individuals employed by Mercer to advise the Committee The

Committee considered these factors before selecting or receiving advice from Mercer and after

considering these and other factors in their totality no conflicts of interest with respect to

Mercers advice were identified by the Committee

Mercer provides the Committee with advice counsel and recommendations with respect to the

composition of the peer group and competitive data used for benchmarking our compensation

programs The Committee uses this and other information provided by Mercer to reach an

independent recommendation regarding compensation to be paid to our CEO The Committees

final recommendation is then given to the independent directors of our Board for review and final

approval

In establishing compensation levels and awards for executive officers other than our CEO the

Committee takes into consideration the recommendations of Mercer and Company management
evaluations by our CEO of each officers individual performance and Company performance The

Committee evaluates director compensation primarily on the basis of peer group data used for

benchmarking director compensation provided by Mercer

Please turn to page 44 for additional information regarding our executive compensation programs
and page 24 for information regarding compensation of our directors
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Finance and Risk Management Committee meetings in 2013

Members David Shedlarz Chair

Robert Cavanaugh

Robert Malcolm

Anthony Palmer

Thomas Ridge

Independence The Board determined that all directors on this Committee are

independent under the listing standards of the New York Stock

Exchange and the Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines

Responsibilities Assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating to the

Companys management of its assets liabilities and risks

Reviews and makes recommendations regarding capital projects

acquisitions and dispositions of assets and changes in capital structure

Reviews the Companys annual budget and monitors performance

against operational plans

Recommends the terms of the Companys principal banking

relationships credit facilities and commercial paper programs and

Reviews and oversees in consultation with the Audit Committee the

guidelines and policies governing the process by which the Company

assesses and manages risk

Charter current copy of the charter of the Finance and Risk Management

Committee may be viewed on the Companys website at

www.thehersheycompany.com in the Investors section
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Governance Committee meetings in 2013

Members Pamela Arway Chair
Robert Cavanaugh
James Mead
James Nevels

Thomas Ridge

Mr Mead was appointed to the Governance Committee effective

January 2014

Independence The Board determined that all directors on this Committee are

independent under the listing standards of the New York Stock

Exchange and the Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines

Responsibilities Reviews and makes recommendations on the composition of the Board

and its committees

Identifies evaluates and recommends candidates for election to the

Board consistent with the Boards membership qualifications

Reviews and makes recommendations to the full Board on corporate

governance matters including the Companys Corporate Governance

Guidelines

Administers the Companys Related Person Transaction Policy as

directed by the Board and

Evaluates the performance of the full Board its independent committees

and each director

Charter current copy of the charter of the Governance Committee may be

viewed on the Companys website at www.thehersheycompany.com in the

Investors section
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Executive Committee No meetings in 2013

Members James Nevels Chair

Pamela Arway
Robert Cavanaugh

Charles Davis

David Shedlarz

Responsibilities Manages the business and affairs of the Company to the extent permitted

by the Delaware General Corporation Law when the Board is not in

session

subcommittee consisting of the independent directors on this Committee

who are not affiliated with Hershey Trust Company Hershey

Entertainment Resorts Company andlor Milton Hershey School or any

subsidiary division or affiliate of any of the foregoing reviews and

approves in advance any transaction not in the ordinary course of business

between the Company and any of these entities unless the Board or

Corporate Governance Guidelines specify different approval process

Currently our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that unless

directed otherwise by the independent members of our Board who have no

affiliation with any of the above entities such transactions will be reviewed

and approved in advance by special committee consisting of the directors

elected by the holders of our Common Stock voting separately and only in

the absence of such directors will the subcommittee of this Committee

approve such transactions For more information regarding the review

approval or ratification of transactions involving the Company and these

entities please refer to the section entitled Certain Transactions and

Relationships beginning on page 89

Charter current copy of the charter of the Executive Committee may be viewed on

the Companys website at www.thehersheycompany.com in the Investors

section

How are nominees for the Board selected

The Governance Committee is responsible for identifying and recommending to the Board

candidates for Board membership The Milton Hershey School Trust our controlling stockholder

also may from time to time recommend to the Governance Committee or elect outright

individuals to serve on our Board

The Governance Committee considers recommendations from directors stockholders including

the Milton Hershey School Trust or other sources Occasionally the Governance Committee

engages paid third-party consultant to assist it in identifying and evaluating director

candidates The Governance Committee has sole authority under its charter to retain compensate

and terminate these consultants The Governance Committee has established policy that it will

not recommend candidate to the full Board until all members of the Committee have

interviewed and approved the candidate for nomination

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines describe the experience qualifications attributes and

skills sought by the Board of any Board nominee Generally the Board seeks individuals with

skills and backgrounds that will complement those of other directors and maximize the diversity

and effectiveness of the Board as whole
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In reviewing the qualifications of prospective directors the Board considers factors it deems

appropriate including the candidates

Integrity

Judgment

Skill

Diversity

Ability to express informed useful and constructive views

Experience with businesses and other organizations of comparable size

Ability to commit the time necessary to learn our business and to prepare for and

participate actively in committee meetings and in Board meetings

Experience and how it relates to the experience of the other Board members and

Overall desirability as an addition to the Board and its committees

The Board seeks individuals having knowledge and experience in such disciplines as finance

international business marketing mergers and acquisitions supply chain management
information technology human resources and consumer products The Board also seeks

individuals who bring unique and varied perspectives and life experiences to the Board As such
the Governance Committee assists the Board by recommending prospective director candidates

who will enhance the overall diversity of the Board The Board views diversity broadly taking

into consideration the age professional experience race education gender and other attributes of

its members

The Governance Committee does not distinguish between nominees recommended by stockholders

and other nominees However stockholders desiring to nominate director candidate at the

annual meeting must comply with certain procedures We explained the procedures for

nominating director candidate at this years annual meeting in our 2013 proxy statement If you
are stockholder and desire to nominate director candidate at next years annual meeting you
must comply with the procedures for nomination set forth in the section entitled Information

about the 2015 Annual Meeting beginning on page 92 Stockholders who do not intend to

nominate director at an annual meeting may recommend director candidate to the Governance

Committee for consideration at any time Stockholders desiring to do so must submit their

recommendation in writing to The Hershey Company do Corporate Secretary 100 Crystal

Drive Hershey Pennsylvania 17033-0810 and include in the submission all of the information

that would be required if the stockholder nominated the candidate at an annual meeting as

described above and in the section beginning on page 92 The Governance Committee may require

the nominating stockholder to submit additional information before considering the candidate

Does the Board impose maximum age limit for directors

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that directors may not be nominated for reelection

after their 72nd birthday All of the directors standing for election at the 2014 annual meeting of

stockholders satisfied the applicable age requirement at the time of their nomination
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

How are directors compensated

The Company maintains Directors Compensation Plan designed to

Attract and retain highly qualified non-employee directors and

Align the interests of non-employee directors with those of our stockholders by paying

portion of their compensation in units representing shares of our Common Stock

Directors who are employees of the Company receive no additional compensation for their service

on our Board Mr Bilbrey our current President and Chief Executive Officer is the only employee

of the Company who also served as director during 2013 and thus received no additional

compensation for his Board service

The Board targets non-employee director compensation at the 50th percentile of compensation paid

to directors at peer group of companies we call the Compensation Peer Group Information about

the Compensation Peer Group is included in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning

on page 44 Each year with the assistance of the Compensation and Executive Organization

Committee and the Committees compensation consultant the Board reviews the compensation

paid to directors at companies in the Compensation Peer Group and establishes its compensation

in accordance with its target As result of its review in December 2012 the Board elected to

increase the annual retainer paid to the Chairman of the Board from $195000 to $215000

effective January 2013 The Board determined to maintain all other elements of 2013 director

compensation at 2012 levels Accordingly compensation paid to non-executive directors in 2013

was as follows

Annual retainer for Chairman of the Board $215000

Annual retainer for other non-employee directors 90000

Annual restricted stock unit award $120000

Annual fee for chairs of the Audit Committee Compensation and 15000

Executive Organization Committee and Finance and Risk Management

Committee

Annual fee for the chair of the Governance Committee 10000

Payment of Annual Retainer and Committee Chair Fees

Non-employee directors may elect to receive all or portion of the annual retainer in cash or in

Common Stock Non-employee directors also may elect to defer receipt of the retainer or

committee chair fees until the date their membership on the Board ends Committee chair fees

that are not deferred are paid only in cash Non-employee directors choosing to defer all or

portion of their retainer or committee chair fees may invest the deferred amounts in two ways

In cash account that values the performance of the investment based upon the

performance of one or more third-party investment funds as selected by the director

These investment funds were selected from the mutual funds or other investment options

available to all employees participating in our 401k Plan Amounts invested in the cash

account are paid only in cash

In deferred common stock unit account that we value according to the performance of

our Common Stock including reinvested dividends Amounts invested in the deferred

common stock unit account are paid in shares of Common Stock
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Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units or RSUs are granted quarterly to non-employee directors on the first day
of January April July and October In 2013 the number of RSUs granted in each quarter was

determined by dividing $30000 by the average closing price of share of our Common Stock on

the New York Stock Exchange on the last three trading days preceding the grant date RSUs
awarded to non-employee directors vest one year after the date of grant or earlier upon
termination of the directors membership on the Board by reason of retirement termination of

service from the Board after the directors 60th birthday death or disability for any reason after

Change in Control as defined in our Executive Benefits Protection Plan Group 3A or EBPP 3A
or under such other circumstances as the Board may determine Once vested RSUs are paid to

directors only in shares of Common Stock or at the option of the director deferred as common
stock units under the Directors Compensation Plan until the directors membership on the Board

ends Dividend equivalent units are credited at regular rates on the RSUs during the restriction

period and upon vesting of the RSUs are paid currently in shares of Common Stock or deferred

as common stock units together with RSUs the director has deferred As of February 28 2014
Messrs Davis Malcolm Mead Nevels Ridge and Shedlarz and Ms Arway had attained

retirement age for purposes of the vesting of RSUs

Other Compensation Reimbursements and Programs

The Board occasionally establishes committees of limited duration for special purposes The Board

will consider paying additional compensation to non-employee directors who serve on special

committees generally $1250 per meeting if the special committee holds six or more meetings
each lasting one hour or more No director received compensation for service on special

committee in 2013

Prior to 1997 directors participated in our Directors Charitable Award Program No directors

have been added to the program since 1996 and our obligations under the program were not

affected by the service of any director during 2013 Under the program upon the participating

directors death the Company makes charitable gift to an educational institution designated by
the director The amount of the donation varies depending upon the directors length of service

with maximum donation of $1 million after five years of service As of December 31 2013 there

were 16 former directors who participated in the program for whom we are committed to make
charitable contributions aggregating $15.8 million No current director participates in this

program

We reimburse our directors for travel and other out-of-pocket expenses they incur when attending

Board and committee meetings and for minor incidental expenses they incur when performing

directors services We also provide reimbursement for at least one director continuing-education

program each year Directors receive travel accident insurance while traveling on the Companys
business and receive discounts on the purchase of our products to the same extent and on the

same terms as all of our employees Directors also are eligible to participate in the Companys Gift

Matching Program Under the Gift Matching Program the Company will match upon directors

request contributions made by the director to one or more charitable organizations on dollar

for-dollar basis up to maximum aggregate contribution of $5000 annually

We do not award stock options or maintain non-equity incentive plan or defined benefit pension

plan for our non-employee directors
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he following tabh or e\planotorl footnotes proide information with respect to the

ornp nsution paid or pros ided to non employee directors during 2013 in accordance with the

policies and programs described above

Name

Pamela Arway

Robert winaugh

Charles lw

Many Pry Ilahen

Robert Malcolm

Janu Plead

James Neeli

Anthor Pain ci

Thomas Ridge

lviii Shdiai

ioyooo

31000

90000

90 000

00O

90000

Oo000

Defrrred and Investment Election

Value
Drfer red Number

toa of

Common Deferred

Stock Common
Unit Stock

Account Units

1204

Director Compensation
2013

Name

Pamela Ar way

Robt rt Cavana ugh

Charles Davis

Mory Kay Ilabcn

Robert Malcolm

Iame ad

James Nevcls

Anthony Palmer

lhomas Ridge

David Sh dlarz

Fees Earned
andlor Paid

in Casht1

100000

105000

105000

35550

90000

90 000

215000

90000

90000

105 000

Stock Awards9

120000

120000

120000

47283

120000

120000

120000

120000

120000

120000

All Other

Compensation13

5000

4500

5000

000

5000

5000

5000

5000

5000

5000

Total

225000

229500

230000

87833

215000

2hy000

340000

215000

215000

230000

hi rob niri irulodi nint ccii id or paid itt ca or hares of ouiriiOii Stock at tire eledion of the director or

dek ned by th directo under rhr Drrector ompensatioli Plan director may choose to have his or her retainer and

conimit tee chair fee dc Ibirud in the form of cash or carmen Stock until his or her membership on the Board ends

Amounts credited as earnings on amount drfbrred under the Directors Compensation Plan an based on mutual

funds or other invetm nt options as ailable to all prrtui pants rn our 401k Plan or our Common Stock and

accordingly the cart in credited dunn 2013 wr re not above market or pr efbr ential earnings

ibliowing table arts tom th the per tarn of leer paid icr cash or Conunon Stock arid th portion deterred with respect

to retoroens arid fees tarried during 2011

Immediate Payment

Cash
Paid

1$

100000

Value

Delerred

to

Cash
Account

Value
Paid in

Shares of

Common
Stock

64501

90 000

Number
of Shares

of Common
Stock

739

1032

103 000
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his column presents the dollar amount rem gniied as expense during 2013 for linancral state sient reporting pm poses

with respect to RSUs awarded to the direct during 20 LI RSU awarded to directors ire chsrgcd to expi nse in the

ompanyh financial statements ott he grant date fair value on each quarterly gr mt date the target aruinal grant

late Iibr value of the 112k for each director during 2013 was $120 000

ihe following table pros ides information with respect to the number and market value of deferred common stock nmts

arid RSUs held by each director as of Dccc mber 11 2013 based on the $9723 closing price of cur Common Stock as

aporterl by the New York Stock xchange on Dec ember 31 2013 the last trading day of the year Thm infbrniotion

resented includes the accumulatc value of each directors common stock units and RSI Balarim shown beloss

riclude dividend equmsalent units credited ni the for rn of additional common stock units on etainer oral committee

hair fees that hove been deterred as commno stock units arid divirlend equmvak mit rrncts credited mn the torni of

idditional comnnmon stock units ciii RSTs

his column repmeserits th onipain match for contributions mode the director to onc or more charitable

organmiatior during 2013 under the Gift Matching Program

Have there been any changes to director compensation since the end of 2013

Foil wing review of competitive data the Board elected to incit ase the annual retainer foi non

employee directors other than the Chairman from $90000 to $100000 and to increase the

qua %erlyRSU grant to all nonmmployee directors in each case cffhctive as of January 2014

For 2014 thc number of RSUs granted in each quarter will be determined by dividing $33750
the iverage closing price

of share of our Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the

last three trading days preceding the grant date Except for these changes all other elements of

dire9tor compensation described above remain unchanged for 2014

IN aim

Pamela Arway

Robert avanaugh

Charles Davis

Mary Kay Haben

Robert SR Malcolm

James Mead

James Nevels

Anthony Palmer

Thomas Ridge

Davrd ihedlars

Number of

Deferred
Common Stock

Units

30447

390

25118

Market Value of

Retainers and
Committee Chair Fees

Deferred to th

ommon StocF Unit

Account as of

December 31 2013

$1

446 512

3296 tO

2442223

Number of

RSUs

1442

1149

12

1442

1412

t2

1142

1442

442

Market

Value of
RSUs as of

December 31
2013

140216

110 206

140206

502kG

140206

140 216

140206

140 206

ff0 206

t40206
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JOHN BILBREY age 57 has been Hershey directoi siuci June 2011 He

was elected President and Chief Executwe Officer of The Hershey Company

effi dive May 17 2011 From November 2010 to May 2011 he was Executive Vice

President Chief Operrting Oflicer and from Decemhei 2007 until November

2010 he was Setitur Vice President Pi esidetir Her ala Nor tli Vnerica From

November 2005 to December 2007 he was Senior Vice President Presideni

international Commercial Group and was Senior Vice President President

Hershey international from November 2003 unl ii November 2005 As our

President and Chief Executive Oilier Mr Bilbrey is responsible for daVto day

global operations and commercial activities uid has thorough arid

coniprehensive knowledge of all aspects of the Compan lie har

extensive experience in the consumer packaged goody and fast moving consumer

goods categories in the United States and international markets and has the

benefit of having served as both Chief Executive Officer md Chief Operati

ifPce of the Company Pror to joining icrh Mr Pilbie eld executis

positions at Mission 1oods arid Danone Waters of North Amcrica Inc dirisk

of Groupe Danone Paris France responsible for oIl operation.r of Groupe

Dariones North Amer icari water di ision He als served in pos iti Ofl 01

increasing responsibility in the Urnted States as well as numerou international

assignments dun liii 22 years at The Procter Gamble Cornpan Mi i3ilbre

has been director of McCormick Company inc orporated since Nov mber

2005 He hold bachelors degree in psychology from Kanso State niversi

ROBERT CAVANAUCH age 55 has been Hershey director since October

2u03 He chairs the Compensation and Executive UrganiLation ornmittec arid is

member of thr Finance and Risk Management Commit tee the Covernance

Committee and the Executive Committee Mi Car anaugh is Chairman of the

board of directors of Hei shey Fr ust Comp my and the board managers of

Milton hershey hool He is one of three representitives of the Milton Hershey

School Ti ust currently serving on our Board Mr Cavanaugh 1977 graduate of

Milton Iershey School brmgy unique perspectivea to our Board not only as

representative of our largest stockholder hut also of the school that is its sole

beneficiary Mr Cavanaugh formerly served as the Chief Fxr cutive Officer of

ValueRock Investment Partners Irvine Califbrnia art owner op rotor of ret ul

real ctate properuies oated thioughuut the wratern l.Tnited St0tt5 lIt litld diii

position from January 2013 to February 2014 From October 2011 to Januar
2013 Mr Cavanaugh was Chief investment Officer of Vestar Dci elopinent

Company Phoenix Arisona one of the leading privately held ir tail re it tate

operating companies in the western United States rom October 1999 to October

2011 he was Managing Director ofDLJ Real Estate Capital Partners Los

Angele California leading global real estate private equity tim Prior

join ing DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners Mr Cavanaugh hr Id positions is ith

leutsche Bank Sc cunities where lie founded and oversaw thot hrms real tate

investinc nt banking efihrt on the West Coast Goldman Sachs and La.alle

Prtner bar eYperience ri risestment Lanking finrane real tate ard in1

management Mr Cavanaugh holds bachelor degree in economns in loath

from the Wharton School ofthe University ofPeiinslsaniia aid Maste of

Business dininnistrationi degice horn ilaivard llusin as School whc me hr cairn

academic horrors
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ROBERT MALCOLM age 61 has been Hershey director since December2011 He

is member of the Compensation and Executive Organization Committee and the Finame

and Risk Management Committee He has been nominated for dci tion by the holders of

the Common Stock votmg sepai ately as class Mi Malcolm retired in December 2008 as

President Global Maketirig Sales liniovation of lhageo PLC ondon UK the worlds

leading premium drinks company lie held that position from June 2002 From

September 2001 to June 2002 hc was President Global Market Sales and Innovation for

Gumness UDV division ofDiageo lrom December 1999 to Septembe 2001
Mr Malcolm served us Global Marketing Director Umted Distillers Vintners division

of Diageo and was sed in ondon At the time of his retirement Mr Malcolm was

responsible for st ratu gy equity in inagemeni innovation and global oi chestration for more

than 120 brands as well as functional perfbrmnance fbi both the marketing and global sak

organization Prior tojoining Diageo Mr Malcolm spent 24 years at Thu Procter Gamble

Company in positions of increasing responsibility departing in June 1999 as Tice

Pmsident GeriruI Manager Beverages Europa Middle East Afiba He is globally

recognized expert in strategic marketing and is currently Exceutive ur Residence Center

fbr Customer insight and Marketing Solutions McCombs School of Busmess University of

Iexas H- has experience ui international business and in the mnarketing and sales of

consumer products including consumer packaged goods arid hishniovmnh consumer goods

Mr Malcolm serves on the board of directors of the American Marketing Association on

the advisory boards of Just Marketing Inc and Eflbctive Brands id senior advisor to

Boston Consulting Group lie was formerly director of Logitech Intern itional S.A from

June 2007 to September 2010 Mr Malcolm holds bachelors degu in mar ketmg and

Masters of Busines Administrat ion degree in marketing both from thu University of

Southern Californii

JAMES MEAD age 68 has been Hershey director since April 2011 lie is member
of the Audit Comnuttee and the Governance Committee Mr Mead is director and non

executiw president of Hershey Trust Company and member of the board of managers of

Milton Hershey School lie is one of three representatives of the Milton Hershey School

Trust servmg on our Board In addition to bringing to our Board the perspectives of the

Milton hershey School Trust Mr Mead brings cxtensive business and leadership

expenence lie is founder and President of JM Mend Li Camp lull Pennsylvania an

economic advisory finn serving the health care industry lie has held that position since

July 2004 lIe also is venture partner in Radius VentuIes LLC New York New York
venture capital firm focused on leading edge health and life sciences companies since

June 200a and serves on the board of directors of several privately held hu aith can and

health care technology firms He also serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Capital

BlueCross Harrisburg Pennsylvania full service mnanagefficame and health insurance

provider after having served as its President and Chief Executive Officer fromn 1984 to

2004 Mi Mead was member of the hoard of director of the Federal Reserve Bank of

Philadelphia from 1991 to 1996 and served as its Chaimmnan from 1994 until 1996 He is

actively involved in other profbssmomial and commumty board activities including board

member and treasunu of the North American branch of the international Life Sciences

Institute \ashington D.C He has experience in finance marketing insurance

information technology and risk management in addition to having experierne as hief

executive officer and qualifies as an audit cormimnittee financial expert Mr Mead holds

bachelors degrec in economics and Masters of Arts degree in economic from Thi

Pennsy lvamna State University
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THOMAS RIDGE age 68 has been Hershey director since November 2007

and is member of the Finance and Risk Management Committee and the

Gover trance Committee Mr Ridge is President and Chief Executive Officer of Ridge

Global LLC Washington global strategic consulting company He has held

that position since July 2006 Additionally in April 2010 Mr Ridge became

partner in Ridg Policy Group harrisburg Pennsylvania and Washington

bipartisan fbi service government afihirs and issue management group From April

2005 to July 2006 he was President and Chief Executive Officer of hon ins

Ridge Lii From October 2001 to February 2005 Mr Ridgc was Secretary of the

Depar trnerit of Homeland Security Prior to his service as Seer mary of

Homeland Security he was Governor of Pennsylvania horn 1995 to 2001

Mr Ridges background and experience have prepared him well for membership on

our Board As President and Chief Executive Offlccr of Ridge Global he lead

team of inter national experts that helps businesses and govei nc nts address issues

such as risk management global trade security recbnology int grauon and crisis

management As partner in Ridge Policy Group he prinides strategic adi ice to

clients to assist them in navigating the complexities of state and local government

and rating awareness of their products and services that are relevant to

govt rnment niarkets As twiceelected Governor of Pennsylvama he earned

reputation for high standards and results and championed issues such L5 health

care and the environment As cretary of the lepartmc nt of Homeland Security he

formed nen agency from 22 agencies employing more than 180000 eniploym

Mr Ridge Ira been director of FS Investment Corporation sir cc Novenrber 2011

and direct or of Li feLoc Inc smce Mai ch 2010 He previously served as director

of Ernloa Cor poraton Brightpoint Inc Gcospatial Holdings Inc Vonia Iloldrrig

Corp and The Home Depot Inc Mr Ridge holds bachelors degree curn laurie

from Jlarvard University and Juris Doctor degree fioni The Dickinson ScFiool of

Lan of The Pennsylvania State Umversity

DAVID SHEDLARZ age 65 has been Hershey director since August 2008

He chairs the Finance and Risk Management Committee and is member of the

Compensation and Executive Organization Committee and the Executive

Coma ittee Mr Shedlarz retired in December 2007 as Vice Chairman of

Pfizei lire New York New York pharinact utical con surnei arid animal

products health company He held that position from duly 2005 1rorn January

1999 to July 2005 he was Pfizers Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officcr Mr Shedl iw spent the majority of his professional career with Pfizer At

the tune of hi retirement in 2007 Mr Shedlari nas responsible for operations

including the animal health business finance accounting strategic planrung

busincsz devel opn ient global sourcing manufacturing nfhrr ia tron systems and

human reources During his time at Pfizer Mr Shedlar also gained exterwive

experience in international business Mr Shedlarz has been director of Pitney

Bowes Inc since May 2001 arid member of the leachers Insurance and

Annuity Association Board of Tm ustees since March 2001 Mr Shedlarz hold

bachelor degmee in econorirics arid riiathematics train JaklandiMi higan Suite

University and Masters of Buznness Administration degree in finance and

accounting from tire New York University Leonard Stern School of Business
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AUDIT COMMIVFEE REPORT

To Our Stockholders

Our role as the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is to prepare this report and to assist

the Board in its oversight of

The integrity of the Companys financial statements

The Companys compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

The independent auditors qualifications and independence and

The performance of the independent auditors and the Companys internal audit function

Our Committee operates under written charter that was last amended by the Board on

December 2012 The charter may be viewed on the Companys website at

www.thehersheycompany.com in the Investors section

Our duties as Committee include overseeing the Companys management internal auditors and

independent auditors in their performance of the following functions for which they are

responsible

Management

Preparing the Companys financial statements

Establishing effective financial reporting systems and internal controls and

procedures and

Reporting on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

Internal Audit Department

Independently assessing managements system of internal controls and procedures

and

Reporting on the effectiveness of that system

Independent Auditors

Auditing the Companys financial statements

Expressing an opinion about the financial statements conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles and

Annually auditing the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

We meet periodically with management the internal auditors and independent auditors

independently and collectively to discuss the quality of the Companys financial reporting process

and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Companys internal controls Prior to the Company

filing its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2013 with the SEC we

also

Reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management and the

independent auditors

Discussed with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by

Auditing Standard No 16 Communications with Audit Committees of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board
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Received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent auditors in

accordance with applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board regarding the independent auditors communications with the Audit Committee

concerning independence and

Discussed with the independent auditors their independence from the Company

We are not employees of the Company and are not performing the functions of auditors or

accountants We are not responsible as Committee or individually to conduct field work or

other types of auditing or accounting reviews or procedures or to set auditor independence

standards In carrying out our duties as Audit Committee members we have relied on the

information provided to us by management and the independent auditors Consequently we do

not assure that the audit of the Companys financial statements has been carried out in

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards that the financial statements are

presented in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles or that the Companys

auditors are in fact independent

Based on the reports and discussions described in this report and subject to the limitations on our

role and responsibilities as Committee referred to above and in our charter we recommended to

the Board that the audited financial statements be included in the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2013 filed with the SEC on February 21 2014

Submitted by the Audit Committee of the Companys Board of Directors

Charles Davis Chair

Pamela Arway
James Mead

James Nevels
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INFORMATION ABOUT OUR INDEPENIENT AUDITORS

Who are the Companys current independent auditors

KPMG LLP an independent registered public accounting firm has audited the Companys

financial statements since May 10 2002

What were KPMG LLPs fees for professional services to the Company in fiscal

years 2012 and 2013

KPMG LLPs fees were as follows

For the Fiscal Years Ended December 31 2013 2012

Audit Fees $4283302 $3848590
Audit-Related Fees1 1380023 1307391
Tax Fees2 82979 212400

All Other Fees3 66438 219331

Total Fees $5812742 $5587712

Fees associated primarily with services related to due diligence for potential business acquisitions and

auditing of employee benefit plans

Fees pertaining primarily to assistance with the preparation of tax returns tax audits and customs

assistance for the Companys foreign subsidiaries

Fees associated primarily with professional services rendered in connection with the Companys global

shared services organization

What is the Audit Committees policy regarding pre-approval of audit and non-audit

services performed by the Companys independent auditors

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services performed by KPMG LLP
The Committee is authorized by its charter to delegate to one or more of its members the

authority to pre-approve any audit or non-audit services provided that the approval is presented

to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting

The Audit Committee pre-approved all services provided by KPMG LLP in 2013
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PROPOSAL NO.2- APPOINTMENT OF INTEPENDENT AUDITORS

What is the Board proposing

The Board is proposing that stockholders ratify the Audit Committees appointment of

KPMG LLP as the Companys independent auditors for 2014 The Audit Committee and the Board

consider KPMG LLP to be well qualified for that role

Is stockholder ratification necessary or required

The Audit Committee is not required to obtain stockholder ratification of its appointment of

KPMG LLP However the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that stockholders be given

the opportunity to vote on KPMG LLPs appointment at the annual meeting

What will happen if the appointment of KPMG LLP is not ratified by the

stockholders

If stockholders do not ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Companys independent

auditors for 2014 the Audit Committee will reconsider its appointment

How many votes will be required for ratification

KPMG LLPs appointment as the Companys independent auditors for 2014 will be considered

ratified if majority of the votes of the shares of the Common Stock and Class Common Stock

present and entitled to vote at the annual meeting are cast for the proposal

Will representatives of KPMG LLP attend the annual meeting

Representatives of KPMG LLP will attend the annual meeting will have the opportunity to make

statement if they so desire and will respond to questions

What is the Boards recommendation for voting on Proposal No

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders

vote FOR Proposal No
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OWNERSHIP OF THE COMPANYS SECURITIES

When are shares beneficially owned

Shares are beneficially owned when person has voting or investment power over the shares or

the right to acquire voting or investment power within 60 days Voting power is the power to vote

the shares Investment power is the power to direct the sale or other disposition of the shares

What information is presented in the following table

This table shows the number of Company shares beneficially owned by

Stockholders who we believe owned more than 5% of our outstanding Common Stock or

Class Common Stock as of February 28 2014 and

Our directors the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table on

page 64 we refer to these officers as named executive officers and all directors named

executive officers and other executive officers as group as of February 28 2014

Unless we have indicated otherwise in footnote the individuals and entities listed in the table

have sole voting and investment power over the shares listed
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Percent
of

Exercisable Percent of Class Class

Common Stock Common Common Common
Holder Stock1 Options2 Stock3 Stock Stock4

Hershey Trust Company and the

Milton Hershey School Trust5

100 Mansion Road

Hershey PA 17033 12513721 7.7 60612012 99.9

Milton Hershey School15

Founders Hall

Hershey PA 17033

Hershey Trust Company6 389000

BlackRock Inc.7

40 East 52nd Street

New York NY 10022 8267188 5.1

Humberto Alfonso 58835 269433

Pamela Arway 6850

John Bilbrey 83455 294598

Michele Buck 9211 24249

Robert Cavanaugh 1000

Charles Davis 14828

Mary Kay Haben

Robert Malcolm 2786

James Mead 700

James Nevels 9248

Terence ODay 25507 72293

Anthony Palmer 8057

Thomas Ridge

David Shedlarz 13002

David Tacka 35944 51871

Leslie Turner 13375

All directors named executive

officers and other executive

officers as group 20 persons 290207 871940

Director

Less than 1%
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Amounts listed for named executive officers and other executive officers include if applicable shares of Common Stock

allocated by the Company to the officers account in The Hershey Company 401k Plan Amounts listed also include

the following restricted stock units or RSUs that will vest and be paid to the following holders within 60 days of

February 28 2014

RSIJs held by directors

Pamela Arway 350

Charles Davis 350

Robert Malcolm 350

James Nevels 350

Anthony Palmer 350

David Shedlarz 350

464 RSUs held by an executive officer who is not named executive officer

Amounts listed also include shares for which certain of the directors and named executive officers share voting and/or

investment power with one or more other persons as follows Ms Arway 6500 shares owned jointly with her spouse
Mr Cavanaugh 1000 shares owned jointly with his spouse Mr Malcolm 2436 shares owned jointly with his spouse
Mr Nevels 8219 shares owned jointly with his spouse and 679 shares owned jointly with another individual and

Mr Palmer 7707 shares owned jointly with his spouse

This column reflects stock options that were exercisable by the named executive officers and the executive officers as

group on February 28 2014 No executive officer holds stock options that will become exercisable within 60 days of

February 28 2014

Based upon 162776016 shares of Common Stock outstanding on February 28 2014

Based upon 60619777 shares of Class Common Stock outstanding on February 28 2014

Reflects stockholdings as of February 28 2014 The Milton Hershey School Trust has the right at any time to convert

its Class Common Stock shares into Common Stock shares on share-for-share basis If on February 28 2014 the

Milton Hershey School Trust converted all of its Class Common Stock shares to Common Stock the Milton Hershey
School Trust would own beneficially 73125733 shares of our Common Stock 12513721 Common Stock shares plus

60612012 converted Class Common Stock shares or 32.7% of the 223388028 shares of Common Stock

outstanding following the conversion calculated as 162776016 Common Stock shares outstanding prior to the

conversion plus 60612012 converted Class Common Stock shares For more information about the Milton Hershey
School Trust Hershey Trust Company Milton Hershey School and the ownership and voting of these securities please

turn to pages 42 and 43

Reflects stockholdings as of February 28 2014 Please turn to pages 42 and 43 for more information about shares of

Common Stock held by Hershey Trust Company as investments

Information regarding BlackRock Inc and its beneficial holdings was obtained from Schedule 13G filed with the

SEC on January 29 2014 The filing indicated that as of December 31 2013 BlackRock Inc had sole voting and

investment power over 8267188 shares of Common Stock The filing indicated that BlackRock Inc is parent

holding company or control person in accordance with Rule 13d-1b1iiG and that various persons have the right

to receive or the power to direct the receipt of dividends from or the proceeds from the sale of our Common Stock

Do the directors and named executive officers listed in the beneficial ownership table

above hold additional Company securities not reflected in that table

Our directors and named executive officers hold certain Company securities not reflected in the

beneficial ownership table above We are not permitted to show these securities in the beneficial

ownership table because they will not convert or cannot be converted to actual shares of Common
Stock over which the holder will have voting or investment power within 60 days of our

February 28 2014 record date These securities include

Certain unvested RSUs or deferred common stock units held by our directors and named
executive officers and

Certain unvested stock options held by our named executive officers
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We have added the table below to show these holdings by our directors and named executive

officers as of February 28 2014 You can find additional information about RSUs and deferred

common stock units held by directors in the Director Compensation section beginning on page 24

You can find additional information about stock options RSUs and deferred common stock units

held by the named executive officers in the Executive Compensation section beginning on page 44

Shares Underlying RSUs and Shares Underlying

Common Stock Units Not Stock Options Not

Holder Beneficially Owned Beneficially Owned

Humberto Alfonso 123197

Pamela Arway 1014

John Bilbrey 71741 513910

Michele Buck 77437 116202

Robert Cavanaugh 37237

Charles Davis 1014

Mary Kay Haben 868

Robert Malcolm 1014

James Mead 5180

James Nevels 1014

Terence ODay 92977

Anthony Pa1mer 1014

Thomas Ridg 26907

David Shedlarz 1014

David Tacka 250 53730

Leslie Turner 26499 64970

Director

Does the Company have policies designed to prevent executives from hedging

Company stock

Our Insider Trading Policy prohibits our executive officers directors and other insiders from

entering into hedging transactions related to our stock

What is the Milton Hershey School Trust

In 1909 Milton and Catherine Hershey established trust having as its sole beneficiary

Milton Hershey School non-profit school for the full-time care and education of disadvantaged

children located in Hershey Pennsylvania Hershey Trust Company state-chartered trust

company is trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School Throughout this proxy statement as

the context permits we refer to Hershey Trust Company in its capacity as trustee for the benefit

of Milton Hershey School as the Milton Hershey School Trust

What is the relationship of the Milton Hershey School Trust and Hershey Trust

Company to The Hershey Company

The Milton Hershey School Trust is our controlling stockholder It will have the right to cast 7.7%

of all of the votes entitled to be cast on matters requiring the vote of the Common Stock voting
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separately and 80.4% of all of the votes entitled to be cast on matters requiring the vote of the

Common Stock and Class Common Stock voting together The board of directors of Hershey

Trust Company as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School with the approval of the

board of managers governing body of Milton Hershey School decides how funds held by the

Milton Hershey School Trust will be invested The board of directors of Hershey Trust Company

as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School generally decides how shares of The Hershey

Company held by the Milton Hershey School Trust will be voted

As of the record date Hershey Trust Company also held 389000 shares of our Common Stock as

investments The board of directors or management of Hershey Trust Company decides how these

shares will be voted

In all Hershey Trust Company as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School and as direct

owner of investment shares will be entitled to vote 12902721 shares of our Common Stock and

60612012 shares of our Class Common Stock at the annual meeting Stated in terms of voting

power Hershey Trust Company will have the right to cast 7.9% of all of the votes entitled to be

cast on matters requiring the vote of the Common Stock voting separately and 80.5% of all of the

votes entitled to be cast on matters requiring the vote of the Common Stock and Class Common

Stock voting together at the annual meeting

Our certificate of incorporation contains the following important provisions regarding Class

Common Stock and the Milton Hershey School Trusts ownership of that stock

All holders of Class Common Stock including the Milton Hershey School Trust may

convert any of their Class Common Stock shares into shares of our Common Stock at

any time on share-for-share basis

All shares of Class Common Stock will automatically be converted to shares of Common

Stock on share-for-share basis if the Milton Hershey School Trust or any successor

trustee or Milton Hershey School as appropriate ceases to hold more than 50% of the

total Class Common Stock shares outstanding and at least 15% of the total Common

Stock and Class Common Stock shares outstanding

We must obtain the approval of the Milton Hershey School Trust or any successor

trustee or Milton Hershey School as appropriate before we issue any Common Stock or

take any other action that would deprive the Milton Hershey School Trust or any

successor trustee or Milton Hershey School as appropriate of the ability to cast

majority of the votes on any matter where the Class Common Stock is entitled to vote

either separately as class or together with any other class

What is the governance structure of Milton Hershey School and Hershey Trust

Company

All of the outstanding shares of Hershey Trust Company are owned by itself as trustee for the

benefit of Milton Hershey School The members of the board of managers of Milton Hershey

School are appointed by and from the board of directors of Hershey Trust Company There are

nine members of the board of directors of Hershey Trust Company There are nine members of the

board of managers of Milton Hershey School Robert Cavanaugh James Mead and

James Nevels each currently director of our Company are members of the board of directors

of Hershey Trust Company and board of managers of Milton Hershey School Directors of Hershey

Trust Company and members of the Milton Hershey School board of managers individually are

not considered to be beneficial owners of the shares of Hershey Common Stock and Class

Common Stock held by Hershey Trust Company as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey

School
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EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This section discusses and analyzes the decisions we made concerning the compensation of

Hersheys executive officers It also describes the process for determining executive compensation

and the factors considered in determining the amount of compensation awarded to our named

executive officers

The named executive officers are Bilbrey our Chief Executive Officer or CEO Tacka
who was named our Chief Financial Officer or CFO in May 2013 Alfonso who served as

our CFO prior to becoming President International in May 2013 and Buck President

North America ODay Senior Vice President Chief Supply Chain Officer and Turner

Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary who were the three highest paid of our

other executive officers during 2013 For the purpose of this discussion and analysis

compensation information provided for Mr Tacka reflects his appointment as our CFO

What material highlights and events affected decision-making regarding 2013

named executive officer compensation What actions were taken in response to

those highlights and events

We announced high expectations for 2013

In January 2013 we gave the following outlook

Volume-driven full-year 2013 net sales to increase 5% to 7% over 2012 and

2013 adjusted earnings per share-diluted to increase 10% to 12% over 2012 we
define adjusted earnings per share-diluted as diluted earnings per share of our

Common Stock excluding adjustments as described beginning on page 18 of the 2013

Annual Report to Stockholders that accompanies this proxy statement

We incorporated our expectations into the performance goals set for our 2013 annual

incentive program the One Hershey Incentive Program or OHIP Growth in adjusted

earnings per share-diluted also was included as performance goal in the long-term

incentive program

We exceeded our expectations

Our 2013 performance reflected continued strong execution of strategy focused on

investments in the core brands innovative pipeline and international markets that

provide us with the greatest growth opportunities Under the direction of our Global

Leadership Team these investments produced products promotions programs and

merchandising across all channels generating significant organic growth We achieved

Net sales growth of 7.6% and

Adjusted earnings per share-diluted of $3.72 an increase of 14.8% over 2012
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2013 Growth in Net Sales

In millions of dollars

$3.80

$3.70

$3.60

$3.50

$3.40

$3.30

$3.20

$3.10

$3.00

2013 Growth in Adjusted Earnings

per Share-Diluted

Because we surpassed our expectations our executive officers earned above-target

annual cash incentive awards under the OHIP for 2013

We delivered for our stockholders

Total shareholder return or TSR was 37.4% during 2013 reflecting

The 2013 year-end stock price of $97.23 34.6% increase above the 2012 year-end

price of $72.22 and

dividend yield of 1.86% which included mid-year increase to our quarterly

dividend of over 15%

Our TSR for the three years ended December 31 2013 of 120.8% was at the top of our

Financial Peer Group as described beginning on page 57 over ten percentage points

higher than any other company in our Financial Peer Group and more than double that of

the Standard Poors 500 Index

Total Shareholder Return

December 31 2010 through December 31 2013

Hershey

Financial Peer Group

Median

SP 500

This TSR performance together with the strong financial performance we generated

during 2011 2012 and 2013 merited substantially above-target payouts of performance

stock unit or PSU awards for the three-year performance period ended in 2013

14.8% growth vs 2012

$3.72

2012 2013
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We enhanced our Global Leadership Team

In May 2013 we implemented changes to the roles and responsibilities of certain

members of our Global Leadership Team to further enhance our ability to execute our

business strategy accelerate international growth and broaden leadership talent

Mr Alfonso then Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer became

President International

Ms Buck then Senior Vice President Chief Growth Officer became President

North America and

Mr Tacka then Vice President Special Projects became Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

No changes were made to the compensation of Mr Alfonso or Ms Buck as result of

their new roles We increased Mr Tackas annual base salary target award level under

OHIP and the long-term incentive program and we awarded stock options and PSUs in

recognition of his becoming CFO In addition the title for Mr ODay previously Senior

Vice President Global Operations was changed to Senior Vice President Chief Supply

Chain Officer to better reflect his current responsibilities

We continued to follow best practices

Our executive compensation program features many best practices

Pay-for-performance substantial percentage of each of our named executive

officers total target direct compensation is variable performance-based

compensation For example the percentage is 85% for our CEO

Performance measures support strategic objectives The performance measures we

use for our variable performance-based compensation reflect strategic and operating

objectives we believe will create long-term value for our stockholders

Appropriate risk-taking We set achievable performance goals that are centered

around our publicly-announced financial expectations which we believe will not

encourage risk taking outside the range of risk inherent in our business plan

No golden parachute excise tax gross-ups No executive officer nor any other

employee is entitled to golden parachute excise tax gross-up in the event of

Change in Control

Double-trigger benefits in the event of Change in Control In the event of

Change in Control the payment of the severance benefits and the acceleration of

vesting of time-based long-term incentive awards granted after April 2011 are

double-trigger benefits The severance payments and accelerated vesting of

continuing incentive awards will not occur unless there is also qualifying

termination of employment upon or after the Change in Control

No repricings or exchanges of underwater stock options Our long-term equity

incentive plan prohibits repricing or exchange of underwater stock options without

stockholder approval

Significant stock ownership guidelines Our senior executive officers are required to

accumulate and hold stock equal to multiple of base salary If an executive officer

has not met his or her ownership requirement in timely manner the officer is

required to retain portion of shares received under long-term incentive awards

until the requirements are met

Anti-hedging policy Our executive officers directors and other insiders are

prohibited from entering into hedging transactions related to our stock
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Protective covenants For the protection of the Company we require our named

executive and other senior officers to enter into confidentiality and restrictive

covenants agreement as condition of receipt of long-term incentive awards Failure

to comply with the agreement may subject the executive to cancellation of awards

and requirement to repay amounts received from awards

Additional information and analysis regarding these events and actions is provided in the series of

questions and answers below

What are the objectives of our executive compensation program

We create strong alignment between the interests of our executive officers and our stockholders

We design compensation programs that help achieve our business strategies which build

stockholder value over the long term We do this by

Considering industry and market practices to establish pay levels that attract retain and

motivate executive talent

Cultivating high performance culture by linking the compensation of our named

executive officers directly to Company financial and stock performance In general

variable compensation represented between 68% and 85% of our named executive officers

target total direct compensation

Setting challenging individual goals that directly link each executives compensation to

the Companys overall strategic goals

Balancing achievement of short- and long-term financial results by focusing incentive

compensation for all executive officers on realization of both annual and long-term

growth and earnings expectations

Using our Common Stock for long-term incentive compensation to ensure that

significant amount of the executive officers total compensation earned fluctuates with

the long-term market value of our Common Stock and

Requiring substantial stock ownership by all executives Named executive officers are

required to hold three to five times their base salary in Company stock

These actions are described in the discussion that follows

What do we reward

We reward results Our executive officers and employees are engaged by high performance

culture that requires and recognizes both Company and individual performance

Achievement of individual performance objectives is considered along with other factors in the

determination of base salary and annual incentive compensation

significant amount of our executive officers pay depends upon achieving our financial goals If we

achieve strong financial performance relative to our goals and our stock price appreciates

executives will earn significant rewards from our annual incentive program and from long-term

incentives If performance falls below our goals incentive pay will be lower or not paid at all If our

stock price lags compensation realized under these equity programs will be reduced or eliminated
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What was the result of the say-on-pay vote at our 2013 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders What was our response

Last year our stockholders overwhelmingly approved our say-on-pay resolution with more than

95% of the votes cast by the holders of Common Stock and more than 99% of the combined votes

cast by the holders of the Common Stock and Class Common Stock Our approach to executive

compensation in 2013 is substantially the same as the approach stockholders approved in 2012 In

keeping with the preference expressed by our stockholders at the 2011 annual meeting of

stockholders our Board has committed to having an annual say-on-pay vote as described

beginning on page 88 We plan to next ask stockholders to express preference for the frequency

of the say-on-pay vote at our 2016 annual meeting

Who is responsible for making executive compensation decisions

The Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of our Board of Directors or the

Committee has primary responsibility for making executive compensation decisions Our CEOs

compensation is approved by the independent members of the Board of Directors based on the

recommendations of the Committee

What process does the Committee follow to implement the executive compensation

program

The Committee operates under charter approved by the Board of Directors and carries out the

responsibilities outlined on pages 17 through 19 of this proxy statement Information from

Mercer US Inc or Mercer the Committees independent executive compensation consultant

input from our CEO except for matters regarding his own pay and assistance from our internal

compensation specialists are used by the Committee to make decisions and conduct its annual

review of the Companys executive compensation program

The Committee works with rolling agenda Its heaviest workload occurs during the first quarter

of the year as decisions are made with respect to annual and long-term incentives earned for the

prior years performance and it finalizes the design target-setting and compensation levels for

the current years base salaries and incentive programs The Committee also reviews and

approves this Compensation Discussion and Analysis During the second and third quarters the

Committee reviews materials relating to peer group composition tally sheets competitive pay

analysis and other information that forms the foundation for future decisions The Committee

uses the third and fourth quarters to finalize decisions relating to the peer group and plan design

for use in the upcoming year

Does the Committee use benchmarking in its decision-making What peer group is

used

The Committees annual compensation review for 2013 included an analysis of data compiled by

Mercer comparing the Companys executive compensation levels against peer group of

publicly-held consumer products companies that we call the Compensation Peer Group
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Companies in the Compensation Peer Group used to benchmark executive and director pay levels

for 2013 were

Brown-Forman Corporation Hilishire Brands

Campbell Soup Company Hormel Foods Corporation

ConAgra Foods Inc Kellogg Company
Constellation Brands Inc McCormick Company Incorporated

Dean Foods Company Molson Coors Brewing Company
Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc Ralcorp Holdings Inc

Energizer Holdings Inc The Clorox Company
General Mills Inc The Smucker Company

Heinz Company

The Compensation Peer Group companies were selected by the Committee following an August

2012 review by Mercer of publicly-held companies offering products/services similar to ours with

annual revenue within range of approximately one-half to two times our annual revenue and

market capitalization within reasonable range of our market capitalization The 2013

Compensation Peer Group was composed of companies with annual revenues ranging from

$2.7 billion to $14.9 billion measured as of the most recent fiscal year end and market

capitalization ranging from $2.9 billion to $24.8 billion measured in the second quarter of 2012
Hersheys annual revenues of $6.1 billion and market capitalization of $14.9 billion were at the

57th and 84th percentiles respectively Except for Hillshire Brands all of the companies in our

2013 Compensation Peer Group were included in our 2012 Compensation Peer Group Hillshire

Brands was added to the Compensation Peer Group for 2013 Sara Lee Corporation included in

2012 was removed due to its 2012 split into two companies the larger of which was Hillshire

Brands At the time of the split the projected annual revenue of Hillshire Brands fell within the

target range and the company was added at the recommendation of Mercer

Mercers benchmarking of our executive officers compensation is based primarily on the

Compensation Peer Group Data from the Compensation Peer Group is supplemented by

composite data from consumer products companies ranging in size from $3 billion to $15 billion in

approximate annual sales This information is included in three national surveys conducted by
Aon Hewitt Mercer and Towers Watson The use of the survey composite provides us with

broader industry-specific information regarding pay levels at consumer products companies not

only for our named executive officers but also for other executives reporting to our CEO

Mercer provided the Committee and Company with report summarizing compensation levels at

the 25th 50th and 75th percentiles of the Compensation Peer Group and the survey composite data for

positions comparable to those held by each of our executive officers The Committee also received an

analysis from Mercer comparing the target total cash compensation base salary plus target annual

incentive and target total direct compensation base salary plus target annual incentive plus target

grant value of long-term incentives for each of the executive officers against these benchmarks For

retention and competitive considerations the Company targets each executive officers total cash

compensation and total direct compensation levels which include the officers base salary annual

incentive and long-term incentive at the 50th percentile of the Compensation Peer Group data or

survey composite data applicable to his or her position The Committees final determinations with

respect to base salary target annual incentive compensation and target long-term incentive

compensation reflect consideration of the Companys and the executive officers performance

internal comparisons and other factors the Committee deems appropriate As result of these

factors the target total cash compensation and target total direct compensation of our named

executive officers in 2013 was generally set around or below the medians
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What other information does the Committee consider when making executive

compensation decisions

In addition to the benchmark and other competitive landscape data the Committee also receives

and considers tally sheet information as described below relating to the CEO and each of his

direct reports Much of this information is reflected on pages 64 through 87 of this proxy statement

During 2013 the Committee received detailed tally sheets prepared by management and reviewed

by Mercer Each tally sheet captures comprehensive compensation benefits and stock ownership

data The tally sheets provide the Committee with complete picture of each executives current

and projected compensation and the amount of each element of compensation or other benefit the

executive would receive in the event of voluntary or involuntary termination retirement

disability or death The Committee considers this information as well as the benchmark

information when making compensation decisions

Do costs and tax rules play role

An important factor in the Committees deliberations is the anticipated cost of the various

components of executive compensation Accounting treatment also is taken into consideration in

the design and implementation of the annual and long-term incentive programs

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code or IRC limits the Companys ability to deduct

certain compensation in excess of $1 millionpaid to our CEO or to our other named executive

officers who are employed on the last day of the fiscal year other than officers who served as CFO

during the year This limitation does not apply to compensation that qualifies as

performance-based under applicable Internal Revenue Service regulations or that is paid after

termination of employment The Committee has considered the effect of Section 162m of the IRC

on the Companys executive compensation program It is the Committees opinion that in

administering the incentive compensation components of the Companys executive compensation

program it will attempt to satisfy the requirements for deductibility under Section 162m of the

IRC However the Committee is authorized to exercise discretion in structuring incentive

compensation awards and in determining payments in relation to levels of achievement of

performance goals and believes that the total compensation program for executive officers should

be managed in accordance with the objectives outlined in the Companys compensation philosophy

and in the best overall interests of the Companys stockholders Accordingly compensation paid

by the Company may not be deductible because such compensation exceeds the limitations or

does not meet the performance-based or other requirements for deductibility under

Section 162m of the IRC

Section 409A of the IRC specifies certain rules and limitations regarding the operation of our

deferred compensation plan and other retirement programs Failure to comply with these rules

could subject participants in those plans and programs to additional income tax and interest

penalties We believe our plans and programs comply with Section 409A of the IRC
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Element

Bai salary

One Tlershe Incentive

Program Annual ash

Forms

Purpose

Foundation of overall pay package

Attract and retain executives with proven

skills and limdership abilities tht wdl

enable us to be successful

unable compensation tied to

achievement of short term annual

financial goals

Reward executives for successful

execution of stiategic priorities

Performance oriented pay that rewards

long-term financial performance and

stockholder value creation

Langer Aerm vesting and payment

provisions balance compensation

opportunity and risk and encourage

sustained performance and retention

The folloumg charts illustrat

executive officers

Target Iota Direct Compensation

EO
farget eta Direct ompensation

Other Named Fxecntive Officers

how are base salaries determined

The initial base salary for new executive officer iv fleets his or hei responsibilities and

expr ierue salaries paid other companies fbi comparable executive talent and consideration of

What are the individual components of the executive compensation program and why
does the Company choose to use these components of pay What percentage of the

nanied executive officers target compensation is dependent on performance9

Our core executive compensation program includes three in elements surnmariied in the

followmg table

Percent of Named
Executive Officers

Target Total Direct

Compensation

15 to 32

19 to 22

41 to 66Lot
.g

Term Incentive

Awards PSUs end

Stock Options

the tarfet total direct cornpenation of our C110 and our named

LvarabkperrorInaaeeatasedonpematkrnss%J
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In 2013 participatmg executive officers were eligible to earn individual GulP awards expressed

as percentage of base salary contingent upon attainment of Company and individual

performance objectives If target leels are achieved each of the named executive officers would he

dig ble to receive an annual incentive award based on the following target percentages

2013 Target One Hershey Ineentive Program Percntage
Name Ue of Base Salary

Bilbxey 130ff

I. lacka 70

Alfonso 75ff

MGliuck 75

ODay

Turner

In determining the target percentage for each of the executive officers the Committee compared
the ovel of target total cash compensation base salary arid target OHIP award to the benchmark

range of the median percentilc level for his or her counterparts in the Compensation Peer Group
the survey composite or blend of thc two For each of the named executive officers in 2013 the

target total cash compensation gener ally fell between the 200 and 550 percentiles of target total

cash compc risation for comparable positions

The final award earned under the OHIP by participating executive officers is deter mined by
mul iplying the executive officers base salary the applicable target percentage and performance

scor ranging from Off to 200ff based on Company performance and performance aeainst

mdi idual performance goals The Company performance goals are establirhed at the hegmriing of

eacf year by the Coinmitte lndhidual performrnce goals also are established at that time If

performance scores exceed the objectives an individual executive officer may receive rirore than

his or her target percentage If scores cre below tai get the executive officers OHIP payout will he

below his or her target percentage suhj ct to no award if performance is below threshold leels
For xecutive officers in 2013 the weighting of Company financial performance metrics accounted

for 65ff of their target award under the program The remaining 35 of the tar et award was
based upon individual performance toward achievement of up to five individual performance goals

focued on strategic priorities applicahlc to the named executive officer position

rllli 65i35ff weighring of Conipany fi rancial perfbrmance and individual permorinance reflected

coat nuatmon of the 65ff/35 weighting used in 2012 change from the 15o/25 split used prior

to 2012 The Committee continued the higher individual perfbrmance goil weighting to reinforce

the increased focus on execution of the Companys top strategic priorities

What were the performance targets under the 2013 OHIP Wet they achieved
What were the final OHIP payouts for 2013

The financial perfhrmance metrics for our executive officers 0BhP aisards reflected our resultw

oriented pay forperformance compensation philosophy The Company Performance objectives for

the 2012 OHIP participants centered the following targot

Consolidated net sales of $7074 billion 65ff increase from 2012

Adjusted earnings pci share diluted of $361 an 11 increase from 2012 md
Operating cash flow of $974 mnilhon 17fff increase from 2012 Operating cash flow is

defined as the average of cash from operations less pension contributions ai

commodities hedging transactions measured in five 12 month periods ending on the laht

day of fiscal veal 2012 and each quamtcr of fiscal year 2013
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Mr Bilbrey recommended and the Committee agre that Ms Buck earned an mnduidual

perfbrmance score of 75

The individual peiformance goals for Mr ODay our Senior Vice Presidr nt Chief Supply Chain

Offi er and until May 13 2013 our Senior Vice President Global 0pe ttion mcluded focus arm

sourcing expansion in the Asia market and operatonal support for strategic innovations Based

upon Mr 0Iays success regarding sourcing expansion in the Asim irraiket and delivery of

oper itional support for strategic movation Mr Bilhrey recommended and tin Committee

agreed that Mr ODay earned an individual performanc score of i0

For Vis Turner our Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary the indivdual

performance goas centered on expansiorì of legal team expertise to upp wt our global growth and

enh ncement of corpom at governance Based upon Ms Turners success in di vdoping capabilities

to support our global operations and enhancement of corporate govei nance Mr l-hlbr

recommended and the Committee agreed that Turner earned an individual perlhrmance

score of 150fi

Bascd upon 65U weight fhr the Conipany financial score of ta8 of target and 31 wi ight

for their individual peiforniaine scores our named executive offuer earned the following 1013

01 lIP awards

Combined
Percent 2013

Award of Target OHIP
Target Earned Award

Name $1

Bilbrey 130 172.78 2526 686

Tacka 70 l5L8 139 178

Alfonso 75 164.03 762666

Buck 15 164 03 658 414

ODay 65 15528 545957

IV Turner 60 155.28 456483

Target award based upon actual saliry receiv to 2013

Ii cludes OHiP as aid at irget lot the pot tio of the ar prior to Mr Taka
p4

omott to to eat ir ce lb esident

iief Financial Ollicci

See Column of the Summarl Compensation Table for inior ruation elating to tin amount of

OHIP payments made to the nam executive officers

What are the elements of the long4erm incentive program

We use awards of PSUs ock options and Restricted Stock Units or RSUs to provide long ti rmn

incer tire compensation that aligns the interests of our executives with our stockholders These

mwards are based on pi ovisions of the Incentive Plan The Coirimittee custoniarily an ard

long term incentive grants including stock options to executivc officers other seniom executives

arid hey managerial employees in February of each year following the release offourth quarter

arid annual financial results

2013 One Hershey Incentive Program Awards

Company
Financial Individual

Performance Performance
Award lcore Sent

Targetti 65 Weighting 35 Weighting

Ut

1462334 158.13 200

2893432 15813 140

464942 15813 175

101388 158.13 175

351585 15813 150

293965 15813 150
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The Committee selected these metrics to measure performance against internal targets aligned

irith our stockholders interests and investment returns offered by our peer ompanies Based on

input from Mercer the Committee selected 13 food beveiag and consumer products companies
with median revenue of $76 billion for usc in assessing our Companys 2011 2013 PSR against

the food and beverage industry We refer to these companies as our Financial Peer Group The

Financial Peer Group is highperforming group of cornpames with whom ne compte for

investors in the food and beverage industry

Companies included in the 13 member 2011 Financial Peer Group re

Campbell Soup Company
Dean Foods Company
Del Monte Fo ds Company
Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc

Gem ma Mills Inc

Heinz Company
Hon mel Foods Corporal ion

2011 Adjusted Earnings

per Share Diluted

2012 Adjusted Earnings

pe SharE 1iluted

2013 Adjusted Earnings

pe SharmDiluted

Tots

$2 76

2% Increase

$310

increa

$3 61
11 4R increase

$2 82
1O6i increase

81.24

14 inCrease

$3721

14 increase

in 2012 thc ornpanv began excluding non servde elated pension mts born the calculntion of adjusted eaininge

pn shari diluted We believe that 0r excluding nonservice iel ited nsion costs we an pros idiug iflVE stor with

Kel1og Company
Kraft Foods Inc

McCormick Company mu orporated

Molson Coors Brewing Conipan

Sara Lee Corporation

The Smucker Company

Due to privatization of the Del Monte 1oods Company in 2011 the spin offs by Kraft Foods Inc

and Sara Lee Corporation in 2012 and pnivatization of Ilemi during 2013 the Committee

emc ved these companies fi oin the Financial Peer Group for the purpose of ineasur ing three eai

relative TSR for the 201 L2013 performance cycle and to the extent applicable the 2012 2014 and

201320I performance cycles

The Gommittce apprcnres thc annual adjusted earnings per share diluted target for cach year of the

three year perfbrmance cycle at the bcginning of the perfoi mance year The annu ul component
allors the Committee to establish performance targets that reflect current business conditions thus

strer gthening the link hetwecn pay and per forrnance for each year of the threc year ycic Payment
of any amounts earned including amounts based on the annual performance goals will be made in

shares of our Common Stock at the conclusion of the three year performance cycle The ma imum
award for airy pan ticipant in performance cycle is 250c of the contingent targct award

Tang Is forth 2011 2013 performance cycle and the Company TSR and finam ial performance

during the 2011 2013 perforinancc cycle were as follows

2011 2013 PSU Performance Cycle

Metric

Total Shareholder Return

three year Compound Annual

iowth Rate AGE in Adjusted

Er nings pm Share Diluted

Target
Iticream vS

Prior Year Actual

Periormanes

50 Percentile

70 \GR

Actual

Pet lortirunee

lncreqse vs
Prior Year

100 Percentile

Target
Awai

Co

50.00

12 51

12.50

124

It aO

10000

Performanes

Score

Ce

12a.00

1125

15.00

23 99

20.98
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The actual Company results for 2013 of $3.72 of adjusted earnings per share-diluted reflected

14.8% increase from 2012 and exceeded the 2013 target of $3.61 As result 11.16% of the final

award was earned for this metric in the 2012-2014 and 2013-2015 performance cycles These

PSUs will be paid at the end of each of the applicable three-year performance cycles to

participating executives who are entitled to payouts under the terms of the program

See Column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 64 Columns through of the

Grants of Plan-Based Awards table on page 69 Columns and of the Outstanding Equity

Awards table on page 71 and Columns and of the Option Exercises and Stock Vested table

on page 73 for more information about PSUs awarded to the named executive officers

How are stock options used within the Companys long-term incentive program What

process is followed in the granting of stock options

Stock options are an important element of our long-term incentive program enabling us to align

the interests of executive officers with those of stockholders In general stock options are awarded

annually to the Companys senior executive group as well as to other key managerial employees
Stock options entitle the holder to purchase fixed number of shares of Common Stock at set

price during specified period of time The right to exercise the options is subject to vesting

schedule Because stock options vest over time and only have value if the price of our Common
Stock increases they encourage efforts to enhance long-term stockholder value

The Committee sets guidelines for the value of stock options to be awarded based on competitive

compensation data In 2013 the target number of stock options awarded to each executive officer

was determined by multiplying the executive officers base salary by one-half of his or her target

long-term incentive award percentage divided by the Black-Scholes value of each option on the

grant date The Black-Scholes option-pricing model is described in Note 17 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements contained in the 2013 Annual Report to Stockholders that accompanies this

proxy statement The actual number of options awarded may vary from the target level based on

an executive officers individual performance evaluation

Stock options awarded in 2013 vest in equal increments over four years and have ten-year term
As required by the stockholder-approved Incentive Plan the options have an exercise price equal

to the closing market price of the Common Stock on the NYSE on the date of the award

To ensure flexibility in providing awards for recruitment retention performance recognition or in

conjunction with promotion the Committee is authorized under the Incentive Plan to establish

stock option pool an RSU pooi and separate CEO discretionary equity pool for use by our CEO
for such purposes The pools are available for approximately 12 months from the date created The

Committee determines whether to establish any or all of these three pools annually Options and

RSUs remaining in any pool at the end of the period do not carry over to pools established for

subsequent period The CEO may not make discretionary awards from any pool to the Companys
executive officers Stock option and RSU awards from the CEO pools as well as awards from the

CEO discretionary equity pooi are made monthly according to an annually pre-determined

schedule The exercise price for the options is based on the closing price of our Common Stock on

the date of the award

See Column of the Summary Compensation Table Columns through of the Grants of

Plan-Based Awards table Columns through of the Outstanding Equity Awards table and

Columns and of the Option Exercises and Stock Vested table for more information on stock

options awarded to the named executive officers
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How are RSUs used within the long-term incentive program

The Committee awards RSUs to executive officers and other senior executives from time to time

as special incentives RSUs also are awarded by the Committee to replace compensation forfeited

by newly-hired executive officers and by the CEO to employees other than executive officers from

the RSU pool described previously In 2013 the Committee did not make any RSU awards to any

of the named executive officers

What retirement benefits are provided to the executive officers

Based on their date of hire executive officers participate in the same defined benefit pension and

defined contribution 401k plans as do other salaried employees of the Company IRC regulations

do not permit the Company to use base salary and other compensation paid above certain limits to

determine the benefits earned by the executive officers under tax-qualified plans rFhe Company

maintains defined benefit Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan or DB SERP defined

contribution Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan or DC SERP defined benefit

Compensation Limit Replacement Plan or CLRP and Deferred Compensation Plan to provide

these and additional benefits that are comparable to those offered by our competitors Under the

provisions of the Deferred Compensation Plan our named executive officers may elect to defer

payments from the DB SERP DC SERP CLRP the OHIP and PSU and RSU awards but not

stock options

The DB SERP was closed to new participants in 2006 No new participants have been or will be

added to the DB SERP Executive officers and Senior Vice Presidents reporting to the CEO not

eligible for the DB SERP are considered by the Committee for participation in the DC SERP In

comparison the DC SERP typically yields lower benefit than the DB SERP upon retirement

Executive officers eligible for the Companys qualified defined benefit pension plan who are not

eligible for the DB SERP participate in the CLRP The Company believes that the DB SERP

DC SERP CLRP and Deferred Compensation Plan help in the aggregate to attract and retain

executive talent as similarplans are often components of the executive compensation programs

within our Compensation Peer Group The DC SERP was established as part of our Deferred

Compensation Plan and is not separate plan

See the Pension Benefits table and accompanying narrative beginning on page 74 and the

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation table and accompanying narrative beginning on page 76 for

more information regarding the DB SERP DC SERP CLRP and other retirement benefits

What role do executive perquisites play in the total compensation package for the

executive officers

Executive perquisites are kept by the Committee to minimal level relative to an executive

officers total compensation and do not play significant role in our executive compensation

program The perquisites that we do provide personal use of Company aircraft security services

for our CEO and financial and tax counseling are of the type that we believe promote the

efficiency effectiveness and focus of our executive officers in the performance of their duties See

the footnotes to Column of the Summary Compensation Table for information regarding the

perquisites received by our named executive officers

Our CEO and the other named executive officers are eligible to participate in our Gift Matching

Program on the same basis as other employees retirees or their spouses Through the Gift

Matching Program we match contributions made to one or more accredited colleges or
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universities on dollar-for-dollar basis up to maximum aggregate contribution of $5000 per

employee annually These matching contributions are not considered compensation and are not

included in Column of the Summary Compensation Table

Has the Company implemented provisions designed to protect the Company such

as conditioning compensation on restrictive covenants

In 2008 the Company initiated program for executive officers conditioning the receiving of PSUs

and other long-term incentive awards and for new executive officers also as condition of their

employment on the execution of an agreement designed to protect the Company with certain

restrictive covenants In 2013 the Company expanded the program to include certain employees

along with executive officers As is the case with the executive officers these employees are

required to enter into the Employee Confidentiality and Restrictive Covenant Agreement or

ECRCA as condition of the receipt of long-term incentive awards and for new employees also

as condition of employment

The terms of the ECRCA prohibit the executive officer or employee from misusing or disclosing the

Companys confidential information competing with the Company in specific categories for period of

12 months following separation from employment recruiting or soliciting the Companys employees or

disparaging the Companys reputation in any way For those officers or employees based outside the

U.S the restrictive covenants and terms may be modified to comply with local laws

Failure to comply with the provisions of the ECRCA may result in cancellation of the unvested

portion of PSU and RSU awards cancellation of any unexercised stock options and requirement

for repayment of amounts received from equity awards during the last year of employment as well

as any amounts received from the DB SERP or DC SERP

Has the Company entered into any employment agreements with or does the

Company provide severance or Change in Control plans for its executive officers

We have not entered into employment agreements with any named executive officer except for

Mr Bilbrey our CEO

During 2012 we entered into an employment agreement with Mr Bilbrey The Committee and

independent members of the Board determined that doing so was appropriate since we had

entered into an employment agreement with Mr Bilbreys predecessor and believed we would

have been required to enter into an employment agreement with any individual recruited to

become our CEO from another company Mr Bilbreys employment agreement does not include

golden parachute excise tax gross-up feature

All of the named executive officers participate in our Executive Benefits Protection Plan Group

3A or EBPP 3A The EBPP 3A is intended to help us attract and retain qualified management
employees and maintain stable work environment in the event of activity that could potentially

result in Change in Control The severance protection provided under EBPP 3A upon Change

in Control is double trigger The terms of the plan generally provide that covered executive

officer whose employment with the Company terminates in qualifying circumstances within two

years after Change in Control of the Company is entitled to certain severance payments and

benefits The EBPP 3A also provides severance benefits in the event of involuntary termination

without Cause unrelated to Change in Control or voluntary termination for Good Reason within

two years after election of new CEO Cause and Good Reason are defined in the EBPP 3A The

EBPP 3A does not include golden parachute excise tax gross-up feature
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See the discussion beginning on page 78 for information regarding the EBPP 3A and payments

that would be due to our named executive officers under that plan in the event of an applicable

termination of employment or Change in Control as defined in the EBPP 3A

Do we require our executive officers to hold Company stock

The Company believes that requiring executive officers to hold significant amounts of our

Common Stock strengthens the alignment of the executive officers with the interest of

stockholders and promotes achievement of long-term business objectives Our executive stock

ownership policy has been in place for more than 20 years Ownership requirements are reviewed

annually by Mercer and were updated in 2008 to better align with external market comparisons

provided by Mercer

Executives with stock ownership requirements have five years from their initial election to their

position to accumulate and hold the minimum number of shares required For purposes of this

requirement shares include shares of our Common Stock that are owned by the executive

unvested time-based RSUs PSUs earned for the annual segments of open performance cycles as

well as vested RSUs and PSUs that have been deferred by the executive as common stock units

under our Deferred Compensation Plan It is anticipated that executives will hold significant

number of the shares earned from PSU and RSU awards and the exercise of stock options to satisfy

their obligations Currently minimum stockholding requirements for executive officers and other

executives range from one to five times base salary as described in the table below The dollar value

of shares which must be acquired and held equals multiple of the individual executives base

salary Stock holding requirements are updated whenever change in base salary occurs

Position Stock Ownership Level

CEO times base salary

COO times base salary

CFO and direct reports of the CEO times base salary

Other executives subject to stockholding requirements times base salary

Failure to reach the minimum within the five-year period results in notification letter to the

executive with copy to the CEO and requirement that future stock option exercises and PSU

payments be settled by retaining at least 50% of the shares of Common Stock received until the

minimum ownership level is attained The Committee receives an annual summary of each

individual executives ownership status to monitor compliance

As of February 28 2014 the record date for the annual meeting all of the named executive

officers exceeded their ownership requirements
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Compensation Committee Report

To Our Stockholders

We have reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

beginning on page 44 Based on that review and discussion we have recommended to the Board of

Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement

Submitted by the Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of the Board of Directors

Robert Cavanaugh Chair

Mary Kay Haben
Robert Malcolm

Anthony Palmer

David Shedlarz

The independent members of the Board of Directors who are not members of the Compensation

and Executive Organization Committee join in the Compensation Committee Report with respect

to the approval of Mr Bilbreys compensation

Pamela Arway
Charles Davis

James Mead

James Nevels

Thomas Ridge

Commenced service on the Board of Directors and Committee on August 2013
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Summary Compensit ion Table

flie foIIou ig table and accompanying footnotes provide infor matron regarding compens ition

cx mcd ffi Id or paid to indis icluals holding the positions of Chief Principal cutive Ofiicm

and Chief Principal Financial Officer during 20 1$ and the three most highly ottipt misttcd of our

other executive officers We refer to hose executive officers OUT named executive officers I1he

fo lowing table provides information with reapect to 2013 as well as 01 and 201 compcnsitmon

icr required bince Mr Tacka is not named executive olircer in he on pUny 2012 or 2011

proxy staternc nt the information on Mr Tackas 2012 and 2011 compensatic is not rc quired to be

included in the table Ms urner oi or the ompany during 2112 lien fore no compensation ic

meporic to hex for 2011

Summary Compensation Table

Name and
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Grants of P1anBased Awards

Fin fo lowing table and xplanatoiy lootiiotes proride information with regard to the potential cmh
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Outs inding Equity Awards

fhe following ible provide information regai ding unexercised stock options and unve ted stocl
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Th following table ind explanatory footnotes provide inform ition itli regard to amount paid to

or cc ceived our namer executire officers during 2013 as result of the ext rcise of Stock options

the vestin1 at stock an ards

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

2013

Option Awards11 Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Number of Shan Value

Acquired on Realized Acquired on Realized

Exer ise on Exercise Vesting on Vesil ig

Narre

ci ci

Bilbrey 110413 3706723 79028 7684892

146

Tacka 16252 66535/ 8757 8a111l

Alfonso 15700 649509 23135 2249416

Iluck 75497 3151749 15783 315Sl

ODay 67802 3102133 19136 1860593

Turrur ooQ 691330

lhe values boa in Color in hI present he number of stock options xercisc ci tin inn exccutls officer

lui in 201 md Column CI epi esent thc marker valor at the lime of ererci of the barr pun hsr ci mIct

XOicS pnce paid

the cx option of Ms urner lie slur shoan in Column uiclcidc thc numhci ci PSL omen icon the

01 211 ierfiirmance cycle that ended on lccember 31 201 dc femnnnc by the onirrnttr or th of

Mr Bilbrc determined h1 thc independent members of our Board fe umner joined the oi opany in 201 an did

sot par icip ite in the 2111 2013 perfoi mince cycle he results of thc 2011 2113 per ormance ci
cit hat ended oo

Dr cc inher 31 2013 exceeded thc financ nil targets established at the st of of thr perform nec cyck lie in

at luded in Cnluniri reflect payment af IG 22k of target Messrs Bdbrey icka tmrlfonso and lay and Buck

cckoed payment in Comnion Stock for their awaid in Febru icy 2014 In accoidancr vith the ft ms of the PSI aw ird

cli PSIJ represents one share of our oinmon Stocks alued in Column Ic at f9 thc in ni price of our Con won

trick on th NYSI on nec mber 31 2013

or Mi On my arid Ms ui or olunin Id includes thr numb of IlStJs hat tmd in 2111 wolf of iimm Se

msard hr me ow ird ne dr serched in rnnrr rleiaii in hr folboming fooinne

in lebrnaiy 19 201 62o lltstJs anarded to Mi Bilbrr in 2009 cited Mr Iiihrc elected is delec too of lb

waid On lie vesting datr of the lihUs Mr Bilbi ey receivrd ca paynient of 1St which as equiv ilc of to

iivicieridc that would have been earned had he held Common Stock instead of RSk dunn th sting prriod

Vim Bilbrey tmthied the net cimlm ccc eived aftem ixes to inert tax obligations ciii flit 1cm red por two of hi an ard

suIting in dcfei ral of oIl 625 shines Based on Mc Bilbi ci deferral election these 6O RhI ill br paid as oh cc

of Common Stock nr of applicable taxes upon his separation corn sen vice from the onipan ubjeet fri hr

eqnirr ments of Section 409A of the JRC

\ugust 901 1000 fiSt an irded trl Ms lurner in 2012 or sir Ms Tm nei elm cOd to deeI SO of aim ad

md to meceime immediate payment in shames of thc Company ommnori Sfock for 20k cii thi aiim ci Irs the vekln
its of till fiSt Ms Turner received cash paynir nit of i191S4 ahich was cciuivdr otto dividend hi wool hate

ieen earner on the 5600 RS1 that werc defei red had silt held ominori Stock mnste loi fiSt doming thr me ing

ieririd VI urnr util ied tIe net ash received aIls taxe to lnret tax obli1 itlon no thc dcl red port ion of hr

in am mci hqumdatecl 111 1151 to rncet tax obligation rc suiting in defc 1111 of m499 Ocure of he on pain
onmamon St ick llasrd on Ms umners defei mal riectmon their 499 IlbUs ill hr paid uS sharr nit llnlnon Stonk it

if pplmcabl axes in rune substantially qua1 innud In tailments bernmnning one yeam foilon lImp hr ep atic momn

vice horn the Company subject fri the requirements of Section 409A of the IRC Ms liii rir nrcr ccl immediate

maynient cmi ham es of lie onipany oncmon Stock hr 1400 Rats In addition Ms rum ncr mcccii mci cm pai rmseot

of 42296 which was equivair otto diomderitts that would have lit Ill runcr don thc 1110 fiSt cd he held oinrn sri

4toi is inste of RS1 during the se brig plmiOd Ms Turner cctilizcd the net ca mccc mcd in ieu of dividends or Icc

-thUs and hquidrmted 411 1151.15 to Inert fox obligitions resulting Oi ec ipt of 99 shame the Irnpir

onummoci Stock
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from service subj to the pi ision of Section 409A of the HIP ftc fire ye us of service or

attalnin ag aa unless the pat ticipu terrninited for Cause Payment also ade to the

elate of participant who die prior to Ceparalion from service articip ink who come

disabled are 00 rested in their be in fit and continue to accrue additional Is ii hits for up to two

Id tional eire

flit followi n5 table and explanatory footnotes pi or ide information gii dint the present value of

benefits acer ied under the tax qualifir define benefit pension plan ipplicahic and the

DB SEIIP or CLRP for each named executwe officer as of Deer rnbei 31 2013 The iinount shosrn

for he DB SIeRP reflect the duction for the present value of the Ix nelits und the taxqualific

fined benefit nsi plan id Social Secur ty bent fits

Pension Benefits

2013

Name

l3ilbry

jy Purl

Alfonso

\l Buck

OIay
Fl furn

Phn Name

Tax Quahfiect Defined Benefit

ension Plan

DBSERP

ax Qualified Defined Ben fit

en mt Plan

DB SEEP

ax Qualified Defined Bendit

Pcn ion Pan

CLIIP

axQualified Defined Benefit

Pension Plan

Dli SEPP

Number
of Years
Ci edited
Servic

ci

IC

10

10

Present
Value of

Ac uniulated
Benefit

di

126 594

309023

38

09213

60 180

/28 39i

aymenIs
Duru

Last Fiscal

Ycai

hesr our at has beeti cab 01 iS It ra it ii and oilier Ii ptio iT lit \T ith those

for financial repm tiop Pu 050 set 11 ii Noie to the oni icys oniilidated li ianci ii mont Included

ii our 2012 viiniial Repoil tO St kholdr ohicli acco iipatiu thu proxy t.iteuni at actual
iy Tic nt could di fe

due IA p1 in is urnption he Ciii nated ie Dii SLRP hcn fut as of Lb iou thu di 20i1 for \Ir hi brey wa
13 181 069 rho stun it tr liD SFRP benefit as of December it MIT fbi Mi tar ha ii as 27 00 hr

aniounis ii band on fi asii imp asatiori Ct cmli elipihle ci cotir otto onu or th teruii of the DR RP

of Deco cit 11

Name

flilbrey

Ti lla
It Alfhru uo

ItT Duels

Oftay

lvi Iotrii

Final vc engr omponsatiori

996 OuO
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dcsinated Supplemental Core Ret rement ontiihution and are nc1udtd as All Other

Compensation in the ear earned lhese amounts also are included in Column of the

Non Qualified 1eft rn onipensation table in the year eat ned Mr OIat and Ms burner are

eligible for Supplemental Core Rctircr rent Contribution credit for 2013 Mi full

ct hi thm bent fit and ill re ir pay racnt for thi benefit at terrni ioa en5de me it

subject to the provisions of Section 409A of the IRC Ms lurner will vet in this benefit upon

corn tion of two years of employment If vested she will receive payment for tills nefit it

termination of employment subject to the provision of ection 409A of the 1RC

Mr Alfonso Mr ODav and Ms ui net art ehigihit to irtrci pate in our DC SlfRP pait of tht

1k ft rred ompen sat ion Ian The DC SI RP pror idea annual illocauon to the Defer red

Compensation Plan equal to percentage of compensatro deter mmcd by th ommittee in its

sole discretion In order to receive the annual DC SERP allocation an executive offuer must

defer in the 401k the maximum amount allowed by the Cc mpany or IRS and he emplost

on tire list dis of the plan var unlrss the erecutiv offiti terniiinit iflplO niint iftor ago

and completion of five years of continuous einployn ent preceding tc mnunation dies or bet ome
di saded Aftc completing five years of servic with the Company an executive officer vested in

Oh increments based on his or her age An executivc age 46 with five yeir of tn ice is

vest and an executive ac 56 with five yeirs of service lOOC Vt sted Mr \lfon os

Mm ODav and Ma Fur ncr annual DC SFJ1P allocation is equal to 12 1k of bast alar and

OHI awai fbi the ilendar ye in whether paid or defc ii Mr Alfbnso and Mr ODe ire 00

vest in their DC SERP benefit Ms urner is not vested in any portion of her DC 8BHP 1k cUt

he ollowi rig ible nd explanatory footnotes pror id infor in ati on elating to the activi 1k iii the

lefi rich Compensation Ian accounta of the named executive officer dunne 901 and the

aggreaie balance of the at counts as of December 31 201

NonQaalified 1eferr Compencation
2013

Fxeutiv Regisrant Aggregat ggi gato
ontributions in Contributions in Farnings in Aggrag ito Hal mar at

ast Fis al Last Fiscal Last mscal Withdrawal ast iscal

Yeai Ycam 12 am Disti butions Yeai Fnd
Nirne 1$ 1$ 44

Bilbrey Si081 137599 202a234 939 669

facka 20382 14932 122 286

IL Alfonso 206935 264703 624 131

Buck 16e3 888 37 789 1891714 043804

ODay 91k821 1128848 4900 343

L1i1 Turner a36427 116471 6630 68 Oil

olurnn et1cct arnou it thai oth rwloe ould hao hcen ccrv Mr ItitbicS lvi Brick and lo turra Our ri

211 poyr ni PS 11 11Sf war ii but ii cr di rr undr thr Dc for ad Corni oral tr or Plan Mr rr rut

Ma in 04 ccfcrred P5k aairrt Ms Pork defer red PSU ia aid

lie 021 dcfiri ad hi Mr lhrc rapri rn deter not of 2009 11Sf iwmrci that tr ebr nIna 2112

Prlbri rhO ad ihc nrc ci received lieu oi drvrdendo tIre PS door rr mted for rh lei it tO 11411 1121

iligmI loris on thr deieri cd award csnltng in dc ierrd of the full 132 shares thrt our Ihc Buc ci tin ia arc ro

not eec ci Ire Suninrmri trrn perisatrrrn taNr of 11210 proxi rt rtr 11 enc

77
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oc of OUT amed exccutiv officers was requirc to sign an Employee Confidc ntialrty and

ites nctive Cos nan \gr eemc nt or ECRCA as condition to eceiving long term inc ent ivc

compensation awards mc Ii as stock options and PS Jr The ECR oblig item thr cx utive officer

to not disclose 01 mi rie our confide tial and pi opi let information or for pci iod of 12 months

folk ig tco nU uatiwl earl ufl nr ac itier th it conipet oi Ian inn

1k imnation if err p1 rynient and Ch nge in Coat iol also impact P5k h5 Ind stock ption

award we have made or nell as benefite payable under our emp1cee benefit plaiv

re fhllowing narrative takc each tei urination of employment situ iti in rolu nt ary esignation

ter unation for Cause as defined in the EBPI IA death din bil ret ii ement miatiori

without Cause and resignation for mod Reason tas defined in the EIIPI and hangc in

intro of the ornpany and it demerit es the additional imount if any that the Company nould

pa or provide to Mesr Bilbrey Tacka Alfbnso and ODay Buck and Mc ncr then

beneficiaries as result he narr itive below and the amou nts shown refic cr1 an assuinpt ions

ye have made ur accordance with SM ruler have rs.un ed that the termninatio of

crrqioymcnt or Change in Control oc ned on cember 31 2013 and th it the value of share of

our Common Stock on that div was $9 the do kng price on the NYSE on 1c cenibei l1 201

in addition in keeping with SEC rules the following nan atire and amounts do ir elude

pay nents nd hr nefits which air not cnhaiieed by qualifying termination of mplor ment oi

hange in Control hese avmc nts and benefits elude

Benefit rcerued undcr the Com anys broad based tax ialifi 401k and tax qni iliflr

defined henef it cnsion p1 air

Acem aed vauatwmi pu health plan continuation and othc uniil ii aniouhu payabk nhein

employment let ni mates unde programs oenerally applicable to the Comnparl3 saai ied

inplover

Supplement nil 101 Match provided to the mmmc exccutii officer in fIr same bans

all hr employees eligible or Supplemental tO tffi Match

\7ested benefits accrued undra the 113 SE FtP Cl RP and account balance held under thr

Def ri ed Compen ation Plan previously described beginning on pace an /6 md

Stock options which have vc ted and become cxercisablr prior to terinui itmon

einploymc at or Change in Control

the payments and enefits de er dccliii the five buller points atnoc ii kn ra to fin

IbIk wing discussion as tl cxc cutive officers bested benefits

Voluntary Rmsiynation other than keszynnation tin Good con

We ire not obligated to pay amounts over and above vested benefits to named cxci utiv officer

uho voluntarily resign Vested stock options rna riot be cxercrs ifter thc namc executive

officers esignatu date unless thc officer is agc in oldc and in cc rtain inst inees ha air

rmnimum sei vice requiren ent ac dewribed in Freat merit of Stock Option upon hr tirc nrc at

lc ath or Di ibility helon

lerininaiwn for Cause

If ten ma te named executi me officers emplo3 rnent fo Cau defined in thc EBPP

we are not ol ligated to pam thr leer any amount 01cr tad rbomr the vemtc hr nefitc he

naived executive officer right to exercise ested options expires upon disc haige for Cause did

amneunts other ire payable under the 113 SEEP ire subject to foreitui at thc Company
discretmcm fri general discharge will he for Caun if th executir ha hr nm ieted of ft tony
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ITetifl iii htocli Opt ions upon IP tirernent Jeatli or Disability

In it event of retir ment death or disability vested stock options remain exerci able for nod

of three or hi years hut not latei than the option expiration date The rise pci iod is

Li 110 tn 1118 and cond tioiis oft icr individ Cal grant For awut ds granted prior to prii 201

reti ement was defined separation after attainment of ag lii For awards granh on or aftei

April 28 2011 retir meat is defined as separation after attainment of age a5 with at least fir

yea of 0111 flUOU5 serr ice

Options awn ded pnoi to April 28 2011 that are riot vested at the time of etirernent death or

hr bi1it nil ontinue to vest over the five yesi following termination in iccordance it ith tla

original vesting schedule established in the grant date Options granted or after

April 28 2011 that an not tested at the time of retirement death or disability is ill vest in flit

and the opt ions ivi remain exercisable for three or fire ars following temnu nation Options

granted in li ear af retirement are proratd based upsn the numbe of hill sah riclar mont

wirked in thityeai

lhe Ii 1lowrn table provi les the number of unvested stock options as of 1ecemher 31 2013 that

would have become vested and remained exercisable during the three year or tin me periods

folk wing death or disability ot retirement if applicable on December 31 231 and the aim of

the optiomn based on th excess of the fiur niarlet value of our Common Stock on

11 camber 31 2013 over the option cxercise price Messrs Bilbre Tacka Alfonco and 1mi

wc considered retirement eligible based on the provisions of all opt ion an ar on

camber 31 2013

Stock Options

Number Value1
Name

Bilhrey 478783 14283534

Tacka 5534a 102364

11 Alfonso 133234 536866

BU 116209 3808/61

ODay 11/709 4000484

Tin nor 4-6502 l98

taf number of uns red option of Deer nrbc 31 9113

1rhr nrc twec $9e 21 th closing icr for our omrnon atock on Deer oils Ii 2113 and the xc cci in Or

cacli iption Options once ted may he xercr ed it any tune dusrng thc three or Ii sear basr r1 npon thr

rovcr me of the grant afti ci inploi mont hr mrnatron diii in ceO cement after ige land at fit ar of

canto-moos ervice for optmoni granted on or after \pril 28 2011 ath or disahibti hut not lao-i than thc opto

ixpii ition ito

Ms urner is not considered retirement eligible fin any of her unvested option because slit does

not rave lire years of continuous rvice Ms Turner would fbrfeit 16 502 stock opti ms upon
voluntarr separat ion

81
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welfai benefits hr period of two years For executir es first covered by EBPP 3A after

February 22 2011 welfare benefit coserage will continue for 18 months Ms Turner is the only

nrmed excufive officer first covued by EBPP IA after February 22 2011 Coverage for disability

and participation in all tax qualified retirement plans will not he continued

if an executivc officer is under age aS and his or her employment is terminated for reasons other

than for Cause or if the executiv ofira er ter urinates for Good Reason tf executir will he

eligible to exercise all vested stock options and prorated portion of his or her unvested stock

options held on the date of eparation from service Ibr period of 120 days following separation If

the executive of fier is ige aS or older wit Ii five or more years of continuous service with respect

to stock options granted cn or after April 28 2011 and his or her employment is terminated foi

reasons other thaim for Cause or if the executive terminate for Good Reason the executive will be

enti led to cxercise provided any vesting requirement has been satisfed as of the date of exercise

any outstanding atock options until the earlier of three or five years based on the provisions of

the ndividual grant omn tIn date of ft nunation or the
xpir ation of the options addition if

an excutive fficers employment is terminated for reasons other than for Caue or if the

executi\e officer terminates for Good Reason the executive will receive payment for proratrd

portion of an urivested RSUs held on the date of separation from rr ice

The fbI lowing table su mmrrizt the incremental amounts that would have beeii payable to the

named executive officer had his or her employme it terminated on December 31 2013 under

circumstances entitling tIre officer to aeverance benefits as described above

One Hershey
Incentive Program Value of Benefits

at arget Continu ition otal

$1 ill

Bilbrey 2250000 925000 25053 5200053

.1 Parka 1000000 700000 23080 723080

11 Alfonso 1240000 930000 23 731 2193131

Buck 0/0 600 802 950 32808 906358

Iay 1082000 703 300 21409 806 /09

lurner2 735000 411000 7/91 1183 791

efic ctc pup end mcdccc dental oaon and hfb nnrance continuation piemic in paid Iv thc onir an dining the

so hlloriiig tc in ii ati for ccl ec uti except nec

lurnc began participation in the EBPi 3k in July 2Oi Br netit hown in ih ible abovc reflect cei ance

ayinent thr years of salary and an OH1P target payment for the mIne period Value ot Ben fits on mu ition

occlude pio5 cted medical lental v1ion and hip inuc ance continuation prenuiums pc
id b1 th canpany fbi pe cod

of us follouing iermuiation

Info mation with respect to stock options and RSUs held by each executine offictr as of

December 31 20 13 appears in tG Outtanding Equity Awards table

Change itt ontrol

Spedal provisions apply ii Change in Control occurs In general Chang in Control will ocur

itth Milton Hershey Sdiool Trust no longer owns voting control of the onipany and another

pers ni or gro ip acquirea l0 or more of the combined voting power of our voting stock there is

an unwelcome change in ma onity of thr members of our Board or if aftrr consummation of

merger or simm ilar busmese transaction or salt of substantially all of ow assets tIre Milton

Her hey Sc ol Fr ust doe not wn vol jug control of the mci ged or requiring company
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intounts ie Ic ci setin of MU au arded soi to April 28 2011 as follows

ci the pei crmnan tie ended Iecenibei 31 2013 it actual pc ride mince of lIt cc nih 31 01 at hc

clifF ion hetween as alut pet PSI cii $99 al the highest closing pi
ice for out ononon Stock dun ig the Ia GO

days of 7013 and aloe pci PSI of $91.23 the closing price of our ornnton oc ti the NYSl is

leceJer 31 20

ltefIcct the value of uns este options that would sect upon hinge in onti ol ha ad ci the exei

sal uc of eoii oninion Stoch of $91.23 on 1eceniher 31 2013 os er the exe cisc pi ice for the opto tforntct io

egai cling nose ted option as of Dece rnbei .31 9013 cai he ft urid in the Out tndin quit tic do

14 Refit etc the saluc of mis ested 1151 and the ace toed cash credits tF would ye upon hange in cc tic lh it

the mail ci aloe of ou onitnon Stoclc of $91 23 on lie ceinhe 31 2013 tie acci tied tilt cut it ccii equ tic cc

widen Is that us ould Ii ive hec tic it ned had thic executive held cunnlon SI ocR instead of 1181 In mat on

nvete R1 of Decenther 31 203 tin he ihuncl in the Outstanelinf Fqtcit tic ard tal tc

Totals cc till of MB il TIP and cciii favor cOle eat ly ref mrenient dic ount rio pet sided dci 11

IMP I. Mi Bilbi ey nod Mc fat are fdllf tested ot thou 111 SFRP he nefit so nc addittc ci hc sefit aipl lit

fir Allots
cc

intl Mu Olay ai 18111 vested In then IX SF111 benefit so no addut it nal hi nefit appi whit ft ci

ulls sled in his .1 RI nefd ci no additional benefit is apphe ahle cit Ms Buck tic amou it md titles flit

aing of hc Dli SERF he net cit Ms lurne the amount includes the sc ung of her 11 51 RI and cit Item

tO Vt ted reticoinent hent fits

oi ails gis cut executmsc the total payiItent madc in the eve mit of tc rrcutnatmon aftoi haitgc in ontr ii oem cI ti

it deicccI to lie aft haihce limit ndei RU Section 280C if cmch it dtic ion 3d wlf iii gttc 1cc iffet tts he icftt

ft tht ex tm i.e

Termination ithout Cause om Resiynation fbi Good Reason after Chanae in oi ro

ll the named xecutive officerc employment is terminated by the Company without aus in hI the

exccut fbi Coed Rea5or within tv yearfl aftux Change ni Control we par scvcraice beta fit io

assi the exe utivc in transitiomng to new employment Good Reason fox this
pi ipos includes hut

is ntut limited to the material diminution of the executives position authority dutic or

responsibilities en item Ia reduction in base salary the Companys unilateral failur to pay current

coin aensation or to continue in effect aphcable shoit and long term compenation and enrplcuyc

and retircmcixt benefits or the fhilurc to bad grantor trust to support iymen of ann uit und

the IsBPP IA ftc verancc benefits undex the EBPP 3A lot termination nithout Cause rr

re igriation hr Good Reas ri after Change en Control as of lecexnber 31 2013 nsi of

lump sum cast payment qual to two or ii less the number of ball ad fr ichon ii yce

from the dotc of terminal inn the cxc eutives fibtIm hint hday butt not less liars tint Ii isis

the executii bast salary and

he highest annual incentive program payment paid or Iiixahlt during lit thict

eats prect ding the year of the Change in Control but riot 1cm than the imiu il

incentii pm ogram target for the year of th Change in Coat oh

For replacement award relating to awards granted on or aftei pril 28 2011 full

vesting hr any PSf awards for the pemIorrnance cycle endmg iii the ye ii ofthc haiift en

Control The cash ptymc nt will be based upon the greater of tat gt 01 actual tex furmanc

through the date of the Change in Control ii ith each P512 valuc at the hit he closing

price for our Corrtn on Stock during the 60 days prior to the Cli siie in Contiol

Fcii replaccmenf awaids relating to awards granted on ox after pnl 28 2011 lull

esting of outstanding P512 awards at target that are in the second yeai of the

per
ft mance cycle at the time of lie Cha nge in Control and pron ited tint of

outstanding PSU an aids at target that are in the ii st year cit Ilte pci for man cycle

the time of the Change in Control

Continuation of medical and othex benefits fot 24 months or if less tue numbei of

months until the exec ufive attains age 65 hut not less than 12 month or iy mc nt
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For the performance cycle ending December 31 2015 one-third of the contingent target units awarded at target

performance as of December 31 2013 with the value per PSU of $97.23 the closing price of our Common Stock on

the NYSE on December 31 2013

Reflects the value of unvested options that would vest upon the executives employment termination following

Change in Control based on the excess if any of the value of our Common Stock of $97.23 on December 31 2013 over

the exercise price for the options Information regarding unvested options as of December 31 2013 can be found in the

Outstanding Equity Awards table

Reflects the value of unvested RSUs that would vest upon the executives employment termination following Change

in Control based on the value of our Common Stock of $97.23 on December 31 2013 as well as the accrued cash credits

equivalent to dividends that would have been earned had the executive held Common Stock instead of RSUs
Information regarding unvested RSUs as of December 31 2013 can be found in the Outstanding Equity Awards table

Reflects projected health and welfare benefit continuation premiums paid by the Company over 24 month period or
if less the number of months until the executive attains age 65 but not less than 12 months

Value of maximumpayment for financial planning and tax preparation continuation for two years following

termination of employment plus outplacement services of $35000

For Mr Bilbrey Mr Tacka and Ms Buck this value reflects the amount of enhanced DB SERP and lump sum amount

of employer 401k and supplemental 401k matching amounts over two-year period For Mr Alfonso the value

reflects the lump sum amount of DC SERP CLRP and employer 401k and supplemental 401k matching amounts

over two-year period For Mr ODay the value reflects the amount of DC SERP Core Retirement Contribution

Supplemental Core Retirement Contribution and employer 401k and supplemental 401k matching amounts that

would have been paid had he remained an employee for 12 months after his termination For Ms Turner the value

reflects the lump sum amount of DC SERP Core Retirement Contribution Supplemental Core Retirement

Contribution and employer 401k and supplemental 401k matching amounts over two-year period

For any given executive the total payments made in the event of termination after Change in Control would be

reduced to the safe harbor limit under IRC Section 280G if such reduction would result in greater after-tax benefit

for the executive

For Mr Bilbrey the value reflects the incremental payment of portion of the 2011-2013 PSUs awarded in recognition

of his promotion to CEO in May 2011 and the incremental payment of portion of the 2012-2014 PSU award As of

December 31 2013 Mr Bilbrey as retiree would receive no incremental benefit for PSUs awarded during 2013

For Messrs Tacka Alfonso and ODay the value reflects the incremental payment of portion of the 2012-2014 PSU
award As of December 31 2013 Messrs Tacka Alfonso and ODay as retirees would receive no incremental benefit

for PSUs awarded during 2013
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PROPOSALNO.3- NON-BINIMNG ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE THE

COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTWE OFFICERS

What am voting on

You are being asked to vote on proposal commonly known as say-on-pay proposal which

gives you the opportunity to approve or not approve on non-binding advisory basis our

executive officer compensation program policies and practices through the following resolution

RESOLVED that the stockholders of The Hershey Company approve on an advisory basis

the compensation of the Companys named executive officers as described in the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis the compensation tables and the accompanying

narrative disclosure set forth pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K in the Companys

proxy statement for the 2014 annual meeting of stockholders

What factors should consider in voting on this proposal

We urge you to consider the various factors regarding our executive compensation program

policies and practices as detailed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on

page 44

As discussed at length in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis we believe that our

executive compensation program is competitive and governed by pay-for-performance principles

We emphasize compensation opportunities that reward results Our stock ownership

requirements and use of stock-based incentives reinforce the alignment of the interests of our

executives with those of our long-term stockholders In doing so our executive compensation

program supports our strategic objectives and mission

Why is this proposal being submitted to the stockholders

This say-on-pay proposal is being submitted to you to obtain the advisory vote of the

stockholders in accordance with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection

Act or Dodd-Frank Act section 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and the

SECs rules The Dodd-Frank Act requires that public companies give their stockholders the

opportunity to cast advisory votes relating to executive compensation at the first annual meeting

of stockholders held after January 21 2011 and no less frequently than once every three years

thereafter At the 2011 annual meeting the Board of Directors recommended and our

stockholders approved holding say-on-pay vote every year Accordingly we will hold say-on-

pay vote annually until the 2017 annual meeting when stockholders will be asked to vote again

on how frequently we should hold the say-on-pay vote

Is this vote binding on the Board of Directors

Because your vote is advisory it will not be binding upon the Board of Directors However as

noted in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis our Board of Directors including our

Compensation and Executive Organization Committee will take into account the outcome of the

vote when considering future decisions affecting executive compensation as it deems appropriate

How many votes will be required for approval of Proposal No

Approval of Proposal No the advisory non-binding say-on-pay proposal requires that

majority of the votes of the shares of Common Stock and Class Common Stock present and

entitled to vote on the proposal are cast in favor of the proposal
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How does the Board of Directors recommend that vote

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders

vote FOR Proposal No the advisory resolution approving the

compensation of the Companys named executive officers as

described in this proxy statement

SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

What is section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our directors and

executive officers and any person who is the beneficial owner of more than 10% of our outstanding

Common Stock to file reports with the SEC showing their ownership and changes in ownership of

Hershey securities Based solely on our examination of these reports and on written

representations provided to us it is our opinion that all reports for 2013 were timely filed

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS

What is being disclosed in this section

SEC regulations require that we disclose any transaction or series of similar transactions since

the beginning of 2013 or any currently proposed transactions in which the Company was or is to

be participant in which the amount involved exceeds $120000 and in which any of the following

persons had or will have direct or indirect material interest

Our directors or nominees for director

Our executive officers

Persons owning more than 5% of any class of our outstanding voting securities or

The immediate family members of any of the persons identified in the preceding three

bullets

The SEC refers to these types of transactions as related person transactions and to the persons

listed in the bullets as related persons The SEC is concerned about related person transactions

because such transactions if not properly monitored may present risks of conflicts of interest or

the appearance of conflicts of interest

Does the Company have policy to review approve or ratify related person
transactions

Our Board has adopted Related Person Transaction Policy that governs the review approval or

ratification of related person transactions The Related Person Transaction Policy may be viewed

on the Companys website www.thehersheycompany.com in the Investors section

Under our policy each related person transaction and any significant amendment or modification

to related person transaction must be reviewed and approved or ratified by committee of our

Board composed solely of independent directors who have no interest in the transaction We refer
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to each such committee as Reviewing Committee The policy also permits the disinterested

members of the full Board to act as Reviewing Committee

The Board has designated the Governance Committee as the Reviewing Committee primarily

responsible for the administration of the Related Person Transaction Policy In addition the

Board has designated special Reviewing Committees to oversee certain transactions involving the

Company and Hershey Trust Company the Milton Hershey School Trust and companies owned by

the Milton Hershey School Trust which we describe in further detail in the answer to the fourth

question in this section below Finally the policy provides that the Compensation and Executive

Organization Committee will review and approve or review and recommend to the Board for

approval any employment relationship or transaction involving an executive officer of the

Company and any related compensation

When reviewing approving or ratifying related person transaction the Reviewing Committee

will examine several things including the approximate dollar value of the transaction and all

material facts about the related persons interest in or relationship to the transaction If the

related person transaction involves an outside director or nominee for director the Reviewing

Committee also may consider whether the transaction would compromise the directors status as

an independent director outside director or non-employee director under our Corporate

Governance Guidelines and rules and regulations of the New York Stock Exchange the Internal

Revenue Code or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

Was the Company participant in any related person transactions in 2013 or does

the Company currently contemplate being participant in any related person

transactions in 2014 involving its directors executive officers or their immediate

family members

We were not participant in any related person transactions in 2013 and we do not currently

contemplate being participant in any related person transactions in 2014 involving our

directors executive officers or their immediate family members

Was the Company participant in any related person transactions in 2013 or does

the Company currently contemplate being participant in any related person

transactions in 2014 involving stockholder owning more than 5% of any class of

the Companys voting securities

We engage in certain transactions with Milton Hershey School the Milton Hershey School Trust

and companies owned by the Milton Hershey School Trust As discussed in the next question

many of these transactions are immaterial ordinary-course transactions and are not considered

related person transactions However from time to time we may engage in certain related person

transactions with the Milton Hershey School Trust and its affiliates

Our Board has directed that special Reviewing Committee composed of the directors elected by

the holders of the Common Stock voting separately as class review and make recommendations

to the Board regarding these transactions However the Board also has directed that if there are

no directors on the Board who were elected by the holders of our Common Stock voting separately

such transactions will be reviewed by the independent members of the Executive Committee who

have no affiliation with the Milton Hershey School Trust or its affiliates In addition to the process

outlined above the Board has authorized the independent directors having no affiliation with the

Milton Hershey School Trust or its affiliates to designate another special Reviewing Committee to

review these transactions
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We were not participant in any related person transactions in 2013 and do not currently

contemplate being participant in any related person transactions in 2014 involving the Milton

Hershey School Trust its affiliates or any other stockholder owning more than 5% of any class of

the Companys voting securities

Did the Company engage in other transactions with the Milton Hershey School

Trust or its affiliates during 2013

During 2013 we engaged in transactions in the ordinary course of our business with Milton

Hershey School the Milton Hershey School Trust and companies owned by the Milton Hershey
School Trust These transactions involved the sale and purchase of goods and services as well as

the leasing of real estate at market rates The transactions were primarily with Hershey
Entertainment Resorts Company company that is wholly owned by the Milton Hershey
School Trust All sales and purchases were made on terms and at prices we believe were generally

available in the marketplace and were in amounts that were not material to us or to the Milton

Hershey School Trust Therefore they are not related person transactions and did not have to be

approved under our Related Person Transaction Policy However because of our relationship with

the Milton Hershey School Trust we have elected to disclose the aggregate amounts of our

purchase and sale transactions for your information In this regard

Our total sales to these entities in 2013 were approximately $1.8 million and

Our total purchases from these entities in 2013 were approximately $3.2 million

We do not expect that the types of transactions or the amount of payments will change materially

in 2014

In prior years we made monetary contributions to the Hershey Foundation to support the

capital campaign for The Hershey Story The Museum on Chocolate Avenue facility constructed

by the Foundation in Hershey Pennsylvania to honor the life and legacy of our founder Milton

Hershey We have contributed $1.0 millionto the Foundation to support The Hershey Storys

capital campaign however no monetary contributions were made in 2013 The Foundation was

established by Mr Hershey in 1935 to provide educational and cultural benefits for the residents

of Derry Township Pennsylvania where the community of Hershey is located The Foundation is

separate from the Milton Hershey School Trust however it is governed by board of managers

appointed by Hershey Trust Company as trustee for the trust established by Mr Hershey to

benefit the Foundation from the membership of the board of directors of Hershey Trust Company
James Mead an independent member of our Board of Directors and an independent member of

the board of directors of Hershey Trust Company and the board of managers of Milton Hershey

School also is member of the board of managers of the Foundation Mr Mead received no

compensation for his service on the board of managers of the Foundation

The Company leases to Hershey Entertainment Resorts Company portion of building owned

and occupied by the Company in Hershey Pennsylvania The leased area consists of

approximately 22500 square feet of storage space in the building that is not being utilized

currently by the Company The lease was first entered into on January 2011 and had term of

one year The lease permits Hershey Entertainment Resorts Company to renew the lease for

subsequent one-year terms and if space is available to request an increase in the area occupied

Hershey Entertainment Resorts Company renewed the lease for additional one-year terms

beginning January of 2013 and 2014 and in 2013 elected to increase its total occupied area The

lease is on terms we believe are generally available in the marketplace and is not material to us or

Hershey Entertainment Resorts Company Rent during 2013 was $180000 and for 2014 is

expected be $270000 which amounts include pro rata allocation of utilities insurance

maintenance and other operating costs
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE 2015 ANNUAL MEETING

When is the 2015 annual meeting of stockholders

Our 2015 annual meeting of stockholders will be held on April 28 2015

What is the deadline to submit proposal for inclusion in the proxy materials for

the 2015 annual meeting

To be eligible for inclusion in the proxy materials for the 2015 annual meeting stockholder

proposal must be received by our Corporate Secretary by the close of business on November 18

2014 and comply in all respects with applicable rules of the SEC Stockholder proposals should be

addressed to The Hershey Company Attn Corporate Secretary 100 Crystal Drive Hershey

Pennsylvania 17033-0810

What procedure should follow if intend to present proposal or nominate

director from the floor at the 2015 annual meeting

stockholder may present proposal not included in our 2015 proxy materials from the floor of

the 2015 annual meeting only if our Corporate Secretary receives notice of the proposal along

with additional information required by our by-laws during the time period beginning at the close

of business on December 30 2014 and ending at the close of business on January 29 2015 Notice

should be addressed to The Hershey Company Attn Corporate Secretary 100 Crystal Drive

Hershey Pennsylvania 17033-0810

The notice must contain the following additional information

The stockholders name and address

The stockholders shareholdings

brief description of the proposal

brief description of any financial or other interest the stockholder has in the proposal

and

Any additional information that the SEC would require if the proposal were presented in

proxy statement

stockholder may nominate director from the floor of the 2015 annual meeting only if our

Corporate Secretary receives notice of the nomination along with additional information required

by our by-laws during the time period beginning at the close of business on December 30 2014

and ending at the close of business on January 29 2015 The notice must contain the following

additional information

The stockholders name and address

representation that the stockholder is holder of record of any class of our equity

securities

representation that the stockholder intends to make the nomination in person or by

proxy at the meeting

description of any arrangement the stockholder has with the individual the stockholder

plans to nominate and the reason for making the nomination

The nominees name address and biographical information

The written consent of the nominee to serve as director if elected and
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Any additional information regarding the nominee that the SEC would require if the

nomination were included in proxy statement regardless of whether the nomination

may be included in such proxy statement

Any stockholder holding 25% or more of the votes entitled to be cast at the annual meeting is not

required to comply with these pre-notification requirements

By order of the Board of Directors

m1J
Leslie Turner

Senior Vice President

General Counsel and Secretary

March 18 2014
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2013

OR
Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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PART

Item BUSINESS

The Hershey Company was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on October 24 1927 as successor to

business founded in 1894 by Milton Hershey In this report the terms Company we us or our mean The Hershey

Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and entities in which it has controlling financial interest unless the context indicates

otherwise

We are the largest producer of quality chocolate in North America and global leader in chocolate and sugar confectionery

Our principal product groups include chocolate and
sugar confectionery products pantry items such as baking ingredients

toppings and beverages and gum and mint refreshment products

Reportable Segment

We operate as single reportable segment in manufacturing marketing selling and distributing our products under more

than 80 brand names Our two operating segments comprise geographic regions including North America and International We
market our products in approximately 70 countries worldwide

For segment reporting purposes we aggregate the operations of North America and International to form one reportable

segment We base this aggregation on similareconomic characteristics products and services production processes types or

classes of customers distribution methods and the similar nature of the regulatory environment in each location

Organization

We operate under matrix reporting structure designed to ensure continued focus on North America and on continuing our

transformation into more global company Our business is organized around geographic regions and strategic business units It is

designed to enable us to build processes for repeatable success in our global markets

Our geographic regions are accountable for delivering our annual financial plans The key regions are

North America including the United States and Canada and

International including Latin America Asia Europe Africa and exports to these regions

In addition The Hershey Experience manages our retail operations globally including Hersheys Chocolate World Stores in

Hershey Pennsylvania New York City Chicago Shanghai Niagara Falls Ontario Dubai and Singapore

Our two strategic business units are the chocolate business unit and the sweets and refreshment business unit These strategic

business units focus on specific components of our product line and are responsible for building and leveraging the Companys

global brands and disseminating best demonstrated practices around the world

Business Acquisitions

In December 2013 we entered into an agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Shanghai Golden Monkey Food

Joint Stock Co Ltd SGM privately held confectionery company based in Shanghai China SGM manufactures markets and

distributes Golden Monkey branded products including candy chocolates protein-based products and snack foods in China As of

the date of the agreement SGM manufactured products in five cities and had more than 130 sales offices and approximately 1700

sales representatives and 2000 distributors covering all regions and trade channels in China

In January 2012 we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Brookside Foods Ltd Brookside privately held

confectionery company based in Abbottsford British Columbia Canada As part of this transaction we acquired two production

facilities located in British Columbia and Quebec The Brookside product line is primarily sold in the U.S and Canada in take

home re-sealable pack type



Products

North America

United States

The primary products we sell in the United States include the following

Under the HERSHEYS brand franchise

HERSHEYS milk chocolate bar

HERSHEYS milk chocolate with almonds bar

HERSHEYS Extra Dark pure dark chocolate

HERSHEYS Nuggets chocolates

HERSHEYS Drops chocolates

HERSHEYS AIR DELIGHT aerated milk chocolate

HERSHEYS MINIA TURES chocolate candy

HERSHEYS BLISS chocolates

HERSHEYS COOKIES CR¨ME candy bar

HERSHEYS COOKIES CR¨ME DROPS candy

HERSHEYS POT OF GOLD boxed chocolates

HERSHEYS sugar free chocolate candy

HERSHEYS HUGS candies

HERSHEYS SIMPLE PLEASURES candy

HERSHEYS Spreads

Under the REESES brand franchise

REESES peanut butter cups

REESES peanut butter cups
minis

REESES PIECES candy

REESES BIG CUP peanut butter cups

REESES NUTRA GEOUS candy bar

REESES sugar
free peanut butter cups

REESES crispy and crunchy bar

REESESTICKS wafer bars

REESES FAST BREAK candy bar

Under the KISSES brand franchise

HERSHEYS KISSES brand milk chocolates

HERSHEYS KISSES brand milk chocolates with almonds

HERSHEYS KISSES brand milk chocolates filled with caramel

HERSHEYS KISSES brand SPECIAL DARK mildly sweet chocolates

HERSHEYS KISSES brand Cookies Creme candies



Our other products we sell in the United States include the following

5th VENUE candy bar

ALMOND JOY candy bar

ALMOND JOY PIECES candy

BROOKSIDE chocolate covered real fruit juice pieces

CADBURY chocolates

CARAMELLO candy bar

GOOD PLENTY candy

HEATHtoffee bar

JOLLYRANCHER candy

JOLLY RANCHER CR UNCH CHEW candy

JOLLYRANCHER sugar
free candy

KIT KA TRIG KA wafer bar

KIT KA wafer bar

KIT KA Minis

LANCASTER Caramel Soft CrŁmes

MA UNA LOA macadamia snack nuts

MILK DUDS candy

MOUNDS candy bar

MR GOODBAR chocolate bar

PAYDAY peanut caramel bar

ROLO caramels in milk chocolate

ROLO Minis

SKOR toffee bar

SPECIAL DARK mildly sweet chocolate bar

SPECIAL DARK PIECES candy

SYMPHONY milk chocolate bar

SYMPHONY milk chocolate bar with almonds and toffee

TAKE5 candy bar

TWIZZLERS candy

TWIZZLERS sugar free candy

WHA TCHAMA CALLIT candy bar

WHOPPERS malted milk balls

YORK Minis

YORK peppermint pattie

YORK sugar free peppermint pattie

YORK PIECES candy

ZAGNUT candy bar

ZERO candy bar

We also sell products in the United States under the following product lines

Premium products

Artisan Confections Company wholly-owned subsidiary of The Hershey Company markets SCHARFFEN BERGER high-

cacao dark chocolate products and DA GOBA natural and organic chocolate products Our SCHARFFEN BERGER products

include chocolate bars and tasting squares
DAGOBA products include chocolate bars drinking chocolate and baking products

Refreshment products

Our line of refreshment products includes ICE BREAKERS mints and chewing gum ICE BREAKERS ICE CUBES chewing

gum BREATH SAVERS mints and BUBBLE YUM bubble gum

Pantry items

Pantry items include HERSHEYS REESES HEATH and SCHARFFENBERGER baking products Our toppings and

sundae syrups
include REESE HEATH and HERSHEYS We sell hot cocoa mix under the HERSHEYS BLISS brand name

Canada

In Canada we sell HERSHEYS milk chocolate bars and milk chocolate with almonds bars OH HENRY candy bars REESE

PEANUTBUTTER CUPS candy HERSHEYS KISSES brand milk chocolates TWIZZLERS candy GLOSETTE chocolate-covered

raisins peanuts and almonds JOLLYRANCHER candy WHOPPERS malted milk balls SKOR toffee bars EA TMORE candy

bars POT OF GOLD boxed chocolates BROOKSIDE chocolate-covered fruit real fruit juice pieces and nuts and CHIPITS

chocolate chips



International

The primary products we sell in our International businesses include the following

China

We import market sell and distribute chocolate and candy products in China primarily under the HERSHEYS KISSES and

LANCASTER brands

Mexico

We manufacture import market sell and distribute chocolate sweets refreshment and beverage products in Mexico under

the HERSHEYS KISSES JOLLYRANCHER and PELONPELO RICO brands

Brazil

We manufacture import and market chocolate sweets and refreshment products in Brazil including HERSHEYS chocolate

and confectionery items and 10-10 items

India

We manufacture market sell and distribute sugar confectionery beverage and cooking oil products in India including

NUTRINE and MAHA LACTO confectionery products and JUMPIN and SOFIT beverage products

Other International

We also export market sell and distribute chocolate sweets and refreshment products in Central America and Puerto Rico

and other countries in Latin America Asia Europe the Middle East and Africa regions We license the VAN HOUTEN brand name

and related trademarks to sell chocolate products cocoa and baking products in Asia and the Middle East for the retail and duty-

free distribution channels

Customers

Full-time sales representatives and food brokers sell our products to our customers Our customers are mainly wholesale

distributors chain
grocery stores mass merchandisers chain drug stores vending companies wholesale clubs convenience stores

dollar stores concessionaires and department stores Except for wholesale distributors our other customers resell our products to

end-consumers in retail outlets in North America and other locations worldwide In 2013 sales to McLane Company Inc one of

the largest wholesale distributors in the United States to convenience stores drug stores wholesale clubs and mass merchandisers

amounted to approximately 25.5% of our total net sales McLane Company Inc is the primary distributor of our products to Wal
Mart Stores Inc

Marketing Strategy and Seasonality

The foundation of our marketing strategy is our strong brand equities product innovation and the consistently superior

quality of our products We devote considerable resources to the identification development testing manufacturing and marketing

of new products We have variety of promotional programs for our customers as well as advertising and promotional programs

for consumers of our products We use our promotional programs to stimulate sales of certain products at various times throughout

the year Our sales are typically higher during the third and fourth quarters of the year representing seasonal and holiday-related

sales patterns

Product Distribution

In conjunction with our sales and marketing efforts our efficient product distribution network helps us maintain sales growth

and provide superior customer service We plan optimum stock levels and work with our customers to set reasonable delivery

times Our distribution network provides for the efficient shipment of our products from our manufacturing plants to strategically

located distribution centers We primarily use common carriers to deliver our products from these distribution points to our

customers



Price Changes

We change prices and weights of our products when necessary to accommodate changes in costs the competitive

environment and profit objectives while at the same time seeking to maintain consumer value Price increases and weight changes

help to offset increases in our input costs including raw and packaging materials fuel utilities transportation and employee

benefits

Usually there is time lag between the effective date of list price increases and the impact of the price increases on net sales

The impact of price increases is often delayed because we honor previous commitments to planned consumer and customer

promotions and merchandising events subsequent to the effective date of the price increases In addition promotional allowances

may be increased subsequent to the effective date delaying or partially offsetting the impact of price increases on net sales

In March 2011 we announced weighted-average increase in wholesale prices of approximately 9.7% across the majority of

our U.S Puerto Rico and export portfolio effective immediately The price increase applied to our instant consumable multi-

pack packaged candy and grocery lines Direct buying customers were able to purchase transitional amounts of product into May

2011 and seasonal net price realization did not occur until Easter 2012

Raw Materials

Cocoa products are the most significant raw materials we use to produce our chocolate products Cocoa products including

cocoa liquor cocoa butter and cocoa powder processed from cocoa beans are used to meet manufacturing requirements Cocoa

products are purchased directly from third-party suppliers These third-party suppliers source cocoa beans which are grown

principally in Far Eastern West African and South American equatorial regions to produce the cocoa products we purchase West

Africa accounts for approximately 72% of the worlds supply of cocoa beans

Adverse weather crop disease political unrest and other problems in cocoa-producing countries have caused price

fluctuations in the past but have never resulted in the total loss of particular producing countrys cocoa crop and/or exports In

the event that significant disruption occurs in any given country we believe cocoa from other producing countries and from

current physical cocoa stocks in consuming countries would provide significant supply buffer

We also use substantial quantities of sugar Class II fluid dairy milk peanuts almonds and
energy

in our production process

Most of these inputs for our domestic and Canadian operations are purchased from suppliers in the United States For our

international operations inputs not locally available may be imported from other countries

We enter into futures contracts and other commodity derivative instruments to manage price risks for cocoa products sugar

corn sweeteners natural gas fuel oil and certain dairy products For more information on price risks associated with our major raw

material requirements see Commodities-Price Risk Management and Futures Contracts on page 39

Product Sourcing

We manufacture or contract to our specifications for the manufacture of the products we sell We enter into manufacturing

contracts with third parties to improve our strategic competitive position and achieve cost effective production and sourcing of our

products

Competition

Many of our brands enjoy wide consumer acceptance and are among the leading brands sold in the marketplace in North

America and certain markets in Latin America We sell our brands in highly competitive markets with many other global

multinational national regional and local finns Some of our competitors are much larger companies that have greater resources

and more substantial international operations Competition in our product categories is based on product innovation product

quality price brand recognition and loyalty effectiveness of marketing promotional activity the ability to identify and satisfy

consumer preferences as well as convenience and service



Trademarks Service Marks and License Agreements

We own various registered and unregistered trademarks and service marks and have rights under licenses to use various

trademarks that are of material importance to our business We also grant trademark licenses to third parties to produce and sell

pantry items flavored milks and various other products primarily under the HERSHEYS and REESES brand names

We have license agreements with several companies to manufacture and/or sell and distribute certain products Our rights

under these agreements are extendible on long-term basis at our option Our most significant licensing agreements are as follows

Company Brand Location Requirements

Cadbury Ireland Limited YORK
Worldwide None

PETER PAUL ALMOND JOY

PETER PAUL MOUNDS

CADBURY Minimum sales

United StatesCadbury UK Limited
CARAMELLO requirement exceeded

in 2013

SociØtØ des KIT KA Minimum unit
United States

Produits NestlØ SA ROLO volume sales

exceeded in 2013

GOOD PLENTY

HEATH

Huhtamäki Oy affiliate JOLLYRANCHER Worldwide None

MILK DUDS
PAYDAY

WHOPPERS

Backlog of Orders

We manufacture primarily for stock and fill customer orders from finished goods inventories While at any given time there

may be some backlog of orders this backlog is not material to our total annual sales

Research and Development

We engage in variety of research and development activities in number of countries including the United States Mexico

Brazil India and China We develop new products improve the quality of existing products improve and modernize production

processes
and develop and implement new technologies to enhance the quality and value of both current and proposed product

lines Information concerning our research and development expense is contained in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements Note Summary of Sign ficant Accounting Policies

Food Quality and Safety Regulation

The manufacture and sale of consumer food products is highly regulated In the United States our activities are subject to

regulation by various government agencies including the Food and Drug Administration the Department of Agriculture the

Federal Trade Commission the Department of Commerce and the Environmental Protection Agency as well as various state and

local agencies Similar agencies also regulate our businesses outside of the United States

Our Product Excellence Program provides us with an effective product quality and safety program This program is intended

to ensure that all products we purchase manufacture and distribute are safe are of high quality and comply with all applicable laws

and regulations

Through our Product Excellence Program we evaluate the supply chain including ingredients packaging processes

products distribution and the environment to determine where product quality and safety controls are necessary
We identify risks

and establish controls intended to ensure product quality and safety Various government



agencies third-party firms and our quality assurance staff conduct audits of all facilities that manufacture our products to assure

effectiveness and compliance with our program and all applicable laws and regulations

Employees

As of December 31 2013 we employed approximately 12600 full-time and 2200 part-time employees worldwide

Collective bargaining agreements covered approximately 5025 employees During 2014 agreements will be negotiated for certain

employees at five facilities outside of the United States comprising approximately 67% of total employees under collective

bargaining agreements We believe that our employee relations are good

Financial Information by Geographic Area

Our principal operations and markets are located in the United States The percentage of total consolidated net sales for our

businesses outside of the United States was 16.6% for 2013 16.2% for 2012 and 15.7% for 2011 The percentage of total

consolidated assets outside of the United States as of December 31 2013 was 19.4% and as of December 31 2012 was 20.5%

Corporate Social Responsibility

Our founder Milton Hershey established an enduring model of responsible citizenship while creating successful

business Driving sustainable business practices making difference in our communities and operating with the highest integrity

are vital parts of our heritage Milton Hershey School established by Milton and Catherine Hershey lies at the center of our unique

heritage Mr Hershey donated and bequeathed almost his entire fortune to Milton Hershey School which remains our primary

beneficiary and provides world-class education and nurturing home to nearly 2000 children in need annually We continue

Milton Hersheys legacy of commitment to consumers community and children by providing high-quality products while

conducting our business in socially responsible and environmentally sustainable manner

In 2013 we published our corporate social responsibility CSR scorecard which provided an update on the progress we

have made in advancing the priorities that were established in our first CSR report The report outlines how we performed against

the identified performance indicators within our four CSR pillars environment community workplace and marketplace

The safety and health of our employees and the safety and quality of our products are consistently at the core of our

operations and are areas of ongoing focus for Hershey in the workplace Our over-arching safety goal is to consistently achieve

best in class safety performance and Hershey has achieved continuous improvement in employee safety in the workplace since

2006 We continue to invest in our quality management systems to ensure product quality and food safety remain top priorities We

carefully monitor and rigorously enforce our high standards of excellence for superior quality consistency and taste and absolute

food safety

In 2013 Hershey was recognized for its environmental social and governance performance by being named to both the Dow

Jones Sustainability World Index and the North America Index Hershey is one of only 13 companies from the Food Beverage and

Tobacco Industry in the World Index and ranked in at least the 90th percentile in each of the three categories of Economic

Environmental and Social Criteria The Dow Jones Sustainability World Index tracks the performance of the top 10% of the 2500

largest companies in the SP Global Broad Market Index that lead the field in terms of sustainability

Hershey has committed to minimizing the environmental impacts of our operations regularly reviewing the ways in which

we manage our operations and secure our supply of raw materials Compared with our 2009 baseline Hershey decreased waste

generation by 23% and green house gas
emissions by 8% while improving our company-wide recycling rate to 80% Additionally

we improved our Carbon Disclosure Project Performance and Disclosure scores Hershey has made impressive strides in achieving

Zero Waste to Landfill status at its facilities with facilities now operating at this level

In the marketplace Hershey focuses on promoting fair and ethical business dealings condition of doing business with us

is compliance with our Supplier Code of Conduct which outlines our expectations with regard to our suppliers commitment to

legal compliance and business integrity social and working conditions environment and food safety We continue our leadership

role in supporting programs to improve the lives of cocoa farming families through variety of initiatives Our 21st Century Cocoa

Strategy aims to impact more than million West Africans by



2017 through public/private programs as well as through Hershey initiatives including the Hershey Learn To Grow farmer and

family development centers and CocoaLink first-of-its kind approach that uses mobile technology to deliver practical

information on agricultural and social programs to rural cocoa farmers It is our goal to source 100% certified cocoa for our global

chocolate product lines by 2020 assuming adequate supply During 2013 18% of the cocoa we sourced globally was certified

exceeding our goal for the year Our active engagement and financial support also continues for the World Cocoa Foundation and

the International Cocoa Initiative

Our employees share their time and resources generously in their communities Both directly and through the United Way

we contribute to hundreds of agencies that deliver much needed services and resources In 2012 Hershey donated more than $9

million in cash and product to worthy causes our employees volunteered more than 200000 hours in their communities and we

conducted our first Good to Give Back Week week of volunteerism that saw over 350 employees across the United States and

Canada volunteer over 1300 hours Our focus on Kids and Kids at Risk is supported through contributions to the Childrens

Miracle Network Project Fellowship where employees partner with student homes at the Milton Hershey School an orphanage

for special needs children in the Philippines and childrens burn center in Guadalajara Mexico to name few

Our commitment to CSR is yielding powerful results As we move into new markets and expand our leadership in North

America we are convinced that our values and heritage will be fundamental to our continuing success

Available Information

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended We file or furnish annual

quarterly and current reports proxy statements and other information with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC You may obtain copy of any of these reports free of charge from the Investors section of our website

www.thehersheycompany.com shortly after we file or furnish the information to the SEC

You may obtain copy of any of these reports directly from the SECs Public Reference Room Contact the SEC by calling

them at -800-SEC-0330 or by submitting written request to U.S Securities and Exchange Commission Office of Investor

Education and Advocacy 100 Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports

proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov

You can obtain additional information on how to request public documents from the SEC on their website The electronic mailbox

address of the SEC is publicinfo@sec.gov

We have Code of Ethical Business Conduct that applies to our Board of Directors and all Company officers and

employees including without limitation our Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers including the ChiefFinancial

Officer Chief Accounting Officer and persons performing similar functions You can obtain copy of our Code of Ethical

Business Conduct from the Investors section of our website www thehe rsheycornpany corn If we change or waive any portion of

the Code of Ethical Business Conduct that applies to any of our directors executive officers or senior financial officers we will

post that information on our website

We also post our Corporate Governance Guidelines and charters for each of the Boards standing committees in the Investors

section of our website www.thehersheycornpany.com The Board of Directors adopted these Guidelines and charters

We will provide to any stockholder copy of one or more of the Exhibits listed in Part IV of this report upon request We

charge small copying fee for these exhibits to cover our costs To request copy of any of these documents you can contact us at

The Hershey Company Attn Investor Relations Department 100 Crystal Drive Hershey Pennsylvania 17033-0810



Item 1A RISK FACTORS

We are subject to changing economic competitive regulatory and technological risks and uncertainties that could have

material impact on our business financial condition or results of operations In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 we note the following factors that among others could cause future results to

differ materially from the forward-looking statements expectations and assumptions expressed or implied in this report Many of

the forward-looking statements contained in this document may be identified by the use of words such as intend believe

expect anticipate should planned projected estimated and potential among others Among the factors that could

cause our actual results to differ materially from the results projected in our forward-looking statements or could materially and

adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations are the risk factors described below

Issues or concerns related to the quality and safety of our products ingredients or packaging could cause product recall

and/or result in harm to the Companys reputation negatively impacting our operating results

In order to sell our iconic branded products we need to maintain good reputation with our customers and consumers

Issues related to quality and safety of our products ingredients or packaging could jeopardize our Companys image and

reputation Negative publicity related to these types of concerns or related to product contamination or product tampering whether

valid or not could decrease demand for our products or cause production and delivery disruptions We may need to recall products

if any of our products become unfit for consumption In addition we could potentially be subject to litigation or government

actions which could result in payments of fines or damages Costs associated with these potential actions could negatively affect

our operating results

Increases in raw material and energy costs along with the availability of adequate supplies of raw materials could affect future

financial results

We use many different commodities for our business including cocoa products sugar dairy products peanuts almonds

corn sweeteners natural gas and fuel oil

Commodities are subject to price volatility and changes in supply caused by numerous factors including

Commodity market fluctuations

Currency exchange rates

Imbalances between supply and demand

The effect of weather on crop yield

Speculative influences

Trade agreements among producing and consuming nations

Supplier compliance with commitments

Political unrest in producing countries and

Changes in governmental agricultural programs and energy policies

Although we use forward contracts and commodity futures and options contracts where possible to hedge commodity

prices commodity price increases ultimately result in corresponding increases in our raw material and energy costs If we are

unable to offset cost increases for major raw materials and energy there could be negative impact on our financial condition and

results of operations

Price increases may not be sufficient to offset cost increases and maintain profitability or may result in sales volume declines

associated with pricing elasticity

We may be able to pass some or all raw material energy and other input cost increases to customers by increasing the selling

prices of our products or decreasing the size of our products however higher product prices or decreased product sizes may also

result in reduction in sales volume andlor consumption If we are not able to increase our selling prices or reduce product sizes

sufficiently to offset increased raw material energy or other input costs including packaging direct labor overhead and employee

benefits or if our sales volume decreases significantly there could be negative impact on our financial condition and results of

operations



Market demand for new and existing products could decline

We operate in highly competitive markets and rely on continued demand for our products To generate revenues and profits

we must sell products that appeal to our customers and to consumers Our continued success is impacted by many factors

including the following

Effective retail execution

Appropriate advertising campaigns and marketing programs

Our ability to secure adequate shelf space at retail locations

Product innovation including maintaining strong pipeline of new products

Changes in product category consumption

Our response to consumer demographics and trends and

Consumer health concerns including obesity and the consumption of certain ingredients

There continue to be competitive product and pricing pressures in these markets as well as challenges in maintaining profit

margins We must maintain mutually beneficial relationships with our key customers including retailers and distributors to

compete effectively Our largest customer McLane Company Inc accounted for approximately 25.5% of our total net sales in

2013 McLane Company Inc is one of the largest wholesale distributors in the United States to convenience stores drug stores

wholesale clubs and mass merchandisers including Wal-Mart Stores Inc

Increased marketplace competition could hurt our business

The global confectionery packaged goods industry is intensely competitive and consolidation in this industry continues

Some of our competitors are much larger companies that have greater resources and more substantial international operations In

order to protect our existing market share or capture increased market share in this highly competitive retail environment we may

be required to increase expenditures for promotions and advertising and continue to introduce and establish new products Due to

inherent risks in the marketplace associated with advertising and new product introductions including uncertainties about trade and

consumer acceptance increased expenditures may not prove
successful in maintaining or enhancing our market share and could

result in lower sales and profits In addition we may incur increased credit and other business risks because we operate in highly

competitive retail environment

Disruption to our manufacturing operations or our supply chain could impair our ability to produce or deliver our finished

products resulting in negative impact on our operating results

Approximately three-quarters of our manufacturing capacity is located in the United States Disruption to our global

manufacturing operations or our supply chain could result from among other factors the following

Natural disaster

Pandemic outbreak of disease

Weather

Fire or explosion

Terrorism or other acts of violence

Labor strikes or other labor activities

Unavailability of raw or packaging materials and

Operational and/or financial instability of key suppliers and other vendors or service providers

We believe that we take adequate precautions to mitigate the impact of possible disruptions We have strategies and plans in

place to manage such events if they were to occur including our global supply chain strategies and our principle-based global labor

relations strategy If we are unable or find that it is not financially feasible to effectively plan for or mitigate potential impacts of

such disruptive events on our manufacturing operations or supply chain our financial condition and results of operations could be

negatively impacted if such events were to occur

10



Our financial results may be adversely impacted by the failure to successfully execute or integrate acquisitions divestitures and

joint ventures

From time to time we may evaluate potential acquisitions divestitures or joint ventures that align with our strategic

objectives The success of such activity depends in part upon our ability to identify suitable buyers sellers or business partners

perform effective assessments prior to contract execution negotiate contract terms and if applicable obtain government approval

These activities may present certain financial managerial staffing and talent and operational risks including diversion of

managements attention from existing core businesses difficulties integrating or separating businesses from existing operations

and challenges presented by acquisitions or joint ventures which may not achieve sales levels and profitability that justify the

investments made If the acquisitions divestitures or joint ventures are not successfully implemented or completed there could be

negative impact on our financial condition results of operations and cash flows

Changes in governmental laws and regulations could increase our costs and liabilities or impact demand for our products

Changes in laws and regulations and the manner in which they are interpreted or applied may alter our business environment

These negative impacts could result from changes in food and drug laws laws related to advertising and marketing practices

accounting standards taxation requirements competition laws employment laws and environmental laws among others It is

possible that we could become subject to additional liabilities in the future resulting from changes in laws and regulations that

could result in an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Political economic and/or financial market conditions could negatively impact our financial results

Our operations are impacted by consumer spending levels and impulse purchases which are affected by general

macroeconomic conditions consumer confidence employment levels availability of consumer credit and interest rates on that

credit consumer debt levels energy costs and other factors Volatility in food and energy costs sustained global recessions rising

unemployment and declines in personal spending could adversely impact our revenues profitability and financial condition

Changes in financial market conditions may make it difficult to access credit markets on commercially acceptable terms

which may reduce liquidity or increase borrowing costs for our Company our customers and our suppliers significant reduction

in liquidity could increase counterparty risk associated with certain suppliers and service providers resulting in disruption to our

supply chain and/or higher costs and could impact our customers resulting in reduction in our revenue or possible increase in

bad debt expense
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International operations may not achieve projected growth objectives which could adversely impact our overall business and

results of operations

In 2013 we derived approximately 16.6% of our net sales from customers located outside of the United States Additionally

19.4% of our total consolidated assets were located outside of the United States as of December 31 2013 As part of our global

growth strategy we are increasing our investments outside of the United States particularly in Mexico Brazil India and China As

result we are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties relating to international sales and operations including

Unforeseen global economic and environmental changes resulting in business interruption supply constraints inflation

deflation or decreased demand

Inability to establish develop and achieve market acceptance of our global brands in international markets

Difficulties and costs associated with compliance and enforcement of remedies under wide variety of complex laws

treaties and regulations

Unexpected changes in regulatory environments

Political and economic instability including the possibility of civil unrest terrorism mass violence or armed conflict

Nationalization of our properties by foreign governments

Tax rates that may exceed those in the United States and earnings that may be subject to withholding requirements and

incremental taxes upon repatriation

Potentially negative consequences from changes in tax laws

The imposition of tariffs quotas trade barriers other trade protection measures and import or export licensing

requirements

Increased costs disruptions in shipping or reduced availability of freight transportation

The impact of
currency exchange rate fluctuations between the U.S dollar and foreign currencies

Failure to gain sufficient profitable scale in certain international markets resulting in losses from impairment or sale of

assets and

Failure to recruit retain and build talented and engaged global workforce

If we are not able to achieve our projected international growth objectives and mitigate numerous risks and uncertainties

associated with our international operations there could be negative impact on our financial condition and results of operations

Disruptions failures or security breaches of our information technology infrastructure could have negative impact on our

operations

Information technology is critically important to our business operations We use information teclmology to manage all

business processes including manufacturing financial logistics sales marketing and administrative functions These processes

collect interpret and distribute business data and communicate internally and externally with employees suppliers customers and

others

We invest in industry standard security technology to protect the Companys data and business processes against risk of data

security breach and cyber attack Our data security management program includes identity trust vulnerability and threat

management business processes as well as adoption of standard data protection policies We measure our data security

effectiveness through industry accepted methods and remediate significant findings Additionally we certify our major technology

suppliers and any outsourced services through accepted security certification standards We maintain and routinely test backup

systems and disaster recovery along with external network security penetration testing by an independent third party as part of our

business continuity preparedness We also have processes in place to prevent disruptions resulting from the implementation of new

software and systems of the latest technology

While we believe that our security technology and
processes provide adequate measures of protection against security

breaches and in reducing cybersecurity risks disruptions in or failures of information technology systems are possible and could

have negative impact on our operations or business reputation Failure of our systems including failures due to cyber attacks that

would prevent the ability of systems to function as intended could cause transaction
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errors loss of customers and sales and could have negative consequences to our Company our employees and those with whom

we do business

Future developments related to civil antitrust lawsuits and the possible investigation by government regulators of alleged

pricing practices by members of the confectionery industry in the United States could negatively impact our reputation and our

operating results

We are defendant in number of civil antitrust lawsuits in the United States including individual class and putative class

actions brought against us by purchasers of our products The U.S Department of Justice also notified the Company in 2007 that it

had opened an inquiry into certain alleged pricing practices by members of the confectionery industry but has not requested any

infonnation or documents Additional information about these proceedings is contained in Item Legal Proceedings of this Form

10-K

Competition and antitrust law investigations can be lengthy and violators are subject to civil andlor criminal fines and other

sanctions Class action civil antitrust lawsuits are expensive to defend and could result in significant judgments including in some

cases payment of treble damages andlor attorneys fees to the successful plaintiff Additionally negative publicity involving these

proceedings could affect our Companys brands and reputation possibly resulting in decreased demand for our products These

possible consequences in our opinion currently are not expected to materially impact our financial position or liquidity but could

materially impact our results of operations and cash flows in the period in which any fines settlements or judgments are accrued or

paid respectively

Item lB LWRESOL VED STAFF COMMENTS

None

Item PROPERTIES

Our principal properties include the following

Status

Country Location Type Own/Lease

United States Hershey Pennsylvania Manufacturingconfectionery products and pantry items Own

principal plants

Lancaster Pennsylvania Manufacturingconfectionery products Own

Robinson Illinois Manufacturingconfectionery products and pantry items Own

Stuarts Draft Virginia Manufacturingconfectionery products and pantry items Own

Edwardsville Illinois Distribution Own

Palmyra Pennsylvania Distribution Own

Ogden Utah Distribution Own

Canada Brantford Ontario Distribution Own

Mexico Monterrey Mexico Manufacturingconfectionery products Own

We have an agreement with the Ferrero Group for the use of warehouse and distribution facility of which the Company

has been deemed to be the owner for accounting purposes

In addition to the locations indicated above we also own or lease several other properties and buildings worldwide which we

use for manufacturing sales distribution and administrative functions Our facilities are well maintained and generally have

adequate capacity to accommodate seasonal demands changing product mixes and certain additional growth The largest facilities

are located in Hershey and Lancaster Pennsylvania Monterrey Mexico and Stuarts Draft Virginia We continually improve these

facilities to incorporate the latest technologies
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Item LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In 2007 the Competition Bureau of Canada began an inquiry into alleged violations of the Canadian Competition Act in the

sale and supply of chocolate products sold in Canada between 2002 and 2008 by members of the confectionery industry including

Hershey Canada Inc The U.S Department of Justice also notified the Company in 2007 that it had opened an inquiry but has not

requested any information or documents

Subsequently 13 civil lawsuits were filed in Canada and 91 civil lawsuits were filed in the United States against the

Company The lawsuits were instituted on behalf of direct purchasers of our products as well as indirect purchasers that purchase

our products for use or for resale Several other chocolate and confectionery companies were named as defendants in these lawsuits

as they also were the subject of investigations and/or inquiries by the government entities referenced above The cases seek

recovery for losses suffered as result of alleged conspiracies in restraint of trade in connection with the pricing practices of the

defendants The Canadian civil cases were settled in 2012 Hershey Canada Inc reached settlement agreement with the

Competition Bureau of Canada through their Leniency Program with regard to an inquiry into alleged violations of the Canadian

Competition Act in the sale and supply of chocolate products sold in Canada by members of the confectionery industry On

June 21 2013 Hershey Canada Inc pleaded guilty to one count of price fixing related to communications with competitors in

Canada in 2007 and paid fine of approximately $4.0 million Hershey Canada Inc had promptly reported the conduct to the

Competition Bureau cooperated fully with its investigation and did not implement the planned price increase that was the subject

of the 2007 communications

With regard to the U.S lawsuits the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation assigned the cases to the U.S District Court

for the Middle District of Pennsylvania Plaintiffs arc seeking actual and treble damages against the Company and other defendants

based on an alleged overcharge for certain or in some cases all chocolate products sold in the U.S between December 2002 and

December 2007 and certain plaintiff groups have alleged damages that extend beyond the alleged conspiracy period The lawsuits

have been proceeding on different scheduling tracks for different groups of plaintiffs

Defendants have briefed summary judgment against the direct purchaser plaintiffs that have not sought class certification

the Opt-Out Plaintiffs and those that have the Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs The Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs were

granted class certification in December 2012 Liability fact and expert discovery in the Opt-Out Plaintiffs and Direct Purchaser

Class Plaintiffs cases has been completed The hearing on summary judgment for the Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs combined

with the summary judgment hearing for the Opt-Out Plaintiffs was held on October 2013 decision is expected in the near

term Putative class plaintiffs that purchased product indirectly for resale the Indirect Purchasers for Resale have moved for

class certification briefing schedule has not been finalized Putative class plaintiffs that purchased product indirectly for use the

Indirect End Users may seek class certification after summary judgment against the Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs and the

Opt-Out Plaintiffs has been resolved No trial date has been set for any group of plaintiffs The Company will continue to

vigorously defend against these lawsuits

Competition and antitrust law investigations can be lengthy and violations are subject to civil and/or criminal fines and other

sanctions Class action civil antitrust lawsuits are expensive to defend and could result in significant judgments including in some

cases payment of treble damages and/or attorneys fees to the successful plaintiff Additionally negative publicity involving these

proceedings could affect our Companys brands and reputation possibly resulting in decreased demand for our products These

possible consequences in our opinion are currently not expected to materially impact our financial position or liquidity but could

materially impact our results of operations and cash flows in the period in which any fines settlements or judgments are accrued or

paid respectively

We have no other material pending legal proceedings other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to our business

Item MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART II

Item MARKETFOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMONEQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERSAND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

We paid $393.8 million in cash dividends on our Common Stock and Class Common Stock Class Stock in 2013 and

$341.2 million in 2012 The annual dividend rate on our Common Stock in 2013 was $1.81 per
share

On January 30 2014 our Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.485 per share of Common Stock payable on

March 14 2014 to stockholders of record as of February 24 2014 It is the Companys 337th consecutive quarterly Common

Stock dividend quarterly dividend of $0435 per share of Class Stock also was declared

Our Common Stock is listed and traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE under the ticker symbol

HSY Approximately 229.8 million shares of our Common Stock were traded during 2013 The Class Stock is not publicly

traded

The closing price of our Common Stock on December 31 2013 was $97.23 There were 35859 stockholders of record of

our Common Stock and stockholders of record of our Class Stock as of December 31 2013

Information regarding dividends paid and the quarterly high and low market prices for our Common Stock and dividends

paid for our Class Stock for the two most recent fiscal years is disclosed in Note 2O Quarterly Data

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no purchases of our Common Stock during the three months ended December 31 2013 In April 2011 our Board

of Directors approved $250 million share repurchase program As of December 31 2013 $125.1 million remained available for

repurchases of our Common Stock under this program
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares our cumulative total shareholder return Common Stock price appreciation plus dividends on

reinvested basis over the last five fiscal years with the Standard Poors 500 Index and the Standard Poors Packaged Foods

Index

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
THE HERSHEY COMPANY SP 500 INDEX AND

SP 500 PACKAGED FOODS INDEX
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4The Hershey Company --SP 500 Index ASP 500 Packaged Foods Index

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The Hershey Company $100 $106 $144 $194 $232 $318

SP500lndex $100 $126 $146 $149 $172 $228

SP 500 Packaged Foods Index $100 $118 $137 $161 $177 $232

Hypothetical $100 invested on December 31 2008 in Hershey Common Stock SP 500 Index and SP 500 Packaged

Foods Index assuming reinvestment of dividends
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Item SELECTED FINANCIAL BA TA

SIX-YEAR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SUMMARY
All dollar and share amounts in thousands except market price

and per share statistics

Summary of Operations

Net Sales

Cost of Sales

Selling Marketing and Administrative

Business Realignment and Impairment

Charges Credits Net

Interest Expense Net

Provision for Income Taxes

Net Income

Net Income Per Share

BasicClass Stock

DilutedClass Stock

BasicCommon Stock

DilutedCommon Stock

Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding

BasicCommon Stock

BasicClass Stock

Diluted

Dividends Paid on Common Stock

Per Share

Dividends Paid on Class Stock

Per Share

Depreciation

Advertising

Salaries and wages

Year-end Position and Statistics

Capital Additions

Capitalized Software Additions

Total Assets

Short-term Debt and Current Portion of

Long-term Debt

Long-term Portion of Debt

Stockholders Equity

Full-time Employees

Stockholders Data

Outstanding Shares of Common Stock and

Class Stock at Year-end

Market Price of Common Stock at Year-

end

Price Range During Year high
Price Range During Year low

5-Year

Compound
Growth Rate 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

6.8% $7146079 6644252 6080788 5671009 5298668 5132768

2.7% $3865231 3784370 3548896 3255801 3245531 3375050
12.4% $1922508 1703796 1477750 1426477 1208672 1073019

27.7% 18665 44938 886 83433 82875 94801

2.0% 88356 95569 92183 96434 90459 97876

19.0% 430849 354648 333883 299065 235137 180617

21.4% 820470 660931 628962 509799 435994 311405

21.7% 3.39

21.6% 3.37

21.7% 3.76

21.6% 3.61

2.73 2.58 2.08 1.77 1.27

2.71 2.56 2.07 1.77 1.27

3.01 2.85 2.29 1.97 1.41

2.89 2.74 2.21 1.90 1.36

163549 164406 165929 167032 167136 166709

60627 60630 60645 60708 60709 60777

227203 228337 229919 230313 228995 228697

8.3% 294979 255596 228269 213013 198371 197839

8.7% 1.81 1.56 1.38 1.28 1.19 1.19

8.7% 98822 85610 75814 70421 65032 65110

8.8% 1.63 1.41 1.25 1.16 1.07 1.07

6.0% 166544 174788 188491 169677 157996 227183

29.3% 582354 480016 414171 391145 241184 161133

2.7% 735889 709621 676482 641756 613568 645456

4.3% 323551 258727 323961 179538 126324 262643

6.1% 27360 19239 23606 21949 19146 20336

8.1% $5357488 4754839 4407094 4267627 3669926 3629614

19.8% 166875 375898 139673 285480 39313 501504

3.6% $1795142 1530967 1748500 1541825 1502730 1505954
35.2% $1616052 1048373 880943 945896 768634 358239

12600 12100 11800 11300 12100 12800

223895 223786 225206 227030 227998 227035

72.22 61.78 47.15 35.79 34.74

74.64 62.26 52.10 42.25 44.32

59.49 46.24 35.76 30.27 32.10

22.9% 97.23

100.90

73.51
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Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANAL YSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Results for the
year

ended December 31 2013 were strong with increases in net sales earnings per
share and profitability

despite continued macroeconomic challenges Net sales increased 7.6% compared with 2012 due to sales volume increases in the

United States and key international markets as we continued our focus on core brands and innovation Advertising expense

increased 21.3% for the year supporting core brands along with new product launches Net income and earnings per
share-diluted

also increased at greater rates than our long-term growth targets The investments we have made in both productivity and cost

savings resulted in business model that is more efficient and effective enabling us to deliver predictable consistent and

achievable marketplace and financial performance We continue to generate strong cash flow from operations and our financial

position remains solid

Adjusted Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Our Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section includes certain

measures of financial performance that are not defined by U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP For each of

these non-GAAP financial measures we are providing below the most directly comparable GAAP measure reconciliation

of the differences between the non-GAAP measure and the most directly comparable GAAP measure an explanation of why

our management believes these non-GAAP measures provide useful information to investors and additional purposes for

which we use these non-GAAP measures

We believe that the disclosure of these non-GAAP measures provides investors with better comparison of our year-to-year

operating results We exclude the effects of certain items from Income before Interest and Income Taxes EBIT EBIT margin

Net Income and Income per Share-Diluted-Common Stock EPS when we evaluate key measures of our performance internally

and in assessing the impact of known trends and uncertainties on our business We also believe that excluding the effects of these

items provides more balanced view of the underlying dynamics of our business

Adjusted non-GAAP financial measures exclude the impacts of charges or credits recorded during the last four years

associated with our business realignment initiatives and impairment charges Non-service-related pension expenses also are

excluded for each of the last four years along with acquisition closing integration and transaction costs and gain on the sale of

certain non-core trademark licensing rights in 2011

Non-service-related pension expenses include interest costs the expected return on pension plan assets the amortization of

actuarial gains and losses and certain curtailment and settlement losses or credits Non-service-related pension expenses may be

very volatile from year-to-year as result of changes in interest rates and market returns on pension plan assets Therefore we have

excluded non-service-related pension expense
from our results in accordance with GAAP We believe that non-GAAP financial

results excluding non-service-related pension expenses will provide investors with better understanding of the underlying

profitability of our ongoing business We believe that the service cost component of our total pension benefit costs closely reflects

the operating costs of our business and provides for better comparison of our operating results from year-to-year Our most

significant defined benefit pension plans were closed to most new participants after 2007 resulting in ongoing service costs that

are stable and predictable
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For the years ended December 31 2013 2012

Net Net

EBIT Income EPS EBIT Income EPS

In millions of dollars except per share amounts

Results in accordance with GAAP $1339.7 820.5 3.61 $1111.1 $660.9 2.89

Adjustments

Business realignment charges included in cost of sales

COS 0.4 0.2 36.4 23.7 0.10

Non-service-related pension expense
included in COS 5.4 3.3 0.02 8.6 5.3 0.03

Acquisition costs included in COS 0.3 0.2 4.1 3.0 0.01

Business realignment charges included in selling

marketing and administrative SMA 2.4 1.6 0.01

Non-service-related pension expense included in

SMA 5.5 3.3 0.01 12.0 7.4 0.03

Acquisition costs included in SMA 3.8 5.2 0.03 9.3 6.2 0.03

Business realignment and impairment charges net 18.6 11.6 0.05 45.0 31.9 0.14

Adjusted non-GAAP results $1373.7 844.3 3.72 $1228.9 740.0 3.24

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010

Net Net

EBIT Income EPS EBIT Income EPS

In millions of dollars except per share amounts

Results in accordance with GAAP $1055.0 628.9 2.74 905.3 509.8 2.21

Adjustments

Business realignment charges included in COS 45.1 28.4 0.12 13.7 8.4 0.04

Non-service-related pension expense included in COS 0.9 0.6

Business realignment charges included in SMA 5.0 3.0 0.01 1.5 0.9

Non-service-related pension expense included in

SMA 2.8 2.0 0.01 5.0 3.2 0.02

Gain on sale of trademark licensing rights included in

SMA 17.0 11.1 0.05

Business realignment and impairment credits charges

net 0.9 0.5 83.4 68.6 0.30

Adjustednon-GAAPresults $1090.0 650.7 2.83 $1009.8 591.5 2.57
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Adjusted Non-GAAP Results

Key Annual Performance Measures
2013 2012 2011

Increase in Net Sales
7.6% 9.3% 7.2%

Increase in adjusted EBIT 11.8% 12.7% 7.9%

Improvement in adjusted EBIT Margin in basis points bps 70bps 60bps 10bps

Increase in adjusted EPS 14.8% 14.5% 10.1%

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS

Analysis of Selected Items from Our GAAP Income Statement

Percent Change

Increase Decrease

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011

In millions of dollars except per share amounts

Net Sales 7146.0 6644.3 6080.8 7.6% 9.3%

Cost of Sales 3865.2 3784.4 3548.9 2.1 6.6

Gross Profit 3280.8 2859.9 2531.9 14.7 13.0

Gross Margin 45.9% 43.0% 41.6%

SMA Expense 1922.5 1703.8 1477.8 12.8 15.3

SMA Expense as percent of sales 26.9% 25.6% 24.3%

Business Realignment and Impairment

Charges Credits Net 18.6 45.0 0.9 58.5 N/A

EBIT 1339.7 1111.1 1055.0 20.6 5.3

EBIT Margin
18.7% 16.7% 17.4%

Interest Expense Net 88.4 95.6 92.2 7.5 3.7

Provision for Income Taxes 430.8 354.6 333.9 21.5 6.2

Effective Income Tax Rate 34.4% 34.9% 34.7%

Net Income 820.5 660.9 628.9 24.1 5.1

Net Income Per ShareDiluted 3.61 2.89 2.74 24.9 5.5

Net Sales

2013 compared with 2012

Net sales increased 7.6% in 2013 compared with 2012 due primarily to sales volume increases Sales volume increases of

7.8% reflected core brand sales increases and incremental sales of new products in the U.S and our international businesses

Higher sales of Brookside products contributed approximately
1.3% to the net sales increase These increases were partially offset

by the unfavorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates which reduced net sales by approximately 0.3% Net sales in U.S

dollars for our businesses outside of the U.S and Canada increased approximately 15.7% in 2013 compared with 2012 reflecting

sales volume increases primarily in our focus markets of China Mexico and Brazil Net sales increases for our international

businesses were offset somewhat by the impact of unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates
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2012 compared with 2011

Net sales increased 9.3% in 2012 compared with 2011 due to net price realization and sales volume increases in the U.S and

for our international businesses Net price realization contributed approximately 5.7% to the net sales increase Sales volume

increased net sales by approximately 2.2% due primarily to sales of new products in the U.S The Brookside acquisition

contributed approximately 1.9% to the net sales increase These increases were partially offset by the unfavorable impact of foreign

currency exchange rates which reduced net sales by approximately 0.5%

Excluding incremental sales from the Brookside acquisition net sales in the U.S increased approximately 7.1% compared

with 2011 primarily reflecting net price realization along with sales volume increases from the introduction of new products Net

sales in U.s dollars for our businesses outside of the U.S increased approximately 9.1% in 2012 compared with 2011 reflecting

sales volume increases and net price realization Net sales increases for our international businesses were offset somewhat by the

impact of unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates

Key US Marketplace Metrics

For the 52 weeks ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Consumer Takeaway Increase 6.3% 5.7% 7.8%

Market Share Increase 1.1 0.6 0.8

Consumer takeaway and the change in market share for 2013 and 2012 are provided for measured channels of distribution

accounting for approximately 90% of our U.S confectionery retail business These channels of distribution primarily include food

drug mass merchandisers including Wal-Mart Stores Inc and convenience stores

Consumer takeaway for 2011 is provided for channels of distribution accounting for approximately 80% of our U.S

confectionery retail business These channels of distribution include food drug mass merchandisers including Wal-Mart Stores

Inc and convenience stores The change in market share for 2011 is provided for channels measured by syndicated data which

include sales in the food drug convenience store and mass merchandiser classes of trade excluding sales of Wal-Mart Stores Inc

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

2013 compared with 2012

Cost of sales increased 2.1% in 2013 compared with 2012 The impact of sales volume increases and supply chain cost

inflation together increased cost of sales by approximately 9.4% Lower input costs supply chain productivity improvements and

favorable sales mix reduced cost of sales by approximately 6.3% Business realignment and impairment charges of $0.4 million

were included in cost of sales in 2013 compared with $36.4 million in the prior year reducing cost of sales by 1.0%

Gross margin increased by 2.9 percentage points in 2013 compared with 2012 Reduced input costs supply chain

productivity improvements favorable sales mix and lower fixed costs as percent of sales together improved gross margin by 3.9

percentage points These improvements were partially offset by supply chain cost inflation which reduced gross margin by 1.6

percentage points The impact of lower business realignment and impairment charges recorded in 2013 compared with 2012

increased gross margin by 0.6 percentage points

2012 compared with 2011

The cost of sales increase of 6.6% in 2012 compared with 2011 was primarily due to higher input costs the impact of sales

volume increases and higher supply chain costs which together increased cost of sales by approximately 7.1% The Brookside

acquisition further increased cost of sales by approximately 2.0% Supply chain productivity improvements reduced cost of sales

by approximately 2.5% Business realignment and impairment charges of $36.4 million were included in cost of sales in 2012

compared with $45.1 million in the prior year

Gross margin increased by 1.4 percentage points in 2012 compared with 2011 primarily as result of price realization and

supply chain productivity improvements which together improved gross margin by 4.1 percentage points These improvements

were substantially offset by higher input and supply chain costs which reduced
gross margin by total of 2.9 percentage points

The impact of lower business realignment and impairment charges recorded in 2012 compared with 2011 increased gross margin

by 0.2 percentage points
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Selling Marketing and Administrative

2013 compared with 2012

Selling marketing and administrative expenses increased $218.7 million or 12.8% in 2013 Contributing to the overall

increase was 19.7% increase in advertising consumer promotions and other marketing expenses to support core brands and the

introduction of new products in the U.S and international markets Advertising expenses
increased 21.3% compared with 2012

Additionally selling and administrative expenses
increased 8.8% primarily as result of higher employee-related expenses

increased incentive compensation costs legal fees and increased marketing research expenses along with the write-off of certain

assets associated with the remodeling of increased office space There were minimal business realignment charges included in

SMA in 2013 compared with $2.5 million in 2012

2012 compared with 2011

Selling marketing and administrative expenses
increased $226.0 million or 15.3% in 2012 The increase was primarily

result of increased advertising marketing research and consumer promotion expenses higher employee-related expenses increased

incentive compensation costs and expenses associated with the Brookside acquisition In addition selling marketing and

administrative costs were reduced in 2011 by $17.0 million gain on the sale of non-core trademark licensing rights Advertising

expense increased approximately 15.9% compared with 2011 Business realignment charges of $2.5 million were included in

selling marketing and administrative expenses in 2012 compared with $5.0 million in 2011

Business Realignment and Impairment Charges

In June 2010 we announced Project Next Century the Next Century program as part of our ongoing efforts to create an

advantaged supply chain and competitive cost structure As part of the program production was transitioned from the Companys

century-old facility at 19 East Chocolate Avenue in Hershey Pennsylvania to an expanded West Hershey facility which was built

in 1992 Production from the 19 East Chocolate Avenue plant as well as portion of the workforce was fully transitioned to the

West Hershey facility during 2012

We estimate that the Next Century program will incur total pre-tax charges and non-recurring project implementation costs

of $190 million to $200 million As of December 31 2013 total costs of$190.4 million have been recorded over the last four years

for the Next Century program Total costs of$16.8 million were recorded during 2013 Total costs of $76.3 million were recorded

in 2012 total costs of $43.4 million were recorded in 2011 and total costs of $53.9 million were recorded in 2010

During 2009 we completed our comprehensive supply chain transformation program initiated in 2006 the global supply

chain transformation program

In December 2012 the Company recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of approximately $7.5 million primarily

associated with the write off of goodwill and other intangible assets of Tn-US Inc subsidiary in which we held controlling

interest
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Charges credits associated with business realignment initiatives and impairment recorded during 2013 2012 and 2011 were

as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Cost of sales

Next Century program 402 36383 39280
Global supply chain transformation program 5816

Total cost of sales 402 36383 45096

Selling marketing and administrativeNext Century program 18 2446 4961

Business realignment and impairment charges net

Next Century program

Pension settlement loss 15787

Plant closure expenses 16387 20780 8620
Employee separation costs credits 914 9506

India voluntary retirement program 2278

Tn-US Inc asset impairment charges 7457
__________

Total business realignment and impairment charges credits net 18665 44938 886
Total net charges associated with business realignment initiatives and impairment 19085 83767 49171

Next Century Program

Plant closure
expenses

of $16.4 million were recorded during 2013 primarily related to costs associated with the demolition

of former manufacturing facility

The charge of $36.4 million recorded in cost of sales during 2012 related primarily to start-up costs and accelerated

depreciation of fixed assets over reduced estimated remaining useful life associated with the Next Century program charge of

$2.4 million was recorded in selling marketing and administrative expenses during 2012 for project administration related to the

Next Century program The level of lump sum withdrawals during 2012 from one of the Companys pension plans by employees

retiring or leaving the Company primarily under the Next Century program resulted in non-cash pension settlement loss of

$15.8 million Expenses of $20.8 million were recorded in 2012 primarily related to costs associated with the closure of

manufacturing facility and the relocation of production lines

The charge of $39.3 million recorded in cost of sales during 2011 related primarily to accelerated depreciation of fixed assets

over reduced estimated remaining useful life associated with the Next Century program change of $5.0 million was recorded in

selling marketing and administnative expenses during 2011 for project administration related to the Next Century program Plant

closure expenses of $8.6 million were recorded in 2011 primarily related to costs associated with the relocation of production lines

Employee separation costs were reduced by $9.5 million during 2011 which consisted of an $11.2 million credit reflecting lower

expected costs related to voluntary and involuntary terminations at the two manufacturing facilities and net benefits curtailment

loss of $1.7 million also related to the employee terminations

Global Supply Chain Transformation Program

The charge of $5.8 million recorded in 2011 was due to decline in the estimated net realizable value of two properties

being held for sale
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Tri-U$ Inc Impairment Charges

In February 2011 we acquired 49% interest in Tn-US Inc of Boulder Colorado company that manufactured marketed

and sold nutritional beverages under the mixbrand name We invested $5.8 million and accounted for this investment using the

equity method until January 2012 In January 2012 we made an additional investment of $6.0 million in Tn-US Inc resulting in

controlling ownership interest of approximately 69% In December 2012 the Board of Directors of Tn-US Inc decided to

immediately cease operations and dissolve the company as result of operational difficulties quality issues and competitive

constraints It was determined that investments necessary to continue the business would not generate
sufficient return

Accordingly in December 2012 the Company recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of approximately $7.5 million

primarily associated with the write off of goodwill and other intangible assets These charges excluded the portion of the losses

attributable to the noncontrolling interests

Liabilities Associated with Business Realignment Initiatives

As of December 31 2013 there was no remaining liability balance relating to the Next Century program We made

payments against the liabilities recorded for the Next Century program of $7.6 million in 2013 and $12.8 million in 2012 related to

employee separation and project administration costs

Income Before Interest and Income Taxes and EBIT Margin

2013 compared with 2012

EBIT increased in 2013 compared with 2012 as result of higher gross profit and lower business realignment charges

partially offset by higher selling marketing and administrative expenses Pre-tax net business realignment and impairment charges

of $19.1 million were recorded in 2013 compared with $83.8 million recorded in 2012

EBIT margin increased from 16.7% in 2012 to 18.7% in 2013 as result of higher gross margin and lower business

realignment charges partially offset by higher selling marketing and administrative expenses as percent of sales The net impact

of business realignment impairment and acquisition charges recorded in 2013 reduced EBIT margin by 0.3 percentage points Net

business realignment and impairment charges recorded in 2012 reduced EBIT margin by 1.3 percentage points

2012 compared with 2011

EBIT increased in 2012 compared with 2011 as result of higher gross profit substantially offset by higher selling

marketing and administrative expenses and business realignment and impairment charges Pre-tax net business realignment and

impairment charges of $83.8 million were recorded in 2012 compared with $49.2 million recorded in 2011

EBIT margin decreased from 17.4% in 2011 to 16.7% in 2012 primarily as result of higher selling marketing and

administrative expenses as percent
of sales and the impact of higher business realignment

and impairment costs which more than

offset the increase in gross margin EBIT margin in 2012 was reduced by 0.3 percentage points compared with 2011 as result of

the gain on the sale of trademark licensing rights recorded in 2011 The net impact of business realignment impairment and

acquisition charges recorded in 2012 reduced EBIT margin by 1.3 percentage points Net business realignment and impairment

charges recorded in 2011 reduced EBIT margin by 0.8 percentage points

Interest Expense Net

2013 compared with 2012

Net interest expense in 2013 was lower than in 2012 primarily as result of lower short-term borrowings partially offset by

decrease in capitalized interest and higher interest expense on long-term debt

2012 compared with 2011

Net interest expense
in 2012 was higher than in 2011 primarily as result of higher short-term borrowings and decrease in

capitalized interest partially
offset by lower interest expense on long-term debt
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Income Taxes and Effective Tax Rate

2013 compared with 2012

Our effective income tax rate was 34.4% for 2013 compared with 34.9% for 2012 The decrease in the effective income tax

rate in 2013 reflected lower state income taxes which were higher in 2012 as result of the impact of certain state tax legislation

and an increase in deductions associated with certain foreign tax jurisdictions partially offset by higher benefit in 2012 resulting

from the completion of tax audits

2012 compared with 2011

Our effective income tax rate was 34.9% for 2012 compared with 34.7% for 2011 The effective income tax rate was slightly

higher in 2012 primarily reflecting the impact of tax rates associated with business realignment and impairment charges recorded

in 2012 compared with 2011 and the mix of the Companys income among various tax jurisdictions

Net Income and Net Income Per Share

2013 compared with 2012

Earnings per share-diluted increased $0.72 or 24.9% in 2013 compared with 2012 Net income in 2013 was reduced by
$11.8 million or $0.05 per share-diluted as result of net business realignment and impairment charges and in 2012 was reduced

by $57.2 million or $0.25 per share-diluted In 2013 net income was reduced by $6.6 million or $0.03 per share-diluted as

result of non-service-related pension expenses Non-service-related pension expenses reduced net income by $12.7 million or

$0.06 per share-diluted in 2012 Excluding the impact of business realignment and impairment charges and non-service-related

pension expenses from both periods and the acquisition closing integration and transaction costs of $5.4 million or $0.03 per

share-diluted in 2013 and $9.2 million or $0.04 per share-diluted in 2012 adjusted earnings per share-diluted increased $0.48

per share or 14.8% in 2013 compared with 2012

2012 compared with 2011

Earnings per share-diluted increased $0.15 or 5.5% in 2012 compared with 2011 Net income in 2012 was reduced by
$57.2 million or $0.25 per share-diluted as result of net business realignment and impairment charges Net income was reduced

by $9.2 million or $0.04 per share-diluted in 2012 as result of closing and integration costs for the Brookside acquisition and by
$12.7 million or $0.06 per share-diluted related to non-service-related pension expenses in 2012 In 2011 net income was

increased by $11.1 million or $0.05 per share-diluted as result of the gain on sale of trademark licensing rights and reduced by

$30.9 million or $0.13 per share-diluted as result of net business realignment and impairment charges Non-service-related

pension expenses reduced net income by $2.0 million or $0.01
per share-diluted in 2011 Excluding the impact of business

realignment and impairment charges and non-service-related pension expenses from both periods the acquisition closing and

integration costs in 2012 and the gain on the sale of trademark licensing rights in 2011 adjusted earnings per share-diluted

increased $0.41 per share or 14.5% in 2012 compared with 2011

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Our financial condition remained strong during 2013 reflecting strong cash flow from operations

Business Acquisitions

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for as purchases and accordingly their results of operations have been included in

the consolidated financial statements since the respective dates of the acquisitions The purchase price for each acquisition is

allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed

In Januaiy 2012 we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Brookside Foods Ltd Brookside privately held

confectionery company based in Abbottsford British Columbia Canada As part of this transaction we acquired two production

facilities located in British Columbia and Quebec The Brookside product line is primarily sold in the U.S and Canada in take

home re-sealable pack type
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Our financial statements reflect the final accounting for the Brookside acquisition The purchase price for the acquisition was

approximately $172.9 million The purchase price allocation of the Brookside acquisition is as follows

Purchase

Price

Allocation

67974

60253

51057

21673

28101

172856

In thousands of dollars ____________

Goodwill

Trademarks

Other intangibles1

Other assets net of liabilities assumed of $18.7 million

Non-current deferred tax liabilities
____________

Purchase Price ____________

Includes customer relationships patents
and covenants not to compete

The excess purchase price over the estimated value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets was recorded to

goodwill The goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes

We included results subsequent to the acquisition
date in the consolidated financial statements If we had included the results

of the acquisition in the consolidated financial statements for each of the periods presented the effect would not have been

material

Assets

summary of our assets is as follows

December 31

In thousands of dollars

Current assets

Property plant and equipment net

Goodwill and other intangibles

Deferred income taxes

Other assets

Total assets

2013 2012

2487334 2113485

1805345 1674071

771805 802716

12448

293004 152119

5357488 4754839

Estimated

Useful Life

in Years

Indefinite

25

to 17

26



The change in current assets from 2012 to 2013 was primarily due to the following

Higher cash and cash equivalents in 2013 reflecting strong cash flow from operations

An increase in accounts receivable reflecting higher sales in December 2013 compared with December 2012

An increase in total inventories primarily reflecting higher finished goods inventories necessary to support

anticipated sales levels of everyday items and the introduction of new products and

decrease in current deferred income tax assets primarily reflecting the impact of the change in value of derivative

instruments particularly interest rate swap agreements

Higher property plant and equipment in 2013 reflecting capital additions of $323.6 million partly offset by

depreciation expense of$166.5 million

decrease in non-current deferred tax assets as result of the change in the funded status of our pension plans

decrease in goodwill and other intangibles primarily due to the effect of foreign currency translation

An increase in other assets primarily due to receivable for an anticipated U.S and Canada Competent Authority

resolution of various proposed tax adjustments the improvement in the funded status of our pension plans and the value

of interest rate swap agreements at the end of the year

Liabilities

summary of our liabilities is as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Current liabilities 1408022 1471110

Long-term debt 1795142 1530967

Other long-term liabilities 434068 668732

Deferred income taxes 104204 35657

Total liabilities 3741436 3706466

Changes in current liabilities from 2012 to 2013 were primarily the result of the following

Higher accounts payable reflecting an increase in amounts payable for marketing programs as well as capital

expenditures partially offset by the timing of payments associated with inventory deliveries to support

manufacturing requirements

Higher accrued liabilities related to marketing and trade promotion programs partially offset by lower liabilities

associated with the Next Century program

An increase in accrued income taxes reflecting the impact of proposed tax adjustments in Canada associated with

business realignment charges and transfer pricing

An increase in short-term debt primarily associated with an increase in short-term borrowings for Canada and

Mexico partially offset by the repayment of short-term debt in India and

decrease in the current portion of long-term debt reflecting the repayment of $250 million of 5.0% Notes in 2013

An increase in long-term debt reflecting the issuance of $250 million of 2.625% Notes due in May 2023

decrease in other long-term liabilities primarily due to the change in the funded status of our pension plans

An increase in deferred income taxes primarily reflecting the tax effect of the change in the funded status of our pension

plans
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Capital Structure

We have two classes of stock outstanding Common Stock and Class Stock Holders of the Common Stock and the Class

Stock generally vote together without regard to class on matters submitted to stockholders including the election of directors

Holders of the Common Stock have vote per share Holders of the Class Stock have 10 votes per
share Holders of the

Common Stock voting separately as class are entitled to elect one-sixth of our Board of Directors With respect to dividend

rights holders of the Common Stock are entitled to cash dividends 10% higher than those declared and paid on the Class Stock

Hershey Trust Company as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School maintains voting control over The Hershey

Company In this section we refer to Hershey Trust Company in its capacity as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School

as the Milton Hershey School Trust or the Trust In addition the Milton Hershey School Trust currently has three

representatives who are members of the Board of Directors of the Company one of whom is the Chairman of the Board These

representatives from time to time in performing their responsibilities on the Companys Board may exercise influence with regard

to the ongoing business decisions of our Board of Directors or management The Trust has indicated that in its role as controlling

stockholder of the Company it intends to retain its controlling interest in The Hershey Company and that the Company Board and

not the Trust Board is solely responsible and accountable for the Companys management and performance

Pennsylvania law requires that the Office of Attorney General be provided advance notice of any transaction that would

result in the Milton Hershey School Trust no longer having voting control of the Company The law provides specific statutory

authority for the Attorney General to intercede and petition the Court having jurisdiction over the Milton Hershey School Trust to

stop such transaction if the Attorney General can prove that the transaction is unnecessary for the future economic viability of the

Company and is inconsistent with investment and management considerations under fiduciary obligations This legislation makes it

more difficult for third party to acquire majority of our outstanding voting stock and thereby may delay or prevent change in

control of the Company

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries

In May 2007 we entered into an agreement with Godrej Beverages and Foods Ltd consumer goods confectionery and

food company to manufacture and distribute confectionery products snacks and beverages across India Under the agreement we

owned 51% controlling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd The noncontrolling interests in Godrej Hershey Ltd were included in the

equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets In September 2012 we acquired the remaining 49% interest in Godrej Hershey

Ltd for approximately $15.8 million Since the Company had controlling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd the difference between

the amount paid and the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest of $10.3 million was recorded as reduction to additional

paid-in capital and the noncontrolling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd was eliminated as of September 30 2012

We own 51% controlling interest in Hershey do Brasil under cooperative agreement with Pandurata Netherlands B.V

Bauducco leading manufacturer of baked goods in Brazil whose primary brand is Bauducco During 2013 and 2012 the

Company contributed cash of approximately $3.1 million to Hershey do Brasil and Bauducco contributed approximately

$2.9 million The noncontrolling interest in Hershey do Brasil is included in the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets

The decrease in noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries from $11.6 million as of December 31 2012 to $11.2 million as of

December 31 2013 reflected the impact of the noncontrolling interests share of losses of these entities and currency
translation

adjustments partially offset by the impact of the cash contributed by Bauducco The share of losses pertaining to the

noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries was $1.7 million for the year ended December 31 2013 $9.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2012 and $7.4 million for the year ended December31 2011 This was reflected in selling marketing and

administrative expenses
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our principal source of liquidity is operating cash flows Our net income and consequently our cash provided from

operations are impacted by sales volume seasonal sales patterns timing of new product introductions profit margins and price

changes Sales are typically higher during the third and fourth quarters of the year due to seasonal and holiday-related sales

patterns Generally working capital needs peak during the summer months We meet these needs primarily by utilizing cash on

hand or by issuing commercial paper

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Our cash flows provided from used by operating activities were as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Net income 820470 660931 628962

Depreciation and amortization 201033 210037 215763

Stock-based compensation and excess tax benefits 5571 16606 29471

Deferred income taxes 7457 13785 33611

Gain on sale of trademark licensing rights net of tax 11072

Non-cash business realignment and impairment

charges 38144 34660

Contributions to pension and other benefit plans 57213 44208 31671

Working capital 29391 2133 116909

Changes in other assets and liabilities 240478 201665 194948

Net cash provided from operating activities 1188405 1094827 587867

Over the past three years total cash provided from operating activities was approximately $2.9 billion

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased in 2013 in comparison with 2012 primarily due to lower

accelerated depreciation charges related to the Next Century program offset somewhat by higher capital additions in

2013 Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased in 2012 as compared with 2011 principally as the result of

lower accelerated depreciation charges related to the Next Century program somewhat offset by higher depreciation

and amortization charges related to the Brookside acquisition No significant accelerated depreciation expense was

recorded in 2013 compared with approximately $15.3 million recorded in 2012 and $33.0 million recorded in 2011

Depreciation and amortization expenses represent non-cash items that impacted net income and are reflected in the

consolidated statements of cash flows to reconcile cash flows from operating activities

The deferred income tax provision in 2013 was lower than in 2012 primarily as result of foreign deferred income

tax benefit in 2013 reflecting higher deferred tax assets related to advertising and promotion reserves partially offset

by an increase in the federal deferred income tax provision associated principally with higher deferred tax liabilities

related to inventories The deferred income tax provision was lower in 2012 than in 2011 primarily as result of the

lower tax impact associated with bonus depreciation resulting from reduced capital expenditures in 2012 for the Next

Century program Deferred income taxes represent non-cash items that impacted net income and are reflected in the

consolidated statements of cash flows to reconcile cash flows from operating activities

During the third quarter of 2011 we recorded an $11.1 million gain net of tax on the sale of certain non-core

trademark licensing rights

We contributed $133.1 million to our pension and other benefit plans over the past three years to improve the funded

status of our domestic plans and to pay benefits under our non-funded pension plans and other benefit plans
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Over the three-year period cash provided from working capital tended to fluctuate due to the timing of sales and cash

collections during December of each year and working capital management practices including initiatives

implemented to reduce working capital The decrease in cash used by accounts receivable in 2013 was associated with

timing of sales and cash collections during December 2013 compared with December 2012 Cash used by changes in

inventories in 2013 primarily resulted from higher finished goods inventory levels at the end of 2013 to support

anticipated sales levels of everyday items and the introduction of new products along with the impact of the lower

adjustment to LIFO Cash provided from changes in accounts payable in 2013 were associated with the timing of

payments for inventory deliveries and marketing programs Cash provided from changes in inventories in 2012

resulted from lower inventory levels which were higher at the end of 2011 in anticipation of the transition of

production under the Next Century program Changes in cash used by inventories in 2011 was primarily associated

with increases in inventory levels in anticipation of the transition of production under the Next Century program

along with higher inventories to support seasonal sales

During the three-year period cash provided from or used by changes in other assets and liabilities reflected the effect

of hedging transactions and the impact of business realignment initiatives along with the related tax effects Cash

provided from changes in other assets and liabilities in 2013 compared with 2012 was primarily associated with the

effect of business realignment and impairment charges and the timing of payments associated with selling and

marketing programs of $92.5 million partially offset by the impact of changes in various accrued liabilities and

hedging
transactions of $53.7 million Cash provided from changes in other assets and liabilities in 2012 compared

with cash used by changes in other assets and liabilities in 2011 primarily reflected the effect of hedging transactions

of $304.2 million the effect of changes in deferred and accrued income taxes of $44.1 million and business

realignment initiatives of $46.8 million

Taxable income and related tax payments in 2013 reflected the increase in income for the year Taxable income and

related tax payments in 2012 and 2011 were reduced primarily by bonus depreciation tax deductions driven by capital

expenditures associated with the Next Century program This was offset somewhat by increases in income taxes paid

associated with higher income

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our cash flows provided from used by investing activities were as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Capital additions 323551 258727 323961

Capitalized software additions 27360 19239 23606

Proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment 15331 453 312

Proceeds from sale of trademark licensing rights
20000

Loan to affiliate 16000 23000 7000

Business acquisitions
172856 5750

Net cash used by investing activities 351580 473369 340005
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Capital additions in 2013 for the construction of new manufacturing facility in Malaysia totaled $40.0 million

Capital additions associated with our Next Century program in 2013 were $11.8 million in 2012 were $74.7 million

and in 2011 were $179.4 million Other capital additions were primarily related to purchases of manufacturing

equipment for new products and the improvement of manufacturing efficiency

Capitalized software additions were primarily for ongoing enhancement of our information systems

We anticipate total capital expenditures including capitalized software of approximately $355 million to $375

million in 2014 of which $120 million to $130 million is associated with the construction of the manufacturing

facility in Malaysia

The loans to affiliate during the three-year period were associated with financing the expansion of manufacturing

capacity under our manufacturing agreement in China with Lotte Confectionery Company LTD

In January 2012 the Company acquired Brookside for approximately $172.9 million

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our cash flows provided from used by financing activities were as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Net change in short-term borrowings 54351 77698 10834

Long-term borrowings 250595 4025 249126

Repayment of long-term debt 250761 99381 256189

Proceeds from lease financing agreement 47601

Cash dividends paid 393801 341206 304083
Exercise of stock options and excess tax benefits 195651 295473 198408

Net contributions from payments to noncontrolling interests 2940 12851

Repurchase of Common Stock 305564 510630 384515

Net cash used by financing activities 446589 586872 438818

In addition to utilizing cash on hand we use short-term borrowings commercial paper and bank borrowings to

fund seasonal working capital requirements and ongoing business needs The reduction in short-term borrowings in

2013 was associated with our international businesses The increase in short-term borrowings in 2012 was primarily

associated with the Brookside acquisition and our international businesses partially offset by repayments of Godrej

Hershey debt Additional information on short-term borrowings is included under Borrowing Arrangements below

In May 2013 we issued $250 million of 2.625% Notes due in 2023 and in November 2011 we issued $250 million

of 1.5% Notes due in 2016 The long-term borrowings in 2013 and 2011 were issued under shelf registration

statements on Form S-3 described under Registration Statements below

In April 2013 we repaid $250 million of 5.0% Notes due in 2013 and in August 2012 we repaid $92.5 million of

6.95% Notes due in 2012 Additionally in September 2011 we repaid $250.0 million of 5.3% Notes due in 2011

In September 2011 we entered into sale and leasing agreement for the 19 East Chocolate Avenue manufacturing

facility Based on the leasing agreement we are deemed to be the owner of the property for accounting purposes

We received net proceeds of $47.6 million and recorded lease financing obligation of $50.0 million under the

leasing agreement
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Equity contributions of $2.9 million were received from the noncontrolling interests in Hershey do Brasil in 2013

In May 2007 we entered into an agreement with Godrej Beverages and Foods Ltd consumer goods

confectionery and food company to manufacture and distribute confectionery products snacks and beverages

across India Under the agreement we owned 51 controlling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd In September 2012

we acquired the remaining 49% interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd for approximately $15.8 million Payments to

noncontrolling interests associated with Godrej Hershey Ltd in 2012 were partially offset by equity contributions of

$2.9 million by the noncontrolling interests in Hershey do Brasil in 2012

We paid cash dividends of $295.0 million on our Common Stock and $98.8 million on our Class Stock in 2013

Cash used for the repurchase of Common Stock was partially offset by cash received from the exercise of stock

options and the impact of excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Repurchases and Issuances of Common Stock

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands Shares Dollars Shares Dollars Shares Dollars

Shares repurchased under authorized programs

Open market repurchases 2054 124931 1903 100015

Shares repurchased to replace reissued shares 3656 305564 5599 385699 5179 284500

Total share repurchases 3656 305564 7653 510630 7082 384515

Shares issued for stock-based compensation

programs 3765 156502 6233 210924 5258 177654

Net change 109 149062 1420 299706 1824 206861

We intend to repurchase shares of Common Stock in order to replace Treasury Stock shares issued for exercised stock

options and other stock-based compensation The value of shares purchased in given period will vary based on stock

options exercised over time and market conditions

In April 2011 our Board of Directors approved $250 million authorization to repurchase shares of our Common Stock

As of December 31 2013 $125.1 million remained available for repurchases of our Common Stock
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Cumulative Share Repurchases and Issuances

summary of cumulative share repurchases and issuances is as follows

Shares Dollars

In thousands

Shares repurchased under authorized programs

Open market repurchases 61393 2209377

Repurchases from the Milton Hershey School Trust 11918 245550

Shares retired 1056 12820

Total repurchases under authorized programs 72255 2442107

Privately negotiated purchases from the Milton Hershey School Trust 67282 1501373

Shares repurchased to replace reissued shares 44995 2208116

Shares issued for stock-based compensation programs and employee benefits 48525 1443866

Total held as Treasury Stock as of December 31 2013 136007 4707730

Borrowing Arrangements

We maintain debt levels we consider prudent based on our cash flow interest coverage ratio and percentage of debt to

capital We use debt financing to lower our overall cost of capital which increases our return on stockholders equity

In October 2011 we entered into new five-year agreement establishing an unsecured revolving credit facility to borrow

up to $1.1 billion with an option to increase borrowings by an additional $400 million with the consent of the lenders

In November 2013 the five-year agreement entered into in October 2011 was amended The amendment reduced the

amount of borrowings available under the unsecured revolving credit facility to $1.0 billion with an option to increase

borrowings by an additional $400 million with the consent of the lenders and extended the termination date to November

2018 As of December 31 2013 $1.0 billion was available to borrow under the agreement and no borrowings were

outstanding The unsecured revolving credit agreement contains certain financial and other covenants customary

representations warranties and events of default As of December 31 2013 we complied with all of these covenants We

may use these funds for general corporate purposes including commercial paper backstop and business acquisitions

In addition to the revolving credit facility we maintain lines of credit with domestic and international commercial banks

As of December 31 2013 we could borrow up to approximately $290.3 million in various currencies under the lines of

credit and as of December 31 2012 we could borrow up to $176.7 million
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Registration Statements

In May 2009 we filed shelf registration statement on Form S-3 that registered an indeterminate amount of debt

securities This registration statement was effective immediately upon filing under Securities and Exchange Commission

regulations governing well-known seasoned issuers the 2009 WKSI Registration Statement

In November 2011 we issued $250 million of 1.50% Notes due November 12016 and in December 2010 we issued

$350 million of 4.125% Notes due December 2020 The Notes were issued under the 2009 WKSI Registration

Statement

The 2009 WKSI Registration Statement expired in May 2012 Accordingly in May 2012 we filed new registration

statement on Form S-3 the 2012 WKSI Registration Statement to replace the 2009 WKSI Registration Statement The

registration statement filed in May 2012 registered an indeterminate amount of debt securities effective immediately

In May 2013 we issued $250 million of 2.625% Notes due May 2023 The Notes were issued under the 2012 WKSI

Registration Statement

Proceeds from the debt issuances and any other offerings under the 2012 WKSI Registration Statement may be used for

general corporate requirements These may include reducing existing borrowings financing capital additions and funding

contributions to our pension plans future business acquisitions and working capital requirements

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AND COMMITMENTS

As of December 31 2013 our contractual cash obligations by year were as follows

Payments Due by Year

In thousands of dollars

Contractual

Obligations 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total

Unconditional

Purchase

Obligations $1381600 651900 48300 6400 $2088200

Lease Obligations 36669 11521 10819 7563 2184 1580 70336

Minimum Pension

Plan Funding

Obligations 3559 2746 2712 2782 2556 2433 16788

Long-term Debt 914 251433 501331 878 411 1041089 1796056

Total Obligations $1422742 917600 563162 17623 5151 $1045102 $3971380

In entering into contractual obligations we have assumed the risk that might arise from the possible inability of

counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts We mitigate this risk by performing financial assessments prior to contract

execution conducting periodic evaluations of counterparty performance and maintaining diverse portfolio of qualified

counterparties Our risk is limited to replacing the contracts at prevailing market rates We do not expect any significant losses

resulting from counterparty defaults

Purchase Obligations

We enter into certain obligations for the purchase of raw materials These obligations are primarily in the form of forward

contracts for the purchase of raw materials from third-party brokers and dealers These contracts minimize the effect of future price

fluctuations by fixing the price of part or all of these purchase obligations Total obligations for each
year presented above

consisted of fixed price contracts for the purchase of commodities and unpriced contracts that were valued using market prices as

of December 31 2013

The cost of commodities associated with the unpriced contracts is variable as market prices change over future periods We

mitigate the variability of these costs to the extent we have entered into commodities futures contracts or other commodity

derivative instruments to hedge our costs for those periods Increases or decreases in market prices
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are offset by gains or losses on commodities futures contracts or other commodity derivative instruments This applies to the extent

that we have hedged the unpriced contracts as of December 31 2013 and in future periods by entering into commodities futures

contracts Taking delivery of and making payments for the specific commodities for use in the manufacture of finished goods

satisfies our obligations under the forward purchase contracts For each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2013

we satisfied these obligations by taking delivery of and making payment for the specific commodities

Lease Obligations

Lease obligations include the minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases primarily for offices

retail stores warehouse and distribution facilities and certain equipment

In September 2013 we entered into an agreement to lease land for the construction of the new confectionery manufacturing

plant in Johor Malaysia The lease term is 99 years and obligations under the terms of the lease require payment of

approximately $24.0 million in 2014 which is included in Lease Obligations in the Contractual Obligations table

Minimum Pension Plan Funding Obligations

Our policy is to fund domestic pension liabilities in accordance with the minimum and maximum limits imposed by the

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA federal income tax laws and the funding requirements of the

Pension Protection Act of 2006 We fund non-domestic pension liabilities in accordance with laws and regulations applicable to

those plans Minimum pension plan funding obligations include our current assumptions and estimates of the minimum required

contributions to our defined benefit pension plans through 2019 For more information see Note 14 Pension and Other Post-

Retirement Benefit Plans

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised primarily of obligations associated with the issuance of unsecured long-term debt instruments

Additional inlbrmation with regard to long-term debt is contained in Note 12 Long-Term Debt

In February 2012 we entered into agreements with the Ferrero Group Ferrero an international packaged goods

company fonning an alliance to mutually benefit from various warehousing co-packing transportation and procurement services

in North America The initial terms of the agreements are 10 years with three renewal periods each with term of 10 years The

agreements include the construction of warehouse and distribution facility in Brantford Ontario Canada for the mutual use of the

Company and Ferrero Ferrero was responsible for construction of the warehouse and we were responsible for development and

implementation of related information systems Over the term of the agreements costs associated with the warehouse construction

and the information systems will essentially be shared equally

During 2012 Ferrero made payments of approximately $36.0 million and we made payments of approximately $5.1 million

for construction of the facility During 2013 Ferrero made payments of approximately $5.6 million and we made payments of

approximately $6.3 million for the construction of the facility Because we were involved with the design of the facility and made

payments during the construction period the Company has been deemed to be the owner of the warehouse and distribution facility

for accounting purposes As result we recorded total of $41.1 million in construction in progress as of December 31 2012

including the payments made by Ferrero the legal owner of the facility corresponding financing obligation of $36.0 million was

recorded as of December 31 2012 reflecting the amount paid by Ferrero As of December 31 2013 our property plant and

equipment net included $53.0 million related to this facility and our long-term debt included $42.6 million related to the financing

obligation

Plant Construction Obligations

In December 2013 we entered into an agreement for the construction of the new confectionery manufacturing plant in

Malaysia The total cost of construction is expected to be approximately $240 million The plant is expected to begin operations

during the second quarter of 2015
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Asset Retirement Obligations

We have number of facilities that contain varying amounts of asbestos in certain locations within the facilities Our

asbestos management program is compliant with current applicable regulations Current regulations require that we handle or

dispose of asbestos in special manner if such facilities undergo major renovations or are demolished Costs associated with the

removal of asbestos related to the closure of manufacturing facility under the Next Century program were recorded primarily in

2012 and included in business realignment and impairment charges The costs associated with the removal of asbestos from the

facility were not material With regard to other facilities we believe we do not have sufficient information to estimate the fair

value of any asset retirement obligations related to these facilities We cannot specify the settlement date or range of potential

settlement dates and therefore sufficient information is not available to apply an expected present value technique We expect to

maintain the facilities with repairs and maintenance activities that would not involve or require the removal of significant quantities

of asbestos

Income Tax Obligations

We base our deferred income taxes accrued income taxes and provision for income taxes upon income statutory tax rates

the legal structure of our Company and interpretation of tax laws We are regularly audited by federal state and foreign tax

authorities From time to time these audits result in assessments of additional tax We maintain reserves for such assessments We

adjust the reserves based upon changing facts and circumstances such as receiving audit assessments or clearing of an item for

which reserve has been established Assessments of additional tax require cash payments For more information see Income

Taxes beginning on page 47 under Use of Estimates and Other Critical Accounting Policies The amount of tax obligations is not

included in the table of contractual cash obligations by year on page 34 because we are unable to reasonably predict the ultimate

amount or timing of settlement of our reserves for income taxes

Acquisition Agreement

In December 2013 we entered into an agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Shanghai Golden Monkey Food

Joint Stock Co Ltd SGM privately held confectionery company based in Shanghai China SGM manufactures markets and

distributes Golden Monkey branded products including candy chocolates protein based products and snack foods in China The

purchase price of approximately $584 million will be paid in cash of approximately $498 million and the assumption of

approximately $86 million of net debt Eighty percent of the purchase price will be paid in mid-2014 with the remaining twenty

percent to be paid one year from the date of the initial payment The acquisition is subject to government and regulatory approvals

and customary closing conditions

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MARKET RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We use certain derivative instruments to manage risks These include interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk foreign

currency forward exchange contracts and options to manage foreign currency exchange rate risk and commodities futures and

options contracts to manage commodity market price risk exposures

We enter into interest rate swap agreements and foreign exchange forward contracts and options for periods consistent with

related underlying exposures These derivative instruments do not constitute positions independent of those exposures

We enter into commodities futures and options contracts and other derivative instruments for varying periods These

commodity derivative instruments are intended to be and are effective as hedges of market price risks associated with anticipated

raw material purchases energy requirements and transportation costs We do not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading

purposes and are not party to any instruments with leverage or prepayment features

In entering into these contracts we have assumed the risk that might arise from the possible inability of counterparties to

meet the terms of their contracts We mitigate this risk by entering into exchange-traded contracts with collateral posting

requirements and/or by performing financial assessments prior to contract execution conducting periodic evaluations of

counterparty performance and maintaining diverse portfolio of qualified counterparties We do not expect any significant losses

from counterparty defaults
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Accounting Policies Associated with Derivative Instruments

We report the effective portion of the gain or loss on derivative instrument designated and qualifying as cash flow

hedging instrument as component of other comprehensive income We reclassif the effective portion of the gain or loss on these

derivative instruments into income in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings The

remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument resulting from hedge ineffectiveness if any must be recognized currently in

earnings

Fair value hedges pertain to derivative instruments that qualify as hedge of exposures to changes in the fair value of firm

commitment or assets and liabilities recognized on the balance sheet For fair value hedges our policy is to record the gain or loss

on the derivative instrument in earnings in the period of change together with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item The

effect of that accounting is to reflect in earnings the extent to which the hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in

fair value

As of December 31 2013 we designated and accounted for all derivative instruments as cash flow hedges except for out of

the money options contracts on certain commodities These included interest rate swap agreements foreign exchange forward

contracts and options commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments Additional

information regarding accounting policies associated with derivative instruments is contained in Note Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities

The information below summarizes our market risks associated with long-term debt and derivative instruments outstanding

as of December 31 2013 Note Note and Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements provide additional information

Long-term Debt

The table below presents the principal cash flows and related interest rates by maturity date for long-term debt including the

current portion as of December 31 2013 We determined the fair value of long-term debt based upon quoted market prices for the

same or similardebt issues

Maturity Date

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total Fair Value

In thousands of dollars except for rates

Long-term Debt $914 $251433 $501331 878 411 $1041089 $1796056 $1947023

Interest Rate 7.7% 4.9% 3.5% 6.9% 5.1% 5.1% 4.6%

We calculated the interest rates on variable rate obligations using the rates in effect as of December 2013

Interest Rate Swaps

In order to manage interest rate exposure the Company from time to time enters into interest rate swap agreements In

April 2012 the Company entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure related to the

anticipated $250 million of term financing expected to be executed during 2013 to repay $250 million of 5.0% Notes maturing in

April 2013 The weighted-average fixed rate on these forward starting swap agreements was 2.4% In May 2012 the Company
entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure related to the anticipated $250 million of

term financing expected to be executed during 2015 to repay $250 million of 4.85% Notes maturing in August 2015 The

weighted-average fixed rate on these forward starting swap agreements is 2.7%

The forward starting swap agreements entered into in April 2012 matured in March 2013 resulting in realized loss of

approximately $9.5 million Also in March 2013 we entered into forward starting swap agreements to continue to hedge interest

rate exposure related to the term financing expected to be executed in 2013 The weighted-average fixed rate on the forward

starting swap agreements was 2.1%

In May 2013 we terminated the forward starting swap agreements which were entered into in March 2013 to
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hedge the anticipated execution of term financing The swap agreements were terminated upon the issuance of the 2.625% Notes

due May 2023 resulting in cash payments of $0.2 million in May 2013 Losses on these swap agreements are included in

accumulated other comprehensive loss and are being amortized as an increase to interest expense over the term of the Notes

The fair value of interest rate swap agreements was an asset of $22.7 million as of December 31 2013 Our risk related to

interest rate swap agreements is limited to the cost of replacing such agreements at prevailing market rates As of December 31

2013 the potential net loss associated with interest rate swap agreements resulting from hypothetical near-term adverse change in

interest rates often percent was approximately $8.0 million

In March 2009 we entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure
related to the

anticipated $250 million of term financing expected to be executed during 2011 In September 2011 the forward starting interest

rate swap agreements which were entered into in March 2009 matured resulting in cash payments by the Company of

approximately $26.8 million Also in September 2011 we entered into forward starting swap agreements to continue to hedge

interest rate exposure
related to the term financing These swap agreements were terminated upon the issuance of the 1.5% Notes

due November 2016 resulting in cash payments by the Company of $2.3 million in November 2011 The losses on these swap

agreements are being amortized as an increase to interest expense over the term of the Notes

For more information see Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts and Options

We enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options to hedge transactions denominated in foreign

currencies These transactions are primarily purchase commitments or forecasted purchases associated with the construction of

manufacturing facility equipment raw materials and finished goods denominated in foreign currencies We also may hedge

payment of forecasted intercompany transactions with our subsidiaries outside of the United States These contracts reduce

currency risk from exchange rate movements We generally hedge foreign currency price risks for periods from to 24 months

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are effective as hedges of identifiable foreign currency commitments or

forecasted transactions We designate our foreign exchange forward contracts as cash flow hedging derivatives The fair value of

these contracts is classified as either an asset or liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets We record gains and losses on these

contracts as component of other comprehensive income and reclassify them into earnings in the same period during which the

hedged transaction affects earnings

summary of foreign exchange forward contracts and the corresponding amounts at contracted forward rates is as follows

December 31 2013 2012

Contract Primary Contract Primary

Amount Currencies Amount Currencies

In millions of dollars

Malaysian ringgits

Foreign exchange forward contracts to purchase foreign Swiss francs Euros

currencies 158.4 Euros 17.1 British pound sterling

Foreign exchange forward contracts to sell foreign

currencies 2.8 Japanese yen 57.8 Canadian dollars

Foreign exchange forward contracts for the purchase of Malaysian ringgits and certain other currencies are associated with

the construction of the manufacturing facility in Malaysia

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is the amount of the difference between the contracted and current

market foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the period We estimate the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts

on quarterly basis by obtaining market quotes of spot and forward rates for contracts with similar terms adjusted where necessary

for maturity differences
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summary of the fair value and market risk associated with foreign exchange forward contracts is as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In millions of dollars

Fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts net asset 3.2 1.2

Potential net loss associated with foreign exchange forward contracts resulting from hypothetical near-term

adverse change in market rates often percent 12.9 7.9

Our risk related to foreign exchange forward contracts is limited to the cost of replacing the contracts at prevailing market

rates

CommoditiesPrice Risk Management and Futures Contracts

Our most significant raw material requirements include cocoa products sugar dairy products peanuts and almonds For

more information on our major raw material requirements see Raw Materials on page The cost of cocoa products and prices for

related futures contracts and costs for certain other raw materials historically have been subject to wide fluctuations attributable to

variety of factors These factors include

Commodity market fluctuations

Foreign currency exchange rates

Imbalances between supply and demand

The effect of weather on crop yield

Speculative influences

Trade agreements among producing and consuming nations

Political unrest in producing countries and

Changes in governmental agricultural programs and energy policies

We use futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments in combination with forward purchasing of

cocoa products sugar corn sweeteners natural gas and certain dairy products primarily to reduce the risk of future price increases

and provide visibility to future costs Currently active futures contracts are not available for use in pricing our other major raw

material requirements primarily peanuts and almonds We attempt to minimize the effect of future price fluctuations related to the

purchase of raw materials by using forward purchasing to cover future manufacturing requirements generally for to 24 months

However the dairy futures markets are not as developed as many of the other commodities futures markets and therefore it is

difficult to hedge our costs for dairy products by entering into futures contracts or other derivative instruments to extend coverage

for long periods of time We use diesel swap futures contracts to minimize price fluctuations associated with our transportation

costs Our commodity procurement practices are intended to reduce the risk of future price increases and provide visibility to future

costs but also may potentially limit our ability to benefit from possible price decreases Our costs for major raw materials will not

necessarily reflect market price fluctuations primarily because of our forward purchasing and hedging practices

During 2013 the average cocoa futures contract prices decreased compared with 2012 and traded in range between $0.97

and $1.26 per pound based on the IntercontinentalExchange futures contract Cocoa production was moderately lower in 2013 and

global demand was slightly higher which produced small deficit in cocoa supplies over the past year Despite the small reduction

in global cocoa inventories the global stocks to use ratio remains above 40% and is considered normal
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The table below shows annual average cocoa futures prices and the highest and lowest monthly averages
for each of the

calendars years indicated The prices are the monthly averages of the quotations at noon of the three active futures trading contracts

closest to maturity on the lntercontinentalExchange

Cocoa Futures Contract Prices

dollars per pound

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Annual Average 1.09 1.07 1.34 1.36 1.28

High 1.26 1.17 1.55 1.53 1.52

Low 0.97 1.00 0.99 1.26 1.10

Source International Cocoa Organization Quarterly Bulletin of Cocoa Statistics

Our costs for cocoa products will not necessarily reflect market price fluctuations because of our forward purchasing and

hedging practices premiums and discounts reflective of varying delivery times and supply and demand for our specific varieties

and grades of cocoa liquor cocoa butter and cocoa powder As result the average futures contract prices are not necessarily

indicative of our average costs

The Food Conservation and Energy Act of 2008 impacted the prices of sugar corn peanuts and dairy products in 2013

because it set price support levels for these commodities

During 2013 prices for fluid dairy milk ranged from low of $0.18 to high of $0.22 per pound on class II fluid milk

basis Drought in New Zealand in early 2013 created global shortfall in dairy production

The price of sugar is subject to price supports under U.S farm legislation Such legislation establishes import quotas and

duties to support the price of sugar As result sugar prices paid by users in the U.S are currently higher than prices on the world

sugar
market Ideal weather in the North American sugar-growing regions caused prices to trade lower during 2013 As result

refined
sugar prices have decreased compared to 2012 trading lower in range from $0.36 to $0.30 per pound

Peanut prices in the U.S began the year around $0.46 per pound and increased during the year to $0.55 per pound Price

increases were driven by reduced crop of 1.95 million tons down 42% from 2012 which was record crop year In addition the

prices were buoyed by the entrance of the Chinese into the U.S peanut market in the first quarter of 2013 Almond prices began the

year at $2.95 per pound and increased to $3.39 per pound during the year driven by decrease in almond production of

approximately 2% versus 2012

We make or receive cash transfers to or from commodity futures brokers on daily basis reflecting changes in the value of

futures contracts on the IntercontinentalExchange or various other exchanges These changes in value represent unrealized gains

and losses We report these cash transfers as component of other comprehensive income The cash transfers offset higher or

lower cash requirements for the payment of future invoice prices of raw materials energy requirements and transportation costs
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Commodity Position Sensitivity Analysis

The following sensitivity analysis reflects our market risk to hypothetical adverse market price movement of 10% based

on our net commodity positions at four dates spaced equally throughout the year Our net commodity positions consist of the

amount of futures contracts we hold over or under the amount of futures contracts we need to price unpriced physical forward

contracts for the same commodities Inventories fixed-price forward contracts and anticipated purchases not yet under contract

were not included in the sensitivity analysis calculations We define loss for purposes of determining market risk as the potential

decrease in fair value or the opportunity cost resulting from the hypothetical adverse price movement The fair values of net

commodity positions reflect quoted market prices or estimated future prices including estimated carrying costs corresponding with

the future delivery period

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012

Market Risk Market Risk

Fair Hypothetical Fair Hypothetical
Value 10% Change Value 10% Change

In millions of dollars

Highest long position 29.3 2.9 35.8 3.6

Lowest long position 249.4 24.9 167.2 16.7

Average position long 105.6 10.6 44.0 4.4

Decreases or increases in fair values from 2012 to 2013 primarily reflected changes in net commodity positions The

negative positions primarily resulted as unpriced physical forward contract futures requirements exceeded the amount of

commodities futures that we held at certain points in time during the years

USE OF ESTIMATES AND OTHER CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP In various instances GAAP requires

management to make estimates judgments and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial

statements and accompanying notes We believe that our most critical accounting policies and estimates relate to the following

Accrued Liabilities

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits Plans

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Commodities Futures and Options Contracts

Income Taxes

Management has discussed the development selection and disclosure of critical accounting policies and estimates with the

Audit Committee of our Board of Directors While we base estimates and assumptions on our knowledge of current events and

actions we may undertake in the future actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates and assumptions We discuss our

significant accounting policies in Note Summary of Signflcant Accounting Policies

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities requiring the most difficult or subjective judgments include liabilities associated with marketing

promotion programs and potentially unsaleable products

Liabilities associated with marketing promotion programs

We recognize the costs of marketing promotion programs as reduction to net sales along with corresponding accrued

liability based on estimates at the time of revenue recognition
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Information on our promotional costs and assumptions is as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Promotional costs 995.7 949.3 945.9

We determine the amount of the accrued liability by

Analysis of programs offered

Historical trends

Expectations regarding customer and consumer participation

Sales and payment trends and

Experience with payment patterns associated with similar previously offered programs

The estimated costs of these programs are reasonably likely to change in the future due to changes in trends with

regard to customer and consumer participation particularly for new programs and for programs related to the

introduction of new products

Reasonably possible near-term changes in the most material assumptions regarding the cost of promotional programs

could result in changes within the following range

reduction in costs of approximately $9.9 million and

An increase in costs of approximately $2.5 million

Changes in these assumptions would affect net sales and income before income taxes

Over the three-year period ended December 31 2013 actual promotion costs have not deviated from the estimated

amounts by more than approximately 3%

Reasonably possible near-term changes in estimates related to the cost of promotional programs would not have

material impact on our liquidity or capital resources

Liabilities associated with potentially unsaleable products

At the time of sale we estimate cost for the possibility
that products will become aged or unsaleable in the future

The estimated cost is included as reduction to net sales

related accrued liability is determined using statistical analysis that incorporates historical sales trends seasonal

timing and sales patterns and product movement at retail

Estimates for costs associated with unsaleable products may change as result of inventory levels in the distribution

channel current economic trends changes in consumer demand the introduction of new products and changes in

trends of seasonal sales in response to promotional programs

Over the three-year period ended December 31 2013 costs associated with aged or unsaleable products have

amounted to approximately 2% of gross sales

Reasonably possible near-term changes in the most material assumptions regarding the estimates of such costs would

have increased or decreased net sales and income before income taxes in range
from $0.5 million to $1.0 million

Over the three-year period ended December 31 2013 actual costs have not deviated from our estimates by more than

approximately 4%

Reasonably possible near-term changes in the estimates of costs associated with unsaleable products would not have

material impact on our liquidity or capital resources

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits Plans

Overview

We sponsor number of defined benefit pension plans The primary plans are The Hershey Company Retirement Plan and

The Hershey Company Retirement Plan for Hourly Employees These are cash balance plans that provide pension benefits for most

domestic employees hired prior to January 2007 We also sponsor two primary
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post-retirement benefit plans The health care plan is contributory with participants contributions adjusted annually and the life

insurance plan is non-contributory

We fund domestic pension liabilities in accordance with the limits imposed by ERISA federal income tax laws and the

funding requirements of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 We fund non-domestic pension liabilities in accordance with laws and

regulations applicable to those plans We broadly diversify our pension plan assets consisting primarily of domestic and

international common stocks and fixed income securities Short-term and long-term liabilities associated with benefit plans are

primarily determined based on actuarial calculations These calculations consider payroll and employee data including age and

years of service along with actuarial assumptions at the date of the financial statements We take into consideration long-term

projections with regard to economic conditions including interest rates return on assets and the rate of increase in compensation

levels With regard to liabilities associated with post-retirement benefit plans that provide health care and life insurance we take

into consideration the long-term annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of the covered benefits We review the discount rate

assumptions and revise them annually The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption asset return assumption for

funded plans is of longer duration and revised only when long-term asset return projections demonstrate that need

Pension Plans

Our pension plan costs and related assumptions were as follows

For the years ended December31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Service cost and amortization of prior service cost 31.8 31.6 31.1

Interest cost expected return on plan assets and amortization of net loss 11.2 16.7 2.8

Administrative expenses
0.7 0.5 0.6

Net periodic pension benefit cost 43.7 48.8 34.5

Assumptions

Average discount rate assumptionsnet periodic benefit cost calculation 3.7% 4.5% 5.2%

Average discount rate assumptionsbenefit obligation calculation 4.5% 3.7% 4.5%

Asset return assumptions 7.75% 8.0% 8.0%

Net Periodic Pension Benefit Costs

We believe that the service cost and amortization of prior service cost components of net periodic pension benefit cost reflect

the ongoing operating cost of our pension plans particularly since our most significant plans were closed to most new entrants after

2007

The decrease in net periodic pension benefit cost from 2012 to 2013 was primarily due to the lower interest cost in the

current year Our service cost and prior service cost amortization is expected to be approximately $4.8 million lower in 2014

Interest cost expected return on plan assets and amortization of net loss is expected to decrease in 2014 by $13.8 million due

primarily to the 2013 actual return on plan assets which exceeded the expected long-term return on plan assets assumption and the

higher discount rate For more information see Note 14 Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Actuarial gains and losses may arise when actual experience differs from assumed experience or when we revise the

actuarial assumptions used to value the plans obligations We only amortize the unrecognized net actuarial gains and losses in

excess of 10% of respective plans projected benefit obligation or the fair market value of assets if greater The estimated

recognized net actuarial loss component of net periodic pension benefit expense for 2014 is $23.0 million The 2013 recognized net

actuarial loss component of net periodic pension benefit expense was $40.4 million Projections beyond 2013 are dependent on

variety of factors such as changes to the discount rate and the actual return on pension plan assets
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Average Discount Rate AssumptionNet Periodic Benefit Cost

The discount rate represents the estimated rate at which we could effectively settle our pension benefit obligations In order

to estimate this rate for 2011 to 2013 single effective rate of discount was determined by our actuaries after discounting the

pension obligations cash flows using the spot rate of matching duration from the Towers Watson RATELink 40/90 discount

curve

The use of different discount rate assumption can significantly affect net periodic
benefit cost

one-percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would have increased 2013 net periodic pension

benefit expense by $5.7 million

one-percentage point increase in the discount rate assumption would have decreased 2013 net periodic pension

benefit expense by $5.0 million

Average Discount Rate AssumptionBenefit Obligations

The discount rate assumption to be used in calculating the amount of benefit obligations is determined in the same manner as

the
average

discount rate assumption used to calculate net periodic benefit cost as described above We increased our 2013

discount rate assumption due to the increasing interest rate environment consistent with the duration of our pension plan liabilities

The use of different discount rate assumption can significantly affect the amount of benefit obligations

one-percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would have increased the December 31 2013 pension

benefits obligations by $108.2 million

one-percentage point increase in the discount rate assumption would have decreased the December 31 2013 pension

benefits obligations by $92.6 million

Asset Return Assumptions

For 2014 we reduced the expected return on plan assets assumption to 7.0% from the 7.75% assumption used during 2013

reflecting lower expected future returns on plan assets resulting from reduction of the pension plan asset allocation to equity

securities We based the expected return on plan assets component of net periodic pension benefit cost on the fair market value of

pension plan assets To determine the expected return on plan assets we consider the current asset allocations as well as historical

and expected returns on the categories of plan assets The historical geometric average return over the 26 years prior to

December 31 2013 was approximately 8.7% The actual return on assets was as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Actual return on assets 16.7% 13.2% 0.8%

The use of different asset return assumption can significantly affect net periodic benefit cost

one-percentage point decrease in the asset return assumption would have increased 2013 net periodic pension

benefit expense by $9.5 million

one-percentage point increase in the asset return assumption would have decreased 2013 net periodic pension

benefit expense by $9.4 million

Our investment policies specify ranges of allocation percentages for each asset class The ranges
for the domestic pension

plans were as follows

Asset Class Allocation Range

Equity securities 55% 75%

Debt securities 25% 45%

Cash and certain other investments 0% 5%

44



As of December 31 2013 actual allocations were within the specified ranges We expect the level of volatility in pension

plan asset returns to be in line with the overall volatility of the markets and weightings within the asset classes As of

December 31 2013 and 2012 the benefit plan fixed income assets were invested primarily in conventional instruments

benchmarked to the Barclays Capital U.S Aggregate Bond Index or the U.S Long Government/Credit Index

For 2013 and 2012 minimum funding requirements for the plans were not material However we made contributions of

$32.3 million in 2013 and $21.4 million in 2012 including $25.0 million in 2013 to improve the funded status of our domestic

plans in addition to contributions to pay benefits under our non-qualified pension plans in both years These contributions were

fully tax deductible one-percentage point change in the funding discount rate would not have changed the 2013 minimum

funding requirements significantly for the domestic plans For 2014 minimum funding requirements for our pension plans are

approximately $3.6 million and we expect to make additional contributions of approximately $22.0 million to improve the funded

status of our domestic plans

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Other post-retirement benefit plan costs and related assumptions were as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Net periodic other post-retirement benefit cost 12.5 15.1 16.2

Assumptions

Average discount rate assumption 3.7% 4.5% 5.2%

The use of different discount rate assumption can significantly affect net periodic other post-retirement benefit cost

one-percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would have decreased 2013 net periodic other post-

retirement benefit cost by $1.4 million

one-percentage point increase in the discount rate assumption would have increased 2013 net periodic other post-

retirement benefit cost by $1.2 million

For the post-retirement benefit plans decrease in the discount rate assumption would result in decrease in benefit cost

because of the lower interest cost which would more than offset the impact of the lower discount rate assumption on the post-

retirement benefit obligation

Other post-retirement benefit obligations and assumptions were as follows

December31 2013 2012

In millions of dollars

Other post-retirement benefit obligation 270.9 318.4

Assumptions

Benefit obligations discount rate assumption 4.5% 3.7%

one-percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would have increased the December 31 2013 other

post-retirement benefits obligations by $28.6 million

one-percentage point increase in the discount rate assumption would have decreased the December 31 2013 other

post-retirement benefits obligations by $23.6 million
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We classify intangible assets into categories intangible assets with finite lives subject to amortization intangible

assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization and goodwill

Our intangible assets with finite lives consist primarily of certain trademarks customer-related intangible assets and patents

obtained through business acquisitions We are amortizing trademarks with finite lives over their estimated useful lives of

approximately 25 years
We are amortizing customer-related intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of approximately 15

years We are amortizing patents over their remaining legal lives of approximately years We conduct impairment tests when

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable Undiscounted cash flow

analyses are used to determine if an impairment exists If an impairment is determined to exist the loss is calculated based on the

estimated fair value of the assets

Our intangible assets with indefinite lives consist of trademarks obtained through business acquisitions We do not amortize

existing trademarks whose useful lives were determined to be indefinite We conduct impairment tests for other intangible assets

with indefinite lives and goodwill at the beginning of the fourth quarter of each year or when circumstances arise that indicate

possible impairment might exist

We evaluate our trademarks with indefinite lives for impairment by comparing their carrying amount to their estimated fair

value The fair value of trademarks is calculated using relief from royalty payments methodology This approach involves

two-step process In the first step we estimate reasonable royalty rates for each trademark In the second step we apply these

royalty rates to net sales stream and discount the resulting cash flows to determine fair value This fair value is then compared

with the carrying value of each trademark If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying amount we record an impairment

charge to reduce the asset to its estimated fair value The estimates of future cash flows are generally based on past performance of

the brands and reflect net sales projections and assumptions for the brands that we use in current operating plans We also consider

assumptions that market participants may use Such assumptions are subject to change due to changing economic and competitive

conditions

We use two-step process to evaluate goodwill for impairment In the first step we compare the fair value of each reporting

unit with the canying amount of the reporting unit including goodwill We estimate the fair value of the reporting unit based on

discounted future cash flows If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount of the reporting unit

we complete second step to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment that we should record In the second step we

determine an implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill by allocating the reporting units fair value to all of its assets and

liabilities other than goodwill including any unrecognized intangible assets We compare the resulting implied fair value of the

goodwill to the carrying amount and record an impairment charge for the difference

The assumptions we use to estimate fair value are based on the past performance of each reporting unit and reflect the

projections and assumptions that we use in current operating plans We also adjust the assumptions if necessary to estimates that

we believe market participants would use Such assumptions are subject to change due to changing economic and competitive

conditions

Based on our annual impairment evaluations we determined that no goodwill or other intangible assets were impaired as of

December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 The assumptions used to estimate fair value were based on the past performance of

the reporting unit as well as the projections incorporated in our current operating plans Significant assumptions and estimates

included in our current operating plans were associated with sales growth profitability and related cash flows along with cash

flows associated with taxes and capital spending The discount rate used to estimate fair value was risk adjusted in consideration of

the economic conditions of the reporting unit We also considered assumptions that market participants may use By their nature

these projections and assumptions are uncertain Potential events and circumstances that could have an adverse effect on our

assumptions include the unavailability of raw or packaging materials or significant cost increases pricing constraints and possible

disruptions to our supply chain
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Commodities Futures and Options Contracts

We use futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments in combination with forward purchasing of

cocoa products and other commodities primarily to reduce the effect of future price increases and provide visibility to future costs

Additional information with regard to accounting policies associated with commodities futures and options contracts and other

derivative instruments is contained in Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Our gains losses on cash flow hedging derivatives were as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Net after-tax gains losses on cash flow hedging derivatives 72.3 0.9 107.7

Reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive loss

to income 5.8 60.0 12.5

Hedge ineffectiveness gains losses recognized in income before tax 3.2 0.7 2.0

We reflected reclassification adjustments related to gains or losses on commodities futures and options contracts and

other commodity derivative instruments in cost of sales

No gains or losses on commodities futures and options contracts resulted because we discontinued hedge due to the

probability that the forecasted hedged transaction would not occur

We recognized no components of gains or losses on commodities futures and options contracts in income due to

excluding such components from the hedge effectiveness assessment

The amount of net gains on cash flow hedging derivatives including interest rate swap agreements foreign exchange

forward contracts and options commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments expected to

be reclassified into earnings in the next 12 months was approximately $22.5 million after tax as of December 31 2013 This

amount was primarily associated with commodities futures contracts

Income Taxes

We base our deferred income taxes accrued income taxes and provision for income taxes upon income statutory tax rates

the legal structure of our Company and interpretation of tax laws We are regularly audited by federal state and foreign tax

authorities From time to time these audits result in assessments of additional tax We maintain reserves for such assessments We

adjust the reserves based upon changing facts and circumstances such as receiving audit assessments or clearing of an item for

which reserve has been established Assessments of additional tax require cash payments

We apply more-likely-than-not threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertain tax positions Accordingly we

recognize the amount of tax benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood of being ultimately realized upon settlement We believe

it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax

assets Valuation allowances are recorded for deferred income taxes when it is more likely than not that tax benefit will not be

realized Valuation allowances are primarily associated with temporary differences related to advertising and promotions and tax

loss carryforwards from operations in various foreign tax jurisdictions Future changes in judgment and estimates related to the

expected ultimate resolution of uncertain tax positions will affect income in the quarter of such change

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions number of years may

elapse before an uncertain tax position for which we have unrecognized tax benefits is audited and finally resolved While it is

often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular uncertain tax position we believe that our

unrecognized tax benefits reflect the most likely outcome Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are

included in income tax expense We adjust these unrecognized tax benefits as well as the related interest in light of changing facts

and circumstances Settlement of any particular
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position could require the use of cash Favorable resolution would be recognized as reduction to our effective income tax rate in

the period of resolution

The number of years with open tax audits varies depending on the tax jurisdiction Our major taxing jurisdictions include the

United States federal and state Canada and Mexico U.S Canadian and Mexican federal audit issues typically involve the timing

of deductions and transfer pricing adjustments During the first quarter of 2013 the U.S Internal Revenue Service IRS
commenced its audit of our U.S income tax returns for 2009 through 2011 and we expect the audit to conclude in 2014 Tax

examinations by various state taxing authorities could be conducted for years beginning in 2010 We are no longer subject to

Canadian federal income tax examinations by the Canada Revenue Agency CRA for years
before 2007 During the third

quarter
of 2013 the CRA notified us that it will be conducting an audit of our Canadian income tax returns for 2010 through 2012

and we expect the audit to commence in the first quarter of 2014 During the fourth quarter of 2013 the CRA concluded its audit

for 2007 through 2009 and issued letter to us indicating proposed adjustments primarily associated with business realignment

charges and transfer pricing As of December 31 2013 we recorded accrued income taxes of approximately $70.6 million related

to the proposed adjustments We provided notice to the U.S Competent Authority and the CRA provided notice to the Canada

Competent Authority of the likely need for their assistance to resolve the proposed adjustments Accordingly as of December

2013 we recorded non-current receivable of approximately $63.9 million associated with the anticipated resolution of the

proposed adjustments by the Competent Authority of each country We are no longer subject to Mexican federal income tax

examinations by the Servicio de Administracion Tributaria SAT for years before 2008 We work with the IRS the CRA and

the SAT to resolve proposed audit adjustments and to minimize the amount of adjustments We do not anticipate that
any potential

tax adjustments will have significant impact on our financial position or results of operations

We reasonably expect reductions in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $81.2 million within the next

12 months due to proposed adjustments and settlements associated with tax audits and the expiration of statutes of limitations

OUTLOOK

The outlook section contains number of forward-looking statements all of which are based on current expectations

Because actual results may differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements investors should not place

undue reliance on forward-looking statements and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking

statements to reflect actual results changes in expectations or events or circumstances after the date this report Refer to Risk

Factors beginning on page for information concerning the key risks to achieving our future performance goals

Our results for 2013 were strong with solid financial and marketplace results We have solid position in the marketplace

and we are responding to retail customer needs to drive overall category growth

We have consumer-driven initiatives planned for 2014 that we believe will continue to drive net sales growth across our

businesses We expect net sales growth of 5% to 7% including the impact of foreign currency exchange rates Net sales increases

are expected to be driven by core brand volume growth and innovation in the U.S and international markets complemented by in-

store merchandising programming and advertising Net sales gains from innovation include the introduction of Hersheys Spreads

Lancaster Soft CrŁmes Caramels and York Minis in addition to the introduction of Brookside instant consumable pack-type

Brookside Crunchy Clusters Hersheys Kisses Deluxe in China and the continued rollout of our five global brands in key

international markets We expect innovation to contribute meaningfully to our net sales growth in 2014 Our international business

is on track and we expect net sales outside the U.S and Canada to increase toward the top end of our 15% to 20% target on

percentage basis versus 2013

We have good visibility into our cost structure except for costs of dairy products which cannot be effectively hedged We

expect gross margin to increase in 2014 driven by productivity and cost savings initiatives along with favorable sales mix We

do not expect input cost deflation in 2014 Therefore we expect 2014 gross margin on reported basis to increase about 60 basis

points with expansion of adjusted gross margin expected to be around 50 basis points As result we anticipate that earnings per

share-diluted in accordance with GAAP will increase 11% to 14% in 2014 compared with 2013 Growth in adjusted earnings per

share-diluted is expected to be in the 9% to 11% range as reflected in the reconciliation of reported to adjusted earnings per
share

diluted projections provided below
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Advertising and related consumer marketing is expected to increase mid to high single-digits on percentage basis versus

last year Selling marketing and administrative expenses excluding advertising and related consumer marketing are expected to

increase at more modest rate in 2014 as we build on the investments in go-to-market capabilities established over the last few

years as well as consumer knowledge-based projects related to our Insights Driven Performance initiatives

NOTE In the Outlook above we have provided income measures excluding certain items in addition to net income

determined in accordance with GAAP These non-GAAP financial measures are used in evaluating results of operations for

internal purposes These non-GAAP measures are not intended to replace the presentation of financial results in accordance with

GAAP Rather the Company believes exclusion of such items provides additional information to investors to facilitate the

comparison of past and present operations

In 2013 the Company recorded GAAP charges of$19.0 million or $0.05 per share-diluted attributable to the Next

Century program Non-service related pension expense of $10.9 million or $0.03 per share-diluted was recorded in 2013 In

2013 the Company recorded pre-tax acquisition costs of $4.1 million or $0.03 per share-diluted primarily related to the

agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of SGM

In 2014 the Company expects to record GAAP charges of about $7.0 million to $9.0 million or $0.02 to $0.03 per share-

diluted Charges associated with the Next Century program are expected to be $0.01 to $0.02 per share-diluted Acquisition

closing integration and transaction charges related to SGM are expected to be $0.02 to $0.03 per share-diluted Non-service

related pension income is expected to be approximately $0.01 to $0.02 per share-diluted in 2014

Below is reconciliation of 2012 and 2013 and projected 2014 earnings per share-diluted in accordance with GAAP to

non-GAAP 2012 and 2013 adjusted earnings per share-diluted and projected adjusted earnings per share-diluted for 2014

2012 2013 2014 Projected

Reported EPS-Diluted $2.89 $3.61 4.02 $4.11

Acquisition closing integration and transaction charges 0.04 0.03 0.02 0.03

Total Business Realignment and Impairment Charges 0.25 0.05 0.01 0.02

Non-service related pension expense income 0.06 0.03 0.01 0.02

Adjusted EPS-Diluted $3.24 $3.72 4.05 $4.13

Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Required information about market risk is included in the section entitled Accounting Policies and Market Risks Associated

with Derivative Instruments found on pages 36 through 41
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Hershey Company is responsible for the financial statements and other financial information contained in this report

We believe that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

appropriate under the circumstances to reflect in all material respects the substance of applicable events and transactions In

preparing the financial statements it is necessary
that management make informed estimates and judgments The other financial

information in this annual report is consistent with the financial statements

We maintain system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that financial records are

reliable for purposes of preparing financial statements and that assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded The concept of

reasonable assurance is based on the recognition that the cost of the system must be related to the benefits to be derived We

believe our system provides an appropriate balance in this regard We maintain an Internal Audit Department which reviews the

adequacy and tests the application of internal accounting controls

The 2013 2012 and 2011 financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP an independent registered public

accounting finn KPMG LLPs report on our financial statements is included on page 52

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company consisting solely of independent non-management

directors meets regularly with the independent auditors internal auditors and management to discuss among other things the

audit scopes and results KPMG LLP and the internal auditors both have full and free access to the Audit Committee with and

without the presence of management

David Tacka

Chief Financial Officer

John Bilbrey

Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

The Hershey Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Hershey Company and subsidiaries the Company

as of December 31 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income cash flows and

stockholders equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2013 In connection with our audits of the

consolidated financial statements we also have audited the related consolidated financial statement schedule We also have audited

the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework 1992 edition issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO The Companys management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule and an opinion

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also

included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of The Hershey Company and subsidiaries as of December 31 2013 and 2012 and the results of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31 2013 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles Also in our opinion the related consolidated financial statement schedule when considered in relation to

the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein

Also in our opinion The Hershey Company and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework 1992

edition issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

New York New York

February 21 2014
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars except per share amounts

Net Sales 7146079 6644252 6080788

Costs and Expenses

Cost of sales

Selling marketing and administrative

Business realignment and impairment charges credits net

Total costs and expenses

Income before Interest and Income Taxes

Interest expense net

Income before Income Taxes

Provision fir income taxes

Net Income

Net Income Per ShareBasicClass Common Stock

Net Income Per ShareDilutedClass Common Stock

Net Income Per ShareBasicCommon Stock

Net Income Per ShareDilutedCommon Stock

Cash Dividends Paid Per Share

Common Stock

Class Common Stock

3865231

1922508

18665

5806404

1339675

88356

1251319

430849

820470

3.39

3.37

3.76

3.61

1.81

1.63

3784370 3548896

1703796 1477750

44938 886

5533104 5025760

1111148 1055028

95569 92183

1015579 962845

354648 333883

660931 628962

2.73 2.58

2.71 2.56

3.01 2.85

2.89 2.74

1.560

1.412

1.38

1.25

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Net Income 820470 660931 628962

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments
26003 7714 21213

Pension and post-retirement benefit plans
166403 9634 85823

Cash flow hedges

Gains losses on cash flow hedging derivatives 72334 868 107713

Reclassification adjustments 5775 60043 12515

Total other comprehensive income loss net of tax 218509 57255 227264

Comprehensive income 1038979 718186 401698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1118508 728272

Accounts receivabletrade net 477912 461383

Inventories 659541 633262

Ieferred income taxes 52511 122224

Prepaid expenses and other 178862 168344

Total current assets 2487334 2113485

Property Plant and Equipment Net 1805345 1674071

Goodwill 576561 588003

Other Intangibles 195244 214713

Deferred Income Taxes 12448

Other Assets 293004 152119

Total assets 5357488 4754839

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 461514 441977

Accrued liabilities 699722 650906

Accrued income taxes 79911 2329

Short-term debt 165961 118164

Current portion of long-term debt 914 257734

Total current liabilities 1408022 1471110

Long-term Debt 1795142 1530967

Other Long-term Liabilities 434068 668732

Deferred Income Taxes 104204 35657

Total liabilities 3741436 3706466

Stockholders Equity

The Flershey Company Stockholders Equity

Preferred Stock shares issued none in 2013 and 2012

Common Stock shares issued 299281527 in 2013 and 299272927 in

2012 299281 299272

Class Common Stock shares issued 60620217 in 2013 and

60628817 in 2012 60620 60629

Additional paid-in capital 664944 592975

Retained earnings 5454286 5027617

TreasuryCommon Stock shares at cost 136007023 in 2013 and

136115714 in 2012 4707730 4558668
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 166567 385076

The Hershey Company stockholders equity 1604834 1036749

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 11218 11624

Total stockholders equity 1616052 1048373

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 5357488 4754839

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these balance sheets
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31 ______________

In thousands of dollars

Cash Flows Provided from Used by Operating Activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operations

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation expense

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Deferred income taxes

Gain on sale of trademark licensing rights net of tax of $5962

Non-cash business realignment and impairment charges

Contributions to pension and other benefits plans

Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects from business acquisitions and

divestitures

Accounts receivabletrade net

Inventories

Accounts payable

Other assets and liabilities
_____________

Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities
_____________

Cash Flows Provided from Used by Investing Activities

Capital additions

Capitalized software additions

Proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of trademark licensing rights

Loan to affiliate

Business acquisitions _____________

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities
_____________

Cash Flows Provided from Used by Financing Activities

Net increase in short-term debt

Long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term debt

Proceeds from lease financing agreement

Cash dividends paid

Exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Payments to noncontrolling interests

Contributions from noncontrolling interests

Repurchase of Common Stock ___________

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
_____________

Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents as of January ____________

Cash and Cash Equivalents as of December 31

Interest Paid

Income Taxes Paid

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements

2013 2012 2011

820470 660931 628962

201033 210037 215763

53967 50482 43468

48396 33876 13997

7457 13785 33611

11072

38144 34660

57213 44208 31671

16529 50470 9438
26279 26598 115331

13417 21739 7860

240478 201665 194948

1188405 1094827 587867

323551 258727 323961

27360 19239 23606

15331 453 312

20000

16000 23000 7000
172856 5750

351580 473369 340005

54351 77698 10834

250595 4025 249126

250761 99381 256189

47601

393801 341206 304083

147255 261597 184411

48396 33876 13997

15791

2940 2940

305564 510630 384515

446589 586872 438818

390236 34586 190956

728272 693686 884642

1118508 728272 693686

92551 100269 97892

373902 327230 292315
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Accumulated
Class Additional Treasury Other Noncontrolling Total

Preferred Common Common Paid-in Retained Common Comprehensive Interests in Stockholders
In thousands of dollars Stock Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Income Loss Subsidiaries Equity

Balance as of January 12011 299195 60706 434865 $4383013 54052101 215067 35285 945896
Net income

628962 628962
Other comprehensive loss

227264 227264
Dividends

Common Stock SI .38 per share
228269 228269

Class Common Stock $1.25 per share 75814 75814
Conversion of Class Common Stock into Common Stock 74 74
Incentive plan transactions 15844 14306 1538
Stock-based compensation 40439 40439
Exercise of stock options 31357 163348 194705
Repurchase of Common Stock

384515 384515
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries

____________________ 11659 11659
Balance as of December 31 2011 299269 60632 490817 4707892 4258962 442331 23626 880943
Net income

660931 660931
Other comprehensive income

57255 57255
Dividends

Common Stock $1.56 per share 255596 255596
Class Common Stock $1412 per share 85610 85610

Conversion of Class Common Stock into Common Stock

Incentive plan transactions 24230 12379 11851
Stock-based compensation 49175 49175

.-i Exercise of stock options 88258 198545 286803
Repurchase of Common Stock 510630 510630
Purchase of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary 11045 4746 15791
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries

_____________________ _____________________________________________________________________
7256 7256

Balance as of December 31 2012
299272 60629 592975 5027617 4558668 385076 11624 1048373

Net income
820470 820470

Other comprehensive income
218509 218509

Dividends

Common Stock $1.81 per share 294979 294979
Class Common Stock $1.63 per share 98822 98822

Conversion of Class Common Stock into Common Stock

Incentive plan transactions 29333 21268 8065
Stock-based compensation 52465 52465
Exercise of stock options 48837 135234 184071
Repurchase of Common Stock

305564 305564
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries

____________________ __________ ____________
406 406

Balance as of December 31 2013 299281 60620 664944 $5454286 S4707730 166567 11218 1616052

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements



THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our significant accounting policies are discussed below and in other notes to the consolidated financial statements

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and our majority-owned subsidiaries and entities

in which we have controlling financial interest after the elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions We have

controlling financial interest if we own majority of the outstanding voting common stock and minority shareholders do not have

substantive participating rights we have significant control over an entity through contractual or economic interests in which we

are the primary beneficiary or we have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entitys economic

performance For information on our noncontrolling interests see Note Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries

Equity Investments

We use the equity method of accounting when we have 20% to 50% interest in other companies and exercise significant

influence Under the equity method original investments are recorded at cost and adjusted by our share of undistributed earnings or

losses of these companies Total equity investments were $39.9 million as of December 31 2013 and $39.2 million as of

December 31 2012 Equity investments are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Equity investments are

reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the investments may

not be recoverable In May 2007 we entered into manufacturing agreement in China with Lotte Confectionery Company LTD

to produce Hershey products and certain Lotte products
for the markets in Asia particularly China We own 44% interest in this

entity We made loans to this affiliate of the Company of$16.0 million in 2013 $23.0 million in 2012 and $7.0 million in 2011 to

finance the expansion of manufacturing capacity

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period Critical accounting estimates involved in applying our

accounting policies are those that require management to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the

accounting estimate was made and those for which different estimates reasonably could have been used for the current period

Critical accounting estimates are also those which are reasonably likely to change from period to period and would have material

impact on the presentation of our financial condition changes in financial condition or results of operations Our most critical

accounting estimates pertain to accounting policies for accrued liabilities pension and other post-retirement benefit plans goodwill

and other intangible assets commodities futures and options contracts and income taxes

These estimates and assumptions are based on managements best judgment Management evaluates its estimates and

assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors including the current economic environment which

management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances We adjust such estimates and assumptions when facts and

circumstances dictate Volatile credit equity foreign currency commodity and energy markets and changing macroeconomic

conditions have combined to increase the uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions As future events and their effects

cannot be determined with precision actual results could differ significantly from these estimates Changes in these estimates

resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial statements in future periods
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Revenue Recognition

We record sales when all of the following criteria have been met

valid customer order with fixed price has been received

The product has been delivered to the customer

There is no further significant obligation to assist in the resale of the product and

Collectability is reasonably assured

Net sales include revenue from the sale of finished goods and royalty income net of allowances for trade promotions

consumer coupon programs and other sales incentives and allowances and discounts associated with aged or potentially unsaleable

products Trade promotions and sales incentives primarily include reduced price features merchandising displays sales growth

incentives new item allowances and cooperative advertising

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales represents costs directly related to the manufacture and distribution of our products Primary costs include raw

materials packaging direct labor overhead shipping and handling warehousing and the depreciation of manufacturing

warehousing and distribution facilities Manufacturing overhead and related expenses include salaries wages employee benefits

utilities maintenance and property taxes

Selling Marketing and Administrative

Selling marketing and administrative expenses represent costs incurred in generating revenues and in managing our

business Such costs include advertising and other marketing expenses salaries employee benefits incentive compensation

research and development travel office expenses amortization of capitalized software and depreciation of administrative

facilities

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid debt instruments time deposits and money market funds with original maturities of

months or less The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates the carrying amount

Commodities Futures and Options Contracts

We enter into commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments to reduce the effect of

price fluctuations associated with the purchase of raw materials energy requirements and transportation services We report the

effective portion of the gain or loss on derivative instrument designated and qualifying as cash flow hedging instrument as

component of other comprehensive income and reclassify such gains or losses into earnings in the same period or periods during

which the hedged transactions affect earnings The remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument if any must be recognized

currently in earnings

For derivative designated as hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of recognized asset or liability or firm

commitment referred to as fair value hedge the gain or loss must be recognized in earnings in the period of change together

with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged The effect of that accounting is to reflect in

earnings the extent to which the hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value

All derivative instruments which we are currently utilizing are designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges except for

out of the money options contracts on certain commodities These include commodities futures and options contracts and other

commodity derivative instruments Additional information with regard to accounting policies associated with derivative

instruments is contained in Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

assets as follows to 15 years for machinery and equipment and 25 to 40 years for buildings and related improvements

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred We capitalize applicable interest charges incurred
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during the construction of new facilities and production
lines and amortize these costs over the assets estimated useful lives

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

of such assets may not be recoverable We measure the recoverability of assets to be held and used by comparison of the carrying

amount of long-lived assets to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated If these assets are considered to be

impaired we measure impairment as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets

We report assets held for sale or disposal at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations generally apply to legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived asset

that result from the acquisition construction or development and normal operation of long-lived asset We assess asset retirement

obligations on periodic basis We recognize the fair value of liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it

is incurred if reasonable estimate of fair value can be made We capitalize associated asset retirement costs as part of the carrying

amount of the long-lived asset

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We classify intangible assets into categories intangible assets with finite lives subject to amortization intangible

assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization and goodwill

Our intangible assets with finite lives consist primarily of certain trademarks customer-related intangible assets and patents

obtained through business acquisitions We are amortizing trademarks with finite lives over their estimated useful lives of

approximately 25 years We arc amortizing customer-related intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of approximately 15

years We are amortizing patents over their remaining legal lives of approximately years We conduct impairment tests when

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable Undiscounted cash flow

analyses are used to determine if an impairment exists If an impairment is determined to exist the loss is calculated based on the

estimated fair value of the assets

Our intangible assets with indefinite lives consist of trademarks obtained through business acquisitions We do not amortize

existing trademarks whose useful lives were determined to be indefinite We conduct impairment tests for other intangible assets

with indefinite lives and goodwill at the beginning of the fourth quarter of each year or when circumstances arise that indicate

possible impairment might exist

We evaluate our trademarks with indefinite lives for impairment by comparing their carrying amount to their estimated fair

value The fair value of trademarks is calculated using relief from royalty payments methodology This approach involves

two-step process In the first step we estimate reasonable royalty rates for each trademark In the second step we apply these

royalty rates to net sales stream and discount the resulting cash flows to determine fair value This fair value is then compared

with the carrying value of each trademark If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying amount we record an impairment

charge to reduce the asset to its estimated fair value The estimates of future cash flows are generally based on past performance of

the brands and reflect net sales projections and assumptions for the brands that we use in current operating plans We also consider

assumptions that market participants may use Such assumptions are subject to change due to changing economic and competitive

conditions

We use two-step process to evaluate goodwill for impairment In the first step we compare the fair value of each reporting

unit with the carrying amount of the reporting unit including goodwill We estimate the fair value of the reporting unit based on

discounted future cash flows If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount of the reporting unit

we complete second step to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment that we should record In the second step we

determine an implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill by allocating the reporting units fair value to all of its assets and

liabilities other than goodwill including any unrecognized intangible assets We compare the resulting implied fair value of the

goodwill to the carrying amount and record an impairment charge for the difference

The assumptions we use to estimate fair value are based on the past performance of each reporting unit and reflect the

projections and assumptions that we use in current operating plans We also adjust the assumptions if
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necessary to estimates that we believe market participants would use Such assumptions are subject to change due to changing

economic and competitive conditions

We provide more information on intangible assets in Note 18 Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Comprehensive Income

We report comprehensive income loss on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and accumulated other

comprehensive income loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Additional information regarding comprehensive income is

contained in Note Comprehensive Income

We translate results of operations for foreign entities using the average exchange rates during the period For foreign entities

assets and liabilities are translated to U.S dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date Resulting translation

adjustments are recorded as component of other comprehensive income loss Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments

Changes to the balances of the unrecognized prior service cost and the unrecognized net actuarial loss net of income taxes

associated with our pension and post-retirement benefit plans are recorded as component of other comprehensive income loss
Pension and Post-retirement Benefit Plans Additional information regarding accounting policies associated with benefit plans is

contained in Mte 14 Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Gains and losses on cash flow hedging derivatives to the extent effective are included in other comprehensive income

loss net of related tax effects Reclassification adjustments reflecting such gains and losses are recorded in income in the same

period during which the hedged transactions affect earnings Additional information with regard to accounting policies associated

with derivative instruments is contained in Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Interest Rate Swaps

In order to manage interest rate exposure from time to time we enter into interest rate swap agreements Interest rate swap

agreements are designated as cash flow hedging derivatives and the fair value of such agreements is recorded on the Consolidated

Balance Sheets as either an asset or liability Additional information with regard to accounting policies associated with derivative

instruments is contained in Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts and Options

We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge transactions denominated in foreign currencies

These transactions are primarily related to firm commitments or forecasted purchases associated with the construction of

manufacturing facility equipment certain raw materials and finished goods We also hedge payment of forecasted intercompany

transactions with our subsidiaries outside of the United States These contracts reduce currency risk from exchange rate

movements

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are designated as cash flow hedging derivatives and the fair value of such

contracts is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as either an asset or liability Additional information with regard to

accounting policies for derivative instruments including foreign exchange forward contracts and options is contained in Note

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

License Agreements

We own various registered and unregistered trademarks and service marks and have rights under licenses to use various

trademarks that are of material importance to our business We also grant trademark licenses to third parties to produce and sell

pantry items flavored milks and various other products primarily under the HERSHEYS and REESES brand names
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Research and Development

We expense
research and development costs as incurred Research and development expense was $47.6 million in 2013

$39.0 million in 2012 and $33.2 million in 2011 The increase in research and development expenses in 2013 was primarily related

to the Asia Innovation Center which opened in May 2013 Research and development expense is included in selling marketing and

administrative expenses

Advertising

We expense advertising costs as incurred Advertising expense which is included in selling marketing and administrative

expenses was $582.4 million in 2013 $480.0 million in 2012 and $414.2 million in 2011 Prepaid advertising expense as of

December 31 2013 was $8.4 million and as of December 31 2012 was $9.5 million

Computer Software

We capitalize costs associated with software developed or obtained for internal use when both the preliminary project stage

is completed and it is probable that computer software being developed will be completed and placed in service Capitalized costs

include only external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining internal-use software

ii payroll and other related costs for employees who are directly associated with and who devote time to the internal-use software

project and iii interest costs incurred when material while developing internal-use software We cease capitalization of such

costs no later than the point at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose

The unamortized amount of capitalized software was $56.5 million as of December 31 2013 and was $50.5 million as of

December 31 2012 We amortize software costs using the straight-line method over the expected life of the software generally

to years Accumulated amortization of capitalized software was $277.9 million as of December 31 2013 and $256.1 million as of

December 31 2012

We review the carrying value of software and development costs for impairment in accordance with our policy pertaining to

the impairment of long-lived assets Generally we measure impairment under the following circumstances

When internal-use computer software is not expected to provide substantive service potential

significant change occurs in the extent or manner in which the software is used or is expected to be used

significant change is made or will be made to the software program and

Costs of developing or modifying internal-use computer software significantly exceed the amount originally expected

to develop or modify the software

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 20 13-11

Income Taxes Topic 740 Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When Net Operating Loss Carryforward Similar Tax

Loss or Tax Credit Carryforward Exists consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force ASU No 2013-11 ASU

No 2013-11 provides guidance on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when net operating loss

carryforward similar tax loss or tax credit carryforward exists ASU No 2013-11 is effective for fiscal years and interim

periods within those years beginning after December 15 2013 The adoption of ASU No 20 13-11 will not have significant

impact on our consolidated financial statements

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for as purchases and accordingly their results of operations have been included in

the consolidated financial statements since the respective dates of the acquisitions The purchase price for each of the acquisitions

is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed

In December 2013 we entered into an agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Shanghai Golden Monkey Food

Joint Stock Co Ltd SGM privately held confectionery company based in Shanghai China SGM manufactures markets and

distributes Golden Monkey branded products including candy chocolates protein-based products and snack foods in China The

purchase price of approximately $584 million will be paid in cash of
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approximately $498 million and the assumption of approximately $86 million of net debt Eighty percent of the outstanding shares

of SGM will be acquired in mid-2014 with the remaining twenty percent of the shares to be acquired one year from that date The

transaction is subject to government and regulatory approvals and customary closing conditions

In January 2012 we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Brookside Foods Ltd Brookside privately held

confectionery company based in Abbottsford British Columbia Canada As part of this transaction we acquired two production

facilities located in British Columbia and Quebec The Brookside product line is primarily sold in the U.S and Canada in take-

home re-sealable pack type

Our financial statements reflect the final accounting for the Brookside acquisition The purchase price for the acquisition was

approximately $172.9 million The purchase price allocation of the Brookside acquisition is as follows

Purchase Estimated

Price Useful Life

In thousands of dollars Allocation in Years

Goodwill 67974 Indefinite

Trademarks 60253 25

Other intangibles 51057 to 17

Other assets net of liabilities assumed of$18.7 million 21673
Non-current deferred tax liabilities 28101

Purchase price 172856

Includes customer relationships patents and covenants not to compete

The excess purchase price over the estimated value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets was recorded to

goodwill The goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes

We included results of the Brookside business subsequent to the acquisition date in the consolidated financial statements If

we had included the results of the business in the consolidated financial statements for each of the periods presented the effect

would not have been material

BUSINESS REALIGNMENT AND IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

In June 2010 we announced Project Next Century the Next Century program as part of our ongoing efforts to create an

advantaged supply chain and competitive cost structure As part of the program production was transitioned from the Companys

century-old facility at 19 East Chocolate Avenue in Hershey Pennsylvania to an expanded West Hershey facility which was built

in 1992 Production from the 19 East Chocolate Avenue plant as well as portion of the workforce was fully transitioned to the

West Hershey facility during 2012

We estimate that the Next Century program will incur pre-tax charges and non-recurring project implementation costs of

$190 million to $200 million As of December 31 2013 total costs of$190.4 million have been recorded over the last four years

for the Next Century program Total costs of $16.8 million were recorded during 2013 Total costs of $76.3 million were recorded

in 2012 costs of $43.4 million were recorded in 2011 and total costs of $53.9 million were recorded in 2010

During 2009 we completed our comprehensive three-year supply chain transfonnation program the global supply chain

transformation program

In December 2012 the Company recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of approximately $7.5 million primarily

associated with the write off of goodwill and other intangible assets of Tn-US Inc subsidiary in which we held controlling

interest
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Charges credits associated with business realignment
initiatives and impairment recorded during 2013 2012 and 2011 were

as follows

For the years ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Cost of sales

Next Century program

Global supply chain transformation program ____________ ______________

Total cost of sales _____________ ______________ ______________

Selling marketing and administrative Next Century program ____________

Business realignment and impairment charges net

Next Century program

Pension settlement loss

Plant closure expenses

Employee separation costs credits

India voluntary retirement program

Tn-US Inc asset impairment charges _____________

Total business realignment and impairment charges credits net
_______________

Total net charges associated with business realignment initiatives and

impairment ____________ _____________

Plant closure expenses
of $16.4 million were recorded during 2013 primarily related to costs associated with the demolition

of former manufacturing facility

The charge of $36.4 million recorded in cost of sales during 2012 related primarily to start-up costs and accelerated

depreciation of fixed assets over reduced estimated remaining useful life associated with the Next Century program charge of

$2.4 million was recorded in selling marketing and administrative expenses during 2012 for project administration related to the

Next Century program The level of lump sum withdrawals during 2012 from one of the Companys pension plans by employees

retiring or leaving the Company primarily under the Next Century program resulted in non-cash pension settlement loss of

$15.8 million Expenses of $20.8 million were recorded in 2012 primarily related to costs associated with the closure of

manufacturing facility and the relocation of production lines

The charge of $39.3 million recorded in cost of sales during 2011 related primarily to accelerated depreciation of fixed assets

over reduced estimated remaining useful life associated with the Next Century program charge of $5.0 million was recorded in

selling marketing and administrative expenses during 2011 for project administration related to the Next Century program Plant

closure expenses of $8.6 million were recorded in 2011 primarily related to costs associated with the relocation of production lines

Employee separation costs were reduced by $9.5 million during 2011 which consisted of an $11.2 million credit reflecting lower

expected costs related to voluntary and involuntary terminations at the two manufacturing facilities and net benefits curtailment

loss of $1.7 million also related to the employee terminations

402 36383 39280

5816

402 36383 45096

18 2446 4961

15787

16387 20780 8620

914 9506
2278

7457 ______________

18665 44938 886

19085 83767 49171

Next Centuiy Program
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Global Supply Chain Transformation Program

The charge of $5.8 million recorded in 2011 was due to decline in the estimated net realizable value of two properties

being held for sale

Tn-US Inc Impairment Charges

In February 2011 we acquired 49% interest in Tn-US Inc of Boulder Colorado company that manufactured marketed

and sold nutritional beverages under the mixbrand name We invested $5.8 million and accounted for this investment using the

equity method until January 2012 In January 2012 we made an additional investment of $6.0 million in Tn-US Inc resulting in

controlling ownership interest of approximately 69% In December 2012 the board of directors of Tn-US Inc decided to

immediately cease operations and dissolve the company as result of operational difficulties quality issues and competitive

constraints It was determined that investments necessary to continue the business would not generate sufficient return

Accordingly in December 2012 the Company recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of approximately $7.5 million

primarily associated with the write off of goodwill and other intangible assets These charges excluded the portion of the losses

attributable to the noncontrolling interests

Liabilities Associated with Business Realignment Initiatives

As of December 31 2013 there was no remaining liability balance relating to the Next Century program We made

payments against the liabilities recorded for the Next Century program of $7.6 million in 2013 and $12.8 million in 2012 related to

employee separation and project administration costs

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In May 2007 we entered into an agreement with Godrej Beverages and Foods Ltd consumer goods confectionery and

food company to manufacture and distribute confectionery products snacks and beverages across India Under the agreement we

owned 51% controlling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd The noncontrolling interests in Godrej Hershey Ltd were included in the

equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets In September 2012 we acquired the remaining 49% interest in Godrej Hershey

Ltd for approximately $15.8 million Since the Company had controlling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd the difference between

the amount paid and the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest of $10.3 million was recorded as reduction to additional

paid-in capital and the noncontrolling interest in Godrej Hershey Ltd was eliminated as of September 30 2012

We own 51% controlling interest in Hershey do Brasil under cooperative agreement with Pandurata Netherlands By
Bauducco leading manufacturer of baked goods in Brazil whose primary brand is Bauducco In both 2013 and 2012 the

Company contributed cash of approximately $3.1 million to Hershey do Brasil and Bauducco contributed approximately $2.9

million The noncontrolling interest in Hershey do Brasil is included in the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets

The decrease in noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries from $11.6 million as of December 31 2012 to $11.2 million as of

December 31 2013 reflected the impact of the noncontrolling interests share of losses of these entities and currency translation

adjustments partially offset by the impact of the cash contributed by Bauducco The share of losses pertaining to the

noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries was $1.7 million for the
year

ended December 31 2013 $9.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2012 and $7.4 million for the
year ended December 31 2011 This was reflected in selling marketing and

administrative expenses

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We enter into certain obligations for the purchase of raw materials These obligations are primarily in the form of forward

contracts for the purchase of raw materials from third-party brokers and dealers These contracts minimize the effect of future price

fluctuations by fixing the price of part or all of these purchase obligations Total obligations for each year consisted of fixed price

contracts for the purchase of commodities and unpriced contracts that were valued using market prices as of December 31 2013

The cost of commodities associated with the unpriced contracts is variable as market prices change over future periods We

mitigate the variability of these costs to the extent that we have entered into commodities futures contracts or other commodity

derivative instruments to hedge our costs for those periods Increases or decreases in market prices are offset by gains or losses on

commodities futures contracts or other commodity derivative instruments Taking

65



THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

delivery of and making payments for the specific commodities for use in the manufacture of finished goods satisfies our

obligations under the forward purchase contracts For each of the three years
in the period ended December 31 2013 we satisfied

these obligations by taking delivery of and making payment for the specific commodities

As of December 2013 we had entered into purchase agreements
with various suppliers Subject to meeting our quality

standards the purchase obligations covered by these agreements were as follows as of December 31 2013

Purchase Obligations
2014 2015 2016 2017

In millions of dollars

Purchase obligations 1381.6 651.9 48.3 6.4

We have commitments under various lease obligations Future minimum payments under lease obligations with remaining

term in excess of one year were as follows as of December 31 2013

Lease Obligations 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter

In millions of dollars

Futureminimumrentalpayments 36.7 11.5 10.8 7.6 2.2 1.6

Future minimum rental payments reflect commitments under non-cancelable operating leases primarily for offices retail

stores warehouse and distribution facilities and certain equipment In September 2013 we entered into an agreement to lease land

for the construction of new confectionery manufacturing plant in Johor Malaysia The lease term is 99 years
and obligations

under the terms of the lease require payment of approximately $24.0 million in 2014 which is included in future minimum rental

payments above

In December 2013 we entered into an agreement for the construction of the new confectionery manufacturing plant in

Malaysia The total cost of construction is expected to be approximately $240 million The plant is expected to begin operations

during the second quarter of 2015

We have number of facilities that contain varying amounts of asbestos in certain locations within the facilities Our

asbestos management program is compliant with current applicable regulations Current regulations require that we handle or

dispose of asbestos in special manner if such facilities undergo major renovations or are demolished Costs associated with the

removal of asbestos related to the closure of manufacturing facility under the Next Century program were recorded primarily in

2012 and included in business realignment and impairment charges The costs associated with the removal of asbestos from the

facility were not material With regard to other facilities we believe we do not have sufficient information to estimate the fair

value of any asset retirement obligations related to these facilities We cannot specify the settlement date or range of potential

settlement dates and therefore sufficient information is not available to apply an expected present
value technique We expect to

maintain the facilities with repairs and maintenance activities that would not involve or require the removal of significant quantities

of asbestos

In 2007 the Competition Bureau of Canada began an inquiry into alleged violations of the Canadian Competition Act in the

sale and supply of chocolate products sold in Canada between 2002 and 2008 by members of the confectionery industry including

Hershey Canada Inc The U.S Department of Justice also notified the Company in 2007 that it had opened an inquiry but has not

requested any information or documents

Subsequently 13 civil lawsuits were filed in Canada and 91 civil lawsuits were filed in the United States against the

Company The lawsuits were instituted on behalf of direct purchasers of our products as well as indirect purchasers that purchase

our products for use or for resale Several other chocolate and confectionery companies were named as defendants in these lawsuits

as they also were the subject of investigations andlor inquiries by the government entities referenced above The cases seek

recovery
for losses suffered as result of alleged conspiracies

in restraint of trade in connection with the pricing practices of the

defendants The Canadian civil cases were settled in 2012 Hershey Canada Inc reached settlement agreement with the

Competition Bureau of Canada through their Leniency Program with regard to an inquiry into alleged violations of the Canadian

Competition Act in the sale and supply of chocolate products sold in Canada by members of the confectionery industry On

June 21 2013 Hershey Canada Inc pleaded guilty to one count of price fixing related to communications with competitors in

66



THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Canada in 2007 and paid fine of approximately $4.0 million Hershey Canada Inc had promptly reported the conduct to the

Competition Bureau cooperated fully with its investigation and did not implement the planned price increase that was the subject

of the 2007 communications

With regard to the U.S lawsuits the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation assigned the cases to the U.S District Court

for the Middle District of Pennsylvania Plaintiffs are seeking actual and treble damages against the Company and other defendants

based on an alleged overcharge for certain or in some cases all chocolate products sold in the U.S between December 2002 and

December 2007 and certain plaintiff groups
have alleged damages that extend beyond the alleged conspiracy period The lawsuits

have been proceeding on different scheduling tracks for different groups of plaintiffs

Defendants have briefed summary judgment against the direct purchaser plaintiffs that have not sought class certification

the Opt-Out Plaintiffs and those that have the Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs The Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs were

granted class certification in December 2012 Liability fact and expert discovery in the Opt-Out Plaintiffs and Direct Purchaser

Class Plaintiffs cases has been completed The hearing on summary judgment for the Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs combined

with the summary judgment hearing for the Opt-Out Plaintiffs was held on October 2013 decision is expected in the near

term Putative class plaintiffs that purchased product indirectly for resale the Indirect Purchasers for Resale have moved for

class certification briefing schedule has not been finalized Putative class plaintiffs that purchased product indirectly for use the

Indirect End Users may seek class certification after summary judgment against the Direct Purchaser Class Plaintiffs and the

Opt-Out Plaintiffs has been resolved No trial date has been set for any group of plaintiffs The Company will continue to

vigorously defend against these lawsuits

Competition and antitrust law investigations can be lengthy and violations are subject to civil and/or criminal fines and other

sanctions Class action civil antitrust lawsuits are expensive to defend and could result in significant judgments including in some

cases payment of treble damages and/or attorneys fees to the successful plaintiff Additionally negative publicity involving these

proceedings could affect our Companys brands and reputation possibly resulting in decreased demand for our products These

possible consequences in our opinion are currently not expected to materially impact our financial position or liquidity but could

materially impact our results of operations and cash flows in the period in which any fines settlements or judgments are accrued or

paid respectively

We have no other material pending legal proceedings other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to our business

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

We classify derivatives as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet Accounting for the change in fair value of the derivative

depends on

Whether the instrument qualifies for and has been designated as hedging relationship and

The type of hedging relationship

There are three types of hedging relationships

Cash flow hedge

Fair value hedge and

Hedge of foreign currency exposure of net investment in foreign operation

As of December 31 2013 and 2012 all of our derivative instruments were classified as cash flow hedges except for out of

the money options contracts on certain commodities

The amount of net gains on derivative instruments including interest rate swap agreements foreign exchange forward

contracts and options commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments expected to be

reclassified into earnings in the next 12 months was approximately $22.5 million after tax as of December 31 2013 This amount

was primarily associated with commodities futures contracts
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Objectives Strategies and Accounting Policies Associated with Derivative Instruments

We use certain derivative instruments to manage risks These include interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk foreign

currency forward exchange contracts and options to manage foreign currency exchange rate risk and commodities futures and

options contracts to manage commodity market price risk exposures

We enter into interest rate swap agreements and foreign exchange forward contracts and options for periods consistent with

related underlying exposures These derivative instruments do not constitute positions independent of those exposures

We enter into commodities futures and options contracts and other derivative instruments for varying periods These

commodity derivative instruments are intended to be and are effective as hedges of market price risks associated with anticipated

raw material purchases energy requirements and transportation costs We do not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading

purposes
and are not party to any instruments with leverage or prepayment features

In entering into these contracts we have assumed the risk that might arise from the possible inability of counterparties to

meet the terms of their contracts We mitigate this risk by entering into exchanged-traded contracts with collateral posting

requirements andlor by performing financial assessments prior to contract execution conducting periodic evaluations of

counterparty performance and maintaining diverse portfolio of qualified counterparties We do not expect any significant losses

from counterparty defaults

Interest Rate Swaps

In order to manage interest rate exposure from time to time we enter into interest rate swap agreements We include gains

and losses on interest rate swap agreements in other comprehensive income We recognize the gains and losses on interest rate

swap agreements as an adjustment to interest
expense

in the same period as the hedged interest payments affect earnings We

classify cash flows from interest rate swap agreements as net cash provided from operating activities on the Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows Our risk related to the swap agreements is limited to the cost of replacing the agreements at prevailing

market rates

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts and Options

We enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options to hedge transactions primarily related to

commitments and forecasted purchases associated with the construction of manufacturing facility equipment raw materials and

finished goods denominated in foreign currencies We may also hedge payment of forecasted intercompany transactions with our

subsidiaries outside of the United States These contracts reduce currency
risk from exchange rate movements We generally hedge

foreign currency price risks for periods from to 24 months

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are effective as hedges of identifiable foreign currency commitments or

forecasted transactions Since there is direct relationship between the foreign currency derivatives and the foreign currency

denomination of the transactions the derivatives are highly effective in hedging cash flows related to transactions denominated in

the corresponding foreign currencies We designate our foreign exchange forward contracts and options as cash flow hedging

derivatives

These contracts meet the criteria for cash flow hedge accounting treatment We classify the fair value of foreign exchange

forward contracts as prepaid expenses and other current assets other non-current assets accrued liabilities or other long-term

liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets We report the offset to the foreign exchange forward contracts and options contracts

in accumulated other comprehensive loss net of income taxes We record gains and losses on these contracts as component of

other comprehensive income and reclassify them into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transactions affect

earnings For hedges associated with the construction of manufacturing facility and the purchase of equipment we designate the

related cash flows as net cash flows used by provided from investing activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

We classify cash flows from other foreign exchange forward contracts and options as net cash provided from operating activities

As of December 31 2013 the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options with gains totaled $3.4 million

and the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options with losses totaled $0.2 million Over the last three
years

the

volume of activity for foreign exchange forward contracts to purchase foreign currencies
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ranged from contract amount of $17.1 million to $158.4 million Over the same period the volume of activity for foreign

exchange forward contracts to sell foreign currencies ranged from contract amount of $2.8 million to $192.8 million

Commodities Futures and Options Contracts

We enter into commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments to reduce the effect of

future price fluctuations associated with the purchase of raw materials energy requirements and transportation services We

generally hedge commodity price risks for to 24 month periods Commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity

derivative instruments are highly effective in hedging price risks for our raw material requirements energy requirements and

transportation costs Because our commodities futures and in the money options contracts and other commodity derivative

instruments meet hedge accounting requirements we account for them as cash flow hedges Accordingly we include gains and

losses on hedging instruments in other comprehensive income We recognize gains and losses in cost of sales in the same period

that we record the hedged raw material requirements in cost of sales The time value for out of the money commodities options

contracts is recorded as an asset or liability with the changes in value recorded currently in income

We use exchange traded futures contracts to hedge price fluctuations of unpriced physical forward purchase contracts as

well as forecasted purchases for which we have not entered into unpriced physical forward purchase contracts Fixed-price physical

forward purchase contracts are accounted for as normal purchases and sales contracts and therefore are not accounted for as

derivative instruments On daily basis we receive or make cash transfers reflecting changes in the value of exchange-traded

futures contracts unrealized gains and losses As mentioned above such gains and losses are included as component of other

comprehensive income The cash transfers offset higher or lower cash requirements for payment of future invoice prices for raw

materials energy requirements and transportation costs

Over the last three years our total annual volume of futures and options traded in conjunction with commodities hedging

strategies ranged from approximately 45000 to 60000 contracts We use futures and options contracts and other non-exchange

traded commodity derivative instruments in combination with forward purchasing of cocoa products sugar corn sweeteners

natural gas and certain dairy products primarily to reduce the risk of future price increases and provide visibility to future costs

Our commodity procurement practices are intended to reduce the risk of future price increases and provide visibility to future costs

but also may potentially limit our ability to benefit from possible price decreases

Hedge EffectivenessCommodities

We perform an assessment of hedge effectiveness for commodities futures and options contracts and other commodity

derivative instruments on quarterly basis or more frequently as necessary Because of the rollover strategy used for commodities

futures contracts as required by futures market conditions some ineffectiveness may result in hedging forecasted manufacturing

requirements This occurs as we switch futures contracts from nearby contract positions to contract positions that are required to fix

the price of anticipated manufacturing requirements Hedge ineffectiveness may also result from variability in basis differentials

associated with the purchase of raw materials for manufacturing requirements We record the ineffective portion of gains or losses

on commodities futures and options contracts currently in cost of sales

The prices of commodities futures contracts reflect delivery to the same locations where we take delivery of the physical

commodities Therefore there is no ineffectiveness resulting from differences in location between the derivative and the hedged

item
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Financial Statement Location and Amounts Pertaining to Derivative Instruments

The fair value of derivative instruments in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31 2013 was as follows

Foreign

Exchange Commodities

Interest Rate Forward Futures and

Swap Contracts Options

Balance Sheet Caption Agreements and Options Contracts

In thousands of dollars

Prepaid expense and other current assets 2672 4306

Other assets 22745 751

Accrued liabilities
129

Other long-term liabilities 198

The fair value of derivative instruments in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31 2012 was as follows

Foreign

Exchange Commodities

Interest Rate Forward Futures and

Swap Contracts Options

Balance Sheet Caption Agreements and Options Contracts

In thousands of dollars

Prepaid expense
and other current assets 2119

Accrued liabilities 12502 917 2010

Other long-term liabilities 922

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements represents the difference in the present values of cash flows calculated at

the contracted interest rates and at current market interest rates at the end of the period We calculate the fair value of interest rate

swap agreements quarterly based on inputs derived from observable market data

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options is the amount of the difference between the contracted and

current market foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the period We estimate the fair value of foreign exchange forward

contracts and options on quarterly basis by obtaining market quotes of spot and forward rates for contracts with similar terms

adjusted where necessary for maturity differences

As of December 31 2013 prepaid expense
and other current assets associated with commodities futures and options

contracts reflected the fair value of options contracts for certain commodities As of December 31 2013 and 2012 accrued

liabilities associated with commodities futures and options contracts were primarily related to net cash transfers payable on

commodities futures contracts reflecting the change in quoted market prices on the last trading day for the period We make or

receive cash transfers to or from commodity futures brokers on daily basis reflecting changes in the market value of futures

contracts on the IntercontinentalExchange or various other exchanges

The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31 2013 was as

follows

Foreign Exchange

Interest Rate Forward Commodities

Swap Contracts Futures and

Cash Flow Hedging Derivatives Agreements and Options Options Contracts

In thousands of dollars

Gains losses recognized in other comprehensive income

OCI effective portion 27534 4049 84746

Gains losses reclassified from accumulated OCI into income

effective portion 3606 2641 8400

Gains recognized in income ineffective portion 3241
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The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year
ended December 31 2012 was as

follows

Foreign

Exchange Commodities

Interest Rate Forward Futures and

Swap Contracts Options

Cash Flow Hedging Derivatives Agreements and Options Contracts

In thousands of dollars

Gains losses recognized in other comprehensive income

OCI effective portion 13424 47 12834

Gains losses reclassified from accumulated OCI into income

effective portion 3605 2488 90900

Gains recognized in income ineffective portion 670

Gains losses reclassified from accumulated OCI into income were included in cost of sales for commodities futures and

options contracts and other commodity derivative instruments and for foreign exchange forward contracts and options

designated as hedges of purchases of inventory Other gains and losses for foreign exchange forward contracts and options

were included in selling marketing and administrative expenses Other gains and losses for interest rate swap agreements

were included in interest expense

Gains recognized in income were included in cost of sales for commodities futures and options contracts

Gains recognized currently in income were related to the ineffective portion of the hedging relationship We recognized no

components of gains and losses on cash flow hedging derivatives in income due to excluding such components from the hedge

effectiveness assessment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts payable

and short-term debt approximated fair value as of December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 because of the relatively short

maturity of these instruments

The carrying value of long-term debt including the current portion was $1796.1 million as of December 31 2013

compared with fair value of $1947.0 million based on quoted market prices for the same or similar debt issues The carrying

value of long-term debt including the current portion was $1788.7 million as of December 31 2012 compared with fair value of

$2060.8 million

Interest Rate Swaps

In order to manage interest rate exposure the Company from time to time enters into interest rate swap agreements In

April 2012 the Company entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure related to the

anticipated $250 million of term financing expected to be executed during 2013 to repay $250 million of 5.0% Notes maturing in

April 2013 The weighted-average fixed rate on these forward starting swap agreements was 2.4% In May 2012 the Company

entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure related to the anticipated $250 million of

term financing expected to be executed during 2015 to repay $250 million of 4.85% Notes maturing in August 2015 The

weighted-average fixed rate on these forward starting swap agreements is 2.7%

The forward starting swap agreements entered into in April 2012 matured in March 2013 resulting in realized loss of

approximately $9.5 million Also in March 2013 we entered into forward starting swap agreements to continue to hedge interest

rate exposure related to the term financing expected to be executed in 2013 The weighted-average fixed rate on the forward

starting swap agreements was 2.1%

In May 2013 we terminated the forward starting swap agreements which were entered into in March 2013 to hedge the

anticipated execution of term financing The swap agreements were terminated upon the issuance of the 2.625% Notes due May

2023 resulting in cash payments of $0.2 million in May 2013 Losses on these swap
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agreements are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss and are being amortized as an increase to interest expense over

the term of the Notes

The fair value of interest rate swap agreements was an asset of $22.7 million as of December 31 2013 The Companys risk

related to interest rate swap agreements is limited to the cost of replacing such agreements at prevailing market rates

In March 2009 we entered into forward starting interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure related to the

anticipated $250 million of term financing expected to be executed during 2011 In September 2011 the forward starting interest

rate swap agreements which were entered into in March 2009 matured resulting in cash payments by the Company of

approximately $26.8 million Also in September 2011 we entered into forward starting swap agreements to continue to hedge

interest rate exposure
related to the term financing These swap agreements were terminated upon the issuance of the 1.5% Notes

due November 12016 resulting in cash payments by the Company of $2.3 million in November 2011 The losses on the swap

agreements are being amortized as an increase to interest expense over the term of the Notes

For more information see Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

For information on the objectives strategies and accounting polices related to our use of foreign exchange forward contracts

see Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

summary of foreign exchange forward contracts and the corresponding amounts at contracted forward rates is as follows

December 31 2013 2012

Contract Primary Contract Primary

Amount Currencies Amount Currencies

In millions of dollars

Malaysian ringgits

Foreign exchange forward contracts to Swiss francs Euros

purchase foreign currencies 158.4 Euros 17.1 British pound sterling

Foreign exchange forward contracts to sell

foreign currencies 2.8 Japanese Yen 57.8 Canadian dollars

Foreign exchange forward contracts for the purchase of Malaysian ringgits and certain other currencies are associated with

the construction of the manufacturing facility in Malaysia

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets other non

current assets accrued liabilities or other long-term liabilities as appropriate

The combined fair value of our foreign exchange forward contracts included in prepaid expenses and other current assets

other non-current assets accrued liabilities or other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets was as follows

December31 2013 2012

In millions of dollars

Fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts net asset 3.2 1.2
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FAIR VALUE ACCOUNTING

We follow fair value measurement hierarchy to price certain assets or liabilities The fair value is determined based on

inputs or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability These assumptions consist of

observable inputsmarket data obtained from independent sources or unobservable inputsmarket data determined using

the Companys own assumptions about valuation

We prioritize the inputs to valuation techniques with the highest priority being given to Level inputs and the lowest

priority to Level inputs as defined below

Level Inputs quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or

similar instruments in markets that are not active inputs other than quoted prices that are observable and inputs

that are derived from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation and

Level Inputs unobservable inputs used to the extent that observable inputs are not available These reflect the

entitys own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability

We use certain derivative instruments to manage interest rate foreign currency exchange rate and commodity market price

risk exposures all of which are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices or rates

summary of our derivative assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2013 is as

follows

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets Other Unobservable

Fair Value as of of Identical Observable Inputs

Description December 31 2013 Assets Level Inputs Level Level

In thousands of dollars

Derivative assets 54254 28086 26168

Derivative liabilities 24107 23909 198

As of December 31 2013 Level derivative assets were related to the fair value of options contracts for certain

commodities and cash transfers receivable on commodities futures contracts with gains resulting from the change in quoted market

prices on the last trading day for the period As of December 31 2013 Level derivative liabilities were related to cash transfers

payable on commodities futures contracts with losses resulting from the change in quoted market prices on the last trading day for

the period

As of December 31 2013 Level derivative assets were related to the fair value of interest rate swap agreements and

foreign exchange forward contracts and options with gains Level derivative liabilities were related to the fair value of foreign

exchange forward contracts and options with losses The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements represents the difference in

the present values of cash flows calculated at the contracted interest rates and at current market interest rates at the end of the

period We calculate the fair value of interest rate swap agreements quarterly based on inputs derived from observable market data

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options is the amount of the difference between the contracted and

current market foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the period We estimate the fair value of foreign exchange forward

contracts and options on quarterly basis by obtaining market quotes of spot and forward rates for contracts with similar terms

adjusted where necessary for maturity differences
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summary of our derivative assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2012 is as

follows

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets Other Unobservable

Fair Value as of of Identical Observable Inputs

Description December 31 2012 Assets Level Inputs Level Level

In thousands of dollars

Derivative assets 39175 37056 2119

Derivative liabilities 53407 39066 14341

As of December 31 2012 Level derivative assets were related to cash transfers receivable on commodities futures

contracts with gains resulting from the change in quoted market prices on the last trading day for the period As of December 31

2012 Level derivative liabilities were related to cash transfers payable on commodities futures contracts with losses resulting

from the change in quoted market prices on the last trading day for the period

As of December 31 2012 Level derivative assets were related to the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and

options with gains Level derivative liabilities were related to the fair value of interest rate swap agreements and foreign

exchange forward contracts and options with losses

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

summary of the components of comprehensive income is as follows

Tax

Pre-Tax Expense After-Tax

For the year ended December 31 2013 Amount Benefit Amount

In thousands of dollars

Net income 820470

Other comprehensive income loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments 26003 26003

Pension and post-retirement benefit plans 265015 98612 166403

Cash flow hedges

Gains on cash flow hedging derivatives 116329 43995 72334

Reclassification adjustments 9365 3590 5775

Total other comprehensive income 364706 146197 218509

Comprehensive income 1038979
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For the year ended December 31 2011

In thousands of dollars

Net income

Other comprehensive income loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Pension and post-retirement benefit plans

Cash flow hedges

Losses on cash flow hedging derivatives

Reclassification adjustments

Total other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income

7714 7714

15159 5525 9634

543 325 868

96993 36950 60043

89005 31750 57255

718186

Tax

Pre-Tax Expense After-Tax

Amount Benefit Amount

628962

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Foreign currency translation adjustments 16830 9173

Pension and post-retirement benefit plans net of tax 199634 366037

Cash flow hedges net of tax 49897 28212

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss 166567 385076

THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Tax

Pre-Tax Expense After-Tax

Amount Benefit AmountFor the year ended December 31 2012

In thousands of dollars

Net income

Other comprehensive income loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Pension and post-retirement benefit plans

Cash flow hedges

Losses on cash flow hedging derivatives

Reclassification adjustments

Total other comprehensive income

Comprehensive income

660931

21213

137918 52095

21213

85823

175011 67298 107713

20282 7767 12515

354424 127160 227264

401698
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10 INTEREST EXPENSE

Net interest expense consisted of the following

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Long-term debt and lease obligations 84604 81203 85543

Short-term debt 8654 23084 17051

Capitalized interest 1744 5778 7814

Interest expense gross 91514 98509 94780

Interest income 3158 2940 2597

Interest expense net 88356 95569 92183

11 SHORT-TERM DEBT

As source of short-term financing we utilize cash on hand and commercial paper or bank loans with an original maturity of

months or less In October 2011 we entered into new five-year agreement establishing an unsecured revolving credit facility to

borrow up to $1.1 billion with an option to increase borrowings by an additional $400 million with the consent of the lenders In

November 2013 the five-year agreement entered into in October 2011 was amended The amendment reduced the amount of

borrowings available under the unsecured revolving credit facility to $1.0 billion with an option to increase borrowings by an

additional $400 million with the consent of the lenders and extended the termination date to November 2018 As of December 31

2013 $1.0 billion was available to borrow under the agreement and no borrowings were outstanding

The unsecured committed revolving credit agreement contains financial covenant whereby the ratio of pre-tax income

from operations from the most recent four fiscal quarters to consolidated interest expense for the most recent four fiscal

quarters may not be less than 2.0 to 1.0 at the end of each fiscal quarter The credit agreement contains customary representations

and warranties and events of default Payment of outstanding advances may be accelerated at the option of the lenders should we

default in our obligation under the credit agreement As of December 31 2013 we complied with all customary affirmative and

negative covenants and the financial covenant pertaining to our credit agreement There were no significant compensating balance

agreements that legally restricted these funds

In addition to the revolving credit facility we maintain lines of credit with domestic and international commercial banks

Our credit limit in various currencies was $290.3 million in 2013 and $176.7 million in 2012 These lines permit us to borrow at

the banks prime commercial interest rates or lower We had short-term foreign bank loans against these lines of credit for $166.0

million in 2013 and $118.2 million in 2012

The maximum amount of our short-term borrowings during 2013 was $166.0 million The weighted-average interest rate on

short-term borrowings outstanding was 1.9% as of December 31 2013 and 3.5% as of December 31 2012

We pay commitment fees to maintain our lines of credit The average fee during 2013 was less than 0.1%
per annum of the

commitment

We maintain consolidated cash management system that includes overdraft positions in certain accounts at several banks

We have the contractual right of offset for the accounts with overdrafts These offsets reduced cash and cash equivalents by $3.7

million as of December 31 2013 and $2.8 million as of December 31 2012
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12 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

5.00% Notes due 2013 250000

4.85% Notes due 2015 250000 250000

5.45% Notes due 2016 250000 250000

1.50% Notes due 2016 250000 250000

4.125% Notes due 2020 350000 350000

8.8% Debentures due 2021 100000 100000

2.625% Notes due 2023 250000

7.2% Debentures due 2027 250000 250000

Other obligations net of unamortized debt discount 96056 88701

Total long-term debt 1796056 1788701

Lesscurrent portion
914 257734

Long-term portion
1795142 1530967

In April 2013 we repaid $250.0 million of 5.0% Notes due in 2013 In May 2013 we issued $250.0 million of 2.625% Notes

due in 2023 The Notes were issued under shelf registration statement on Form S-3 filed in May 2012 that registered an

indeterminate amount of debt securities

The increase in other obligations was primarily associated with the financing obligation under the agreement with the Ferrero

Group for the construction of warehouse and distribution facility The initial term of the agreement is 10 years with three

renewal periods each with term of 10 years

Aggregate annual maturities during the next five years are as follows

2014 $0.9 million

2015$251.4million

2016$501.3 million

2017 $0.9 million

2018 $0.4 million

Our debt is principally unsecured and of equal priority None of our debt is convertible into our Common Stock

13 INCOME TAXES

Our income loss before income taxes was as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Domestic 1252208 980176 904418

Foreign 889 35403 58427

Income before income taxes 1251319 1015579 962845

The foreign loss before income taxes for 2013 primarily reflected increased investments in advertising and other marketing

programs knowledge-based consumer insights brand building and route-to-market capabilities The
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foreign income before income taxes in 2011 included $17.0 million gain on the sale of non-core trademark licensing rights

Our provision for income taxes was as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Current

Federal 372649 299122 254732

State 47980 36187 32174

Foreign 2763 5554 13366

Current provision for income taxes 423392 340863 300272

Deferred

Federal 11334 5174 37160

State 2212 1897 1005

Foreign 6089 6714 2544

Deferred income tax provision 7457 13785 33611

Total provision for income taxes 430849 354648 333883

The increase in the federal deferred tax provision in 2013 was primarily due to higher deferred tax liabilities associated with

inventories in 2013 compared with 2012 The foreign deferred tax benefit in 2013 principally reflected higher deferred tax assets

related to advertising and promotion reserves The deferred income tax provision in 2012 and 2011 primarily reflected the tax

effect of bonus depreciation although to lesser extent in 2012 partially reduced by the tax effect of charges for the Next Century

program

The income tax benefit associated with stock-based compensation of $48.8 million and $30.2 million for the years ended

December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively reduced accrued income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets We credited

additional paid-in capital to reflect these excess income tax benefits
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Deferred taxes reflect temporary differences between the tax basis and financial statement carrying value of assets and

liabilities The significant temporary differences that comprised the deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows

December31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Deferred tax assets

Post-retirement benefit obligations 101674 119140

Accrued expenses
and other reserves 119387 112760

Stock-based compensation 47324 51388

Derivative instruments 23822

Pension 72374

Lease financing obligation 19065 19035

Accrued trade promotion reserves 39234 30594

Net operating loss carryforwards 39606 48455

Other 11754 3643

Gross deferred tax assets 378044 481211

Valuation allowance 87159 74021

Total deferred tax assets 290885 407190

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment net 201224 210406

Acquired intangibles 64249 63585

Inventories 33885 23335

Derivative instruments 33779

Pension 8037

Other 1404 10849

Total deferred tax liabilities 342578 308175

Net deferred tax liabilities assets 51693 99015

Included in

Current deferred tax assets net 52511 122224

Non-current deferred tax assets net 12448

Non-current deferred tax liabilities net 104204 35657

Net deferred tax liabilities assets 51693 99015

We believe that it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to

realize the deferred tax assets Changes in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities for derivative instruments reflected the tax

impact on net gains as of December 31 2013 and on net losses as of December 31 2012 Changes in deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities for pension resulted from the tax impact of the improved funded status of our pension plans as of

December 31 2013 compared with December 31 2012 The valuation allowances as of December 31 2013 and 2012 were

primarily related to temporary differences principally associated with advertising and promotions along with tax loss

carryforwards from operations in various foreign tax jurisdictions Additional information on income tax benefits and expenses

related to components of accumulated other comprehensive loss is provided in Note Comprehensive Income
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The following table reconciles the federal statutory income tax rate with our effective income tax rate

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Increase reduction resulting from

State income taxes net of Federal income tax benefits 2.8 3.2 2.4

Qualified production income deduction 2.6 2.5 2.2

Business realignment and impairment charges and gain on sale of trademark

licensing rights 0.1 0.2 0.1

International operations 0.4 0.1 0.6

Other net 0.5 0.9 0.2

Effective income tax rate 34.4% 34.9% 34.7%

The decrease in the effective income tax rate in 2013 from state income taxes reflected the comparison to the rate in 2012

which was higher as result of the impact of certain state tax legislation The reduction in the effective income tax rate from

international operations resulted from an increase in deductions associated with certain foreign tax jurisdictions These decreases

were partially offset by other changes which reduced the effective income tax rate to greater extent in 2012 as result of tax

benefits resulting from the completion of tax audits

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Balance at beginning of year 51520 53553

Additions for tax positions taken during prior years 58246 11335

Reductions for tax positions taken during prior years 5776 5478

Additions for tax positions taken during the current year 5523 5750

Settlements 5234

Expiration of statutes of limitations 5550 8406

Balance at end of year 103963 51520

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate was $31.7 million as of

December 31 2013 and $30.8 million as of December 31 2012

We report accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense We recognized tax

expense of $15.4 million in 2013 and tax benefit of $5.3 million in 2012 and $0.3 million in 2011 for interest and penalties

Accrued interest and penalties were $23.7 million as of December 31 2013 and $8.4 million as of December 31 2012

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions number of
years may

elapse before an uncertain tax position for which we have unrecognized tax benefits is audited and finally resolved While it is

often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular uncertain tax position we believe that our

unrecognized tax benefits reflect the most likely outcome We adjust these unrecognized tax benefits as well as the related interest

in light of changing facts and circumstances Settlement of any particular position could require the use of cash Favorable

resolution would be recognized as reduction to our effective income tax rate in the period of resolution
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The number of years with open tax audits varies depending on the tax jurisdiction Our major taxing jurisdictions include the

United States federal and state Canada and Mexico U.S Canadian and Mexican federal audit issues typically involve the timing

of deductions and transfer pricing adjustments During the first quarter of 2013 the U.S Internal Revenue Service IRS
commenced its audit of our U.S income tax returns for 2009 through 2011 and we expect the audit to conclude in 2014 Tax

examinations by various state taxing authorities could be conducted for years beginning in 2010 We are no longer subject to

Canadian federal income tax examinations by the Canada Revenue Agency CRA for years before 2007 During the third

quarter of 2013 the CRA notified us that it will be conducting an audit of our Canadian income tax returns for 2010 through 2012

and we expect the audit to commence in the first quarter of 2014 During the fourth quarter of 2013 the CRA concluded its audit

for 2007 through 2009 and issued letter to us indicating proposed adjustments primarily associated with business realignment

charges and transfer pricing As of December 31 2013 we recorded accrued income taxes of approximately $70.6 million related

to the proposed adjustments We provided notice to the U.S Competent Authority and the CRA provided notice to the Canada

Competent Authority of the likely need for their assistance to resolve the proposed adjustments Accordingly as of December 31

2013 we recorded non-current receivable of approximately $63.9 million associated with the anticipated resolution of the

proposed adjustments by the Competent Authority of each country We are no longer subject to Mexican federal income tax

examinations by the Servicio de Administracion Tributaria SAT for years before 2008 We work with the IRS the CRA and

the SAT to resolve proposed audit adjustments and to minimize the amount of adjustments We do not anticipate that any potential

tax adjustments will have significant impact on our financial position or results of operations

We reasonably expect reductions in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $81.2 million within the next

12 months due to proposed adjustments and settlements associated with tax audits and the expiration of statutes of limitations

As of December 31 2013 we had approximately $121.3 million of undistributed earnings of our international subsidiaries

We intend to continue to reinvest earnings outside the U.S for the foreseeable future and therefore have not recognized any U.S

tax expense on these earnings

14 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

We sponsor number of defined benefit pension plans Our policy is to fund domestic pension liabilities in accordance with

the limits imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA federal income tax laws and the funding

requirements of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 We fund non-domestic pension liabilities in accordance with laws and

regulations applicable to those plans

We have two post-retirement benefit plans health care and life insurance The health care plan is contributory with

participants contributions adjusted annually The life insurance plan is non-contributory
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Obligations and Funded Status

summary of the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets is as follows

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

December 31 2013 2012 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefits obligation at beginning of year 1237778 1156756 318415 318536

Service cost 31339 30823 1094 1172

Interest cost 43962 49909 10747 13258

Plan amendments 55

Actuarial gain loss 100872 112700 33412 7916

Curtailment 8833
Settlement 319 49876

Currency translation and other 5976 1903 1030 370

Benefits paid 76642 64439 24877 22837

Projected benefits obligation at end of year 1120492 1237778 270937 318415

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 988167 961421

Actual return on plan assets 152976 118073

Employer contribution 32336 21371 24877 22837

Settlement 319 49876

Currency translation and other 4533 1617

Benefits paid 76642 64439 24877 22837

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1091985 988167

Funded status at end of year 28507 249611 270937 318415

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $1.1 billion as of December 31 2013 and $1.2

billion as of December 31 2012

We made total contributions to the pension plans of $32.3 million during 2013 including contributions of $25.0 million to

improve the funded status of our domestic plans In 2012 we made total contributions of $21.4 million to the pension plans For

2014 minimum funding requirements for our pension plans are approximately $3.6 million and we expect to make additional

contributions of approximately $22.0 million to improve the funded status of our domestic plans

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

December 31 2013 2012 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Other assets 32533

Accrued liabilities 10198 9396 25477 26181

Other long-term liabilities 50842 240215 245460 292234

Total 28507 249611 270937 318415
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss net of tax consisted of the following

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

December 31 2013 2012 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Actuarial net loss gain 215702 362039 13107 6320
Net prior service credit cost 5698 5539 2737 3217

Total 210004 356500 10370 9537

Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were as follows

December31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Projected benefit obligation 76801 1237238

Accumulated benefit obligation 64340 1185214

Fair value of plan assets 15760 987643

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost and Other Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Net periodic benefit cost for our pension and other post-retirement plans consisted of the following

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Service cost 31339 30823 30059 1094 1172 1333

Interest cost 43962 49909 52960 10747 13258 14967

Expected return on plan assets 73128 72949 78161

Amortization of prior service cost

credit 422 731 1002 618 619 255
Amortization of net loss gain 40397 39723 28004 73 101 71
Administrative expenses 692 545 653 75 120 244

Net periodic benefit cost 43684 48782 34517 12461 15068 16218

Curtailment credit loss 364 1826 174
Settlement loss 18 19676 46

Total amount reflected in earnings 43338 68458 36389 12461 15068 16044

portion of the pension settlement loss recorded in 2012 totaling approximately $15.8 million and the curtailment loss

recorded in 2011 were associated with the Next Century program The settlement losses recorded in 2011 were associated with one

of our international businesses We discuss the Next Century program in Note Business Realignment and Impairment Charges

83



THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive loss income and net periodic benefit cost before tax for our pension and other

post-retirement plans consisted of the following

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

FortheyearsendedDecember3l
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

In thousands of dollars

Actuarial net gain loss 230605 8536 120401 33165 7952 11216

Prior service credit cost 613 716 1313 632 613 7614

Total recognized in other

comprehensive income loss 231218 7820 119088 33797 7339 18830

Total recognized in net periodic benefit

cost and other comprehensive

income loss 187534 56602 153605 21336 22407 35048

The estimated amounts for the defined benefit pension plans and the post-retirement benefit plans that will be amortized

from accumulated other comprehensive income loss into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal
year are as follows in

thousands

Post-Retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Amortization of net actuarial loss gain 22952 109

Amortization of prior service credit cost 668 618

Assumptions

Certain weighted-average assumptions used in computing the benefit obligations as of December 31 2013 and 2012 were as

follows

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012

Discount rate 4.5% 3.7% 4.5% 3.7%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.0% 4.0% N/A N/A

For measurement purposes as of December 31 2013 we assumed an 8.5% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of

covered health care benefits for 2014 grading down to 5.0% by 2019

For measurement purposes as of December 31 2012 we assumed 9.1% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of

covered health care benefits for 2013 grading down to 5.0% by 2019

Certain weighted-average assumptions used in computing net periodic benefit cost were as follows

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

FortheyearsendedDecember3l 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Discount rate 3.7% 4.5% 5.2% 3.7% 4.5% 5.2%

Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.75% 8.0% 8.0% N/A N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase 4.0% 4.1% 4.1% N/A N/A N/A
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We based the asset return assumption of 7.75% for 2013 8.0% for 2012 and 8.0% for 2011 on current and expected asset

allocations as well as historical and expected returns on the plan asset categories For 2014 we reduced the expected return on

plan assets assumption to 7.0% from the 7.75% assumption used during 2013 reflecting lower expected future returns on plan

assets resulting from reduction of the pension plan asset allocation to equity securities The historical geometric average return

over the 26 years prior to December 31 2013 was approximately 8.7%

Assumed health care cost trend rates have significant effect on the amounts reported for the post-retirement health care

plans one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects

One-Percentage One-Percentage
Impact of assumed health care cost trend rates Point Increase Point Decrease

In thousands of dollars

Effect on total service and interest cost components 172 152

Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 4132 3697

Plan Assets

We broadly diversif our pension plan assets across domestic and international common stock and fixed income asset

classes Our asset investment policies specify ranges of asset allocation percentages for each asset class The ranges for the

domestic pension plans were as follows

Asset Class Target Allocation 2013

Equity securities 55% 75%
Debt securities 25% 45%

Cash and certain other investments

As of December 31 2013 actual allocations were within the specified ranges We expect the level of volatility in pension

plan asset returns to be in line with the overall volatility of the markets within each asset class

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy pension plan assets at their fair value as of

December 31 2013

Quoted prices in Total assets

active markets of Significant other Significant other measured at fair

identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs value as of

In thousands of dollars Level Level Level December 31 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 657 22998 23655

Equity securities

U.S all-cap 64949 137385 202334

U.S large-cap 144254 144254

U.S small/mid-cap 33145 33145

International all-cap 136892 3062 139954

Global all-cap 181702 181702

Fixed income securities

U.S government/agency 109995 34907 144902

Corporate bonds 57735 34616 92351

Collateralized obligations 56016 22350 78366

International government/corporate bonds 14018 37304 51322

Total Investments 799363 292622 1091985
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The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy pension plan assets at their fair value as of

December 31 2012

Quoted prices in
Total assets

active markets of Significant other Significant other measured at fair

identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs value as of

In thousands of dollars Level Level Level December 31 2012

Cash and cash equivalents
933 34027 34960

Equity securities

U.S all-cap
50596 104102 154698

U.S large-cap
107934 107934

U.S small/mid-cap
24816 24816

International all-cap 111834 2938 114772

Global all-cap 229044 229044

Domestic real estate 24892 24892

Fixed income securities

U.S government/agency 76009 27984 103993

Corporate
bonds 38001 19691 57692

Collateralized obligations 61853 27012 88865

International government/corporate bonds 13432 33069 _____________
46501

Total Investments 739344 248823 988167

This category comprises equity funds that track the Russell 3000 index

This category comprises equity funds that track the SP 500 andlor Russell 1000 indices

This category comprises equity funds that track the MSCI World Ex-US index

This category comprises equity funds that track the MSCI World index

This category comprises fixed income funds primarily invested in investment grade bonds

This category comprises fixed income funds primarily invested in high quality mortgage-backed securities and other

asset-backed obligations

This category comprises fixed income funds invested in Canadian and other international bonds

The fair value of the Level assets was based on quoted market prices in active markets for the identical assets The fair

value of the Level assets was determined by management based on an assessment of valuations provided by asset management

entities and was calculated by aggregating market prices for all underlying securities

Investment objectives for our domestic plan assets are

To optimize the long-term return on plan assets at an acceptable level of risk

To maintain broad diversification across asset classes

To maintain careful control of the risk level within each asset class and

To focus on long-term return objective

We believe that there are no significant concentrations of risk within our plan assets as of December 31 2013 We comply

with ERISA rules and regulations and we prohibit investments and investment strategies not allowed by ERISA We do not permit

direct purchases of our Companys securities or the use of derivatives for the purpose of speculation We invest the assets of non

domestic plans in compliance with laws and regulations applicable to those plans
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Cash Flows

Information about the expected cash flows for our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans is as follows

Expected Benefit Payments

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019-2023

In thousands of dollars

Pension Benefits 67617 64641 69085 101765 83559 544322

Other Benefits 25491 24690 23796 22411 20843 85699

Multiemployer Pension Plan

With the acquisition of Brookside Foods Ltd in January 2012 we began participation in the Bakery and Confectionery

Union and Industry Canadian Pension Fund trustee-managed multiemployer defined benefit pension plan We currently have

approximately 110 employees participating in the plan and contributions were not significant in 2013 and 2012 Our obligation

during the term of the collective bargaining agreement is limited to remitting the required contributions to the plan

15 SAVINGS PLANS

The Company sponsors several defined contribution plans to provide retirement benefits to employees Contributions to The

Hershey Company 40 1k Plan and similarplans for non-domestic employees are based on portion of eligible pay up to defined

maximum All matching contributions were made in cash Expense associated with the defined contribution plans was $43.3

million in 2013 $39.8 million in 2012 and $35.8 million in 2011

16 CAPITAL STOCK AND NET INCOME PER SHARE

We had 1055000000 authorized shares of capital stock as of December 31 2013 Of this total 900000000 shares were

designated as Common Stock 150000000 shares as Class Common Stock Class Stock and 5000000 shares as Preferred

Stock Each class has par value of one dollar per share As of December 31 2013 combined total of 359901744 shares of both

classes of common stock had been issued of which 223894721 shares were outstanding No shares of the Preferred Stock were

issued or outstanding during the 3-year period ended December 31 2013

Holders of the Common Stock and the Class Stock generally vote together without regard to class on matters submitted to

stockholders including the election of directors The holders of Common Stock have vote per share and the holders of Class

Stock have 10 votes per share However the Common Stock holders voting separately as class are entitled to elect one-sixth of

the Board of Directors With respect to dividend rights the Common Stock holders are entitled to cash dividends 10% higher than

those declared and paid on the Class Stock

Class Stock can be converted into Common Stock on share-for-share basis at any time During 2013 8600 shares of

Class Stock were converted into Common Stock During 2012 3225 shares were converted and during 2011 74377 shares

were converted

Milton Hershey School Trust

Hershey Trust Company as trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School and as direct owner of investment shares held

12902721 shares of our Common Stock as of December 31 2013 As trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School Hershey

Trust Company held 60612012 shares of the Class Stock as of December 31 2013 and was entitled to cast approximately 80%
of all of the votes entitled to be cast on matters requiring the vote of both classes of our common stock voting together Hershey

Trust Company as Trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School or any successor trustee or Milton Hershey School as

appropriate must approve any issuance of shares of Common Stock or other action that would result in it not continuing to have

voting control of our Company
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Changes in outstanding Common Stock for the past years were as follows

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Shares issued 359901744 359901744 359901744

Treasury shares at beginning of year 136115714 134695826 132871512

Stock repurchases

Repurchase programs

Stock-based compensation programs 3655830

Stock issuances

Stock-based compensation programs 3764521 6233003 5257467

Treasury shares at end of year
136007023 136115714 134695826

Net shares outstanding at end of year
223894721 223786030 225205918

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share were computed based on the weighted-average
number of shares of the Common

Stock and the Class Stock outstanding as follows

For the_years_ended
December 31 ___________________

In thousands except per share amounts

Net income _______________ _______________

Weighted-average sharesBasic

Common Stock

Class Stock ______________ _______________

Total weighted-average sharesBasic
________________

Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock options

Performance and restricted stock units
_________________

Weighted-average sharesDiluted
________________

Earnings Per ShareBasic

Common Stock _____________ ______________ ______________

Class Stock
______________ _______________ _______________

Earnings Per ShareDiluted

Common Stock ______________

Class Stock
______________ _______________ _______________

For the year ended December 31 2013 approximately 1.8 million stock options were not included in the diluted earnings per

share calculation because the exercise price was higher than the average
market price of the Common

2054354

5598537

1902753

5179028

2013 2012 2011

820470 660931 628962

163549 164406 165929

60627 60630 60645

224176 225036 226574

2476 2608 2565

551 693 780

227203 228337 229919

$3.76 $3.01 $2.85

$3.39 $2.73 $2.58

$3.61 $2.89 $2.74

$3.37 $2.71 $2.56
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Stock for the year Therefore the effect would have been antidilutive In 2012 3.5 million stock options were not included and in

2011 6.9 million stock options were not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation because the effect would have been

antidilutive

17 STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan EICP is the plan under which grants using shares for compensation and

incentive
purposes are made The EICP provides for grants of one or more of the following stock-based compensation awards to

employees non-employee directors and certain service providers upon whom the successful conduct of our business is dependent

Non-qualified stock options stock options

Performance stock units PSU5 and performance stock

Stock appreciation rights

Restricted stock units RSU5 and restricted stock and

Other stock-based awards

The EICP also provides for the deferral of stock-based compensation awards by participants if approved by the

Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of our Board and if in accordance with an applicable deferred compensation

plan of the Company Currently the Compensation and Executive Organization Committee has authorized the deferral of

performance stock unit and restricted stock unit awards by certain eligible employees under the Companys Deferred

Compensation Plan Our Board has authorized our non-employee directors to defer any portion of their cash retainer committee

chair fees and restricted stock units awarded after 2007 that they elect to convert into deferred stock units under our Directors

Compensation Plan As of December 31 2013 68.5 million shares were authorized and approved by our stockholders for
grants

under the EICP

In July 2004 we announced worldwide stock option grant under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan This grant provided

over 13000 eligible employees with 100 non-qualified stock options The stock options were granted at price of $46.44 per share

have term of 10 years and vested on July 19 2009

The following table summarizes our compensation costs

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Total compensation amount charged against income for stock compensation plans

including stock options performance stock units and restricted stock units 54.0 50.5 43.5

Total income tax benefit recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income for

share-based compensation 18.5 17.5 15.1

Compensation costs for stock compensation plans are primarily included in selling marketing and administrative expense

The increase in share-based compensation expense from 2012 to 2013 resulted primarily from an increase in the

compensation amount upon which the number of stock-based awards was based The increase in share-based compensation

expense from 2011 to 2012 was due to certain adjustments associated with accounting for PSUs and the impact of the forfeiture of

unvested awards due to participant changes which reduced
expense in 2011
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Stock Options

The exercise price of each option awarded under the EICP equals the closing price of our Common Stock on the New York

Stock Exchange on the date of grant Prior to the initial approval by our stockholders of the EICP on April 17 2007 the exercise

price of stock options granted under the former Key Employee Incentive Plan was determined as the closing price of our Common

Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the trading day immediately preceding the date the stock options were granted Each

option has maximum term of 10 years Grants of stock options provide for pro-rated vesting primarily over four years We

recognize expense for stock options based on the straight-line method as of the grant date fair value

The following table summarizes our compensation costs for stock options

For the years ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Compensation amount charged against income for stock options
21.4 19.3 22.5

The increase in compensation cost from 2012 to 2013 was driven by an increase in the compensation amount upon which the

number of stock options granted in 2013 was based The decrease in compensation cost from 2011 to 2012 was primarily driven by

the impact of the forfeitures of unvested awards due to participant changes during 2012 and 2011

summary of the status of our Companys stock options and changes during the last three years
follows

2013 2012 2011

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Stock Options Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at

beginning of year 10553914 $48.08 14540442 $44.86 17997082 $42.21

Granted 1779109 $81.95 2110945 $60.89 2191627 $51.62

Exercised 3315990 $45.25 5870607 $44.55 4875122 $38.30

Forfeited 356697 $64.38 226866 $52.02 773145 $43.90

Outstanding at end of year 8660336 $55.47 10553914 $48.08 14540442 $44.86

Options exercisable at

year-end 4290416 $46.45 5320775 $45.74 8453362 $46.95

Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during the

year per share 14.51 10.60 9.97
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The following table sets forth information about the weighted-average fair value of options granted to employees during each

year using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the weighted-average assumptions used for such grants

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Dividend yields 2.2% 2.4% 2.7%

Expected volatility 22.2% 22.4% 22.5%

Risk-free interest rates 1.4% 1.5% 2.8%

Expected lives in years 6.6 6.6 6.5

Dividend yields means the sum of dividends declared for the four most recent quarterly periods divided by the

average price of our Common Stock for the comparable periods

Expected volatility means the historical volatility of our Common Stock over the expected term of each grant

Risk-free interest rates means the U.S Treasury yield curve rate in effect at the time of grant for periods within

the contractual life of the option and

Expected lives means the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding based primarily on

historical data

The following table summarizes the intrinsic value of our stock options

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Intrinsic value of options exercised 135.4 130.2 81.3

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of December 31 2013 was $352.7 million The aggregate intrinsic

value of exercisable options as of December 31 2013 was $213.4 million

As of December 31 2013 there was $20.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock

option compensation arrangements granted under the EICP We expect to recognize that cost over weighted-average period of 2.4

years

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31 2013

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-

Average
Number Remaining Weighted- Number Weighted-

Outstanding as of Contractual Average Exercisable as of Average

Range of Exercise Prices 12/31/13 Life in Years Exercise Price 12/31/13 Exercise Price

$33.40 $39.26 2514127 5.0 37.19 2000140 36.66

$39.57- $60.10 2503703 5.1 51.94 1595372 52.14

$60.68 $91.65 3642506 7.9 70.51 694904 61.58

$33.40 $91.65 8660336 6.3 55.47 4290416 46.45
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Performance Stock Units and Restricted Stock Units

Under the EICP we grant PSUs to selected executives and other key employees Vesting is contingent upon the achievement

of certain performance objectives We grant PSUs over 3-year performance cycles If we meet targets for financial measures at the

end of the applicable 3-year performance cycle we award the full number of shares to the participants For each PSU granted from

2011 through 2013 50% of the target award was market-based total shareholder return component and 50% of the target award

was comprised of performance-based components The performance scores for 2011 through 2013 grants of PSUs can range from

0% to 250% of the targeted amounts

We recognize the compensation cost associated with PSUs ratably over the 3-year term Compensation cost is based on the

grant date fair value because the grants can only be settled in shares of our Common Stock The grant date fair value of PSUs is

determined based on the Monte Carlo simulation model for the market-based total shareholder return component and the closing

market price of the Companys shares on the date of grant for performance-based components

Tn 2013 2012 and 2011 we awarded RSUs to certain executive officers and other key employees under the EICP We also

awarded restricted stock units quarterly to non-employee directors

We recognize the compensation cost associated with employee RSUs over specified restriction period based on the grant

date fair value or year-end market value of the stock We recognize expense for employee RSUs based on the straight-line method

We recognize the compensation cost associated with non-employee director RSUs ratably over the vesting period

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Compensation amount charged against income for performance and restricted stock

units
32.6 31.2 21.0

Compensation expense
for performance and restricted stock units was lower in 2011 resulting primarily from certain

adjustments associated with the accounting for PSUs In addition the decrease in compensation expense in 2011 resulted from the

impact of the forfeiture of unvested awards due to participant changes during 2011

The following table sets forth information about the fair value of the PSUs and RSUs granted for potential future distribution

to employees and directors during the year In addition the table provides assumptions used to determine fair value of the market-

based total shareholder return component using the Monte Carlo simulation model on the date of grant

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Units granted
395862 503761 543596

Weighted-average fair value at date of grant
88.49 64.99 58.28

Monte Carlo simulation assumptions

Estimated values
55.49 35.62 37.79

Dividend yields
2.0% 2.5% 2.7%

Expected volatility
17.1% 20.0% 28.8%

Estimated values means the fair value for the market-based total shareholder return component of each performance

stock unit at the date of grant using Monte Carlo simulation model

Dividend yields means the sum of dividends declared for the four most recent quarterly periods divided by the

average price of our Common Stock for the comparable periods

Expected volatility means the historical volatility of our Common Stock over the expected term of each grant
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summary of the status of our Companys performance stock units and restricted stock units as of December 31 2013 and

the change during 2013 follows

Weighted-average grant date fair value

for equity awards or market value for

Performance Stock Units and Restricted Stock Units 2013
liability

awards

Outstanding at beginning of year 1720577 $56.71

Granted 395862 $88.49

Performance assumption change 176534 $84.27

Vested 754991 $50.33

Forfeited 126583 $71.80

Outstanding at end of
year 1411399 $72.43

The table above excludes PSU awards for 29596 units as of December 31 2013 and 40812 units as of December 31 2012

for which the measurement date has not yet occurred for accounting purposes

As of December 31 2013 there was $39.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost relating to non-vested PSUs and

RSUs We expect to recognize that cost over weighted-average period of 2.1 years

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

In millions of dollars

Intrinsic value of share-based liabilities paid combined with the fair value of shares

vested 62.6 37.3 36.6

The higher amount in 2013 was primarily due to the higher stock price at distribution in 2013 as compared with 2012 and

2011

Deferred PSUs deferred RSUs deferred directors fees and accumulated dividend amounts totaled 608457 units as of

December 31 2013

We did not have any stock appreciation rights that were outstanding as of December 31 2013

18 SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Accounts ReceivableTrade

In the normal course of business we extend credit to customers that satisfy pre-defined credit criteria based upon the results

of our recurring financial account reviews and our evaluation of current and projected economic conditions Our primary

concentrations of credit risk are associated with Wal-Mart Stores Inc and McLane Company Inc McLane Company Inc is one

of the largest wholesale distributors in the United States to convenience stores drug stores wholesale clubs and mass

merchandisers As of December 31 2013 McLane Company Inc accounted for approximately 17.3% of our total accounts

receivable Wal-Mart Stores Inc accounted for approximately 14.5% of our total accounts receivable as of December 31 2013 No

other customer accounted for more than 10% of our year-end accounts receivable We believe that we have little concentration of

credit risk associated with the remainder of our customer base Accounts Receivable-Trade as shown on the Consolidated Balance

Sheets were net of allowances and anticipated discounts of $14.3 million as of December 31 2013 and $15.2 million as of

December 31 2012
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Inventories

We value the majority of our inventories in the U.S under the last-in first-out LIFO method The remainder of our

inventories in the U.S and inventories for our international businesses are valued at the lower of first-in first-out FIFO cost or

market Inventories include material labor and overhead LIFO cost of inventories valued using the LIFO method was

$314.9 million as of December 31 2013 and $331.7 million as of December 31 2012 The net impact of LIFO acquisitions and

liquidations during 2013 was not material We stated inventories at amounts that did not exceed realizable values Total inventories

were as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Raw materials 226978 256969

Goods in process
79861 78292

Finished goods 517968 496981

Inventories at FIFO 824807 832242

Adjustment to LIFO 165266 198980

Total inventories 659541 633262

Property Plant and Equipment

The property plant and equipment balance included construction in progress
of $273.1 million as of December 31 2013 and

$217.5 million as of December 31 2012 As of December 31 2012 construction in progress included $41.1 million associated

with payments made by Ferrero under an agreement for the construction of warehouse and distribution facility of which the

Company has been deemed to be the owner for accounting purposes Major classes of property plant and equipment were as

follows

December31
2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Land 96334 92916

Buildings
956890 878527

Machinery and equipment 2726170 2589183

Property plant and equipment gross
3779394 3560626

Accumulated depreciation
1974049 1886555

Property plant and equipment net 1805345 1674071

During 2012 we recorded accelerated depreciation of property plant and equipment of$15.3 million associated with the

Next Century program
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets were as follows

December 31
_________________ _________________

In thousands of dollars

64436 68490

72094 74790

13683 13683

19278 20018

9256 6470

241700 251976

2250
22990

6294
7411

_____________
1682

_______________
37263

_____________
214713

In January 2012 we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Brookside privately held confectionery company based in

Abbotsford British Columbia Canada For more information see Note Business Acquisitions

Accumulated impairment losses associated with goodwill were $70.1 million as of December 31 2013 and 2012

Accumulated impairment losses associated with trademarks were $46.7 million as of December 31 2013 and 2012

The useful lives of certain trademarks were determined to be indefinite and therefore we are not amortizing these assets

We amortize customer-related intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of approximately 15 years We amortize

trademarks with finite lives over their estimated useful lives of 25 years We amortize patents over their remaining legal lives of

approximately years Total amortization expense for other intangible assets was $10.8 million in 2013 $10.6 million in 2012 and

$4.6 million in 2011

Estimated annual amortization expense for other intangible assets over the next five years is as follows

Annual Amortization Expense 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

In thousands of dollars

Estimated amortization expense $10452 $9916 $9913 $9245 $8151

2013 2012

Unamortized intangible assets

Goodwill balance at beginning of year 588003 516745

Effect of foreign currency translation 11442 3284

Acquisitions 67974

Goodwill balance at end of year 576561 588003

81465 81465Trademarks with indefinite lives

Amortized intangible assets gross

Trademarks

Customer-related

Intangible asset associated with cooperative agreement with Bauducco

Patents

Effect of foreign currency translation

Total other intangible assets gross

Accumulated amortization

Trademarks 5190
Customer-related 26853
Intangible asset associated with cooperative agreement with Bauducco 7379
Patents 9737
Effect of foreign currency translation 2703

Total accumulated amortization 46456

Other intangibles 195244
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Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities were as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Payroll compensation and benefits 245641 236598

Advertising and promotion 348966 289221

Other 105115 125087

Total accrued liabilities 699722 650906

Other Long-term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities were as follows

December 31 2013 2012

In thousands of dollars

Post-retirement benefits liabilities 245460 292234

Pension benefits liabilities 50842 240215

Other 137766 136283

Total other long-term liabilities 434068 668732

19 SEGMENT INFORMATION

We operate as single reportable segment in manufacturing marketing selling and distributing our products under more

than 80 brand names Our two operating segments comprise geographic regions including North America including the United

States and Canada and International which includes Latin America Asia Europe Africa and exports to these regions We market

our products in approximately 70 countries worldwide

For segment reporting purposes we aggregate the operations of North America and International to form one reportable

segment We base this aggregation on similar economic characteristics products and services production processes types or

classes of customers distribution methods and the similarnature of the regulatory environment in each location

The percentage of total consolidated net sales for businesses outside of the United States was 16.6% for 2013 16.2% for

2012 and 15.7% for 2011 The percentage of total consolidated assets outside of the United States as of December 31 2013 was

19.4% and 20.5% as of December 31 2012

Sales to McLane Company Inc one of the largest wholesale distributors in the United States to convenience stores drug

stores wholesale clubs and mass merchandisers exceeded 10% of total net sales in each of the last three years totaling $1.8 billion

in 2013 $1.5 billion in 2012 and $1.4 billion in 2011 McLane Company Inc is the primary distributor of our products to

Wal-Mart Stores Inc
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THE HERSHEY COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

20 QUARTERLY DATA Unaudited

Summary quarterly results were as follows

Year 2013 First Second Third Fourth

In thousands of dollars except per share amounts

Net sales 1827426 1508514 1853886 1956253

Gross profit 849337 718574 855551 857386

Net income 241906 159504 232985 186075

Class Common Stock

Net income per shareBasic 1.00 0.66 0.96 0.77

Net income per shareDiluteda 0.99 0.66 0.95 0.76

Dividends paid per share 0.38 0.38 0.435 0.435

Common Stock

Net income per
shareBasic 1.11 0.73 1.07 0.85

Net income per shareDiluted 1.06 0.70 1.03 0.82

Dividends paid per share 0.42 0.42 0.485 0.485

Market Price

High 87.53 91.25 97.69 100.90

Low 73.51 85.25 89.17 91.04

Year 2012 First Second Third Fourth

In thousands of dollars except per share amounts

Net sales 1732064 1414444 1746709 1751035

Gross profit 743396 618521 742757 755208

Net income 198651 135685 176716 149879

Class Common Stock

Net income per
shareBasic 0.82 0.56 0.73 0.62

Net income per
shareDiluted 0.81 0.55 0.73 0.62

Dividends paid per share 0.344 0.344 0.344 0.380

Common Stock

Net income per share__Basica 0.91 0.62 0.80 0.69

Net income per shareDiluted 0.87 0.59 0.77 0.66

Dividends paid per share 0.38 0.38 0.38 0.42

Market Price

High 61.94 72.03 73.16 74.64

Low 59.49 59.81 70.09 68.85

Quarterly income per share amounts do not total to the annual amount due to changes in weighted-average shares outstanding

during the year
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Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH CCOUNTANTS ONA CCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

None

Item 9A CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act the Company conducted an

evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of

December 31 2013 This evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys

management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Based upon that evaluation the Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to

be disclosed in the Companys reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms Disclosure controls and

procedures include without limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the

Companys reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management including the Companys

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting appears on the following page There has

been no change during the most recent fiscal quarter in the Companys internal control over financial reporting identified in

connection with its evaluation that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal

control over financial reporting
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of The Hershey Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule l3a-15f The Companys internal control system was designed

to provide reasonable assurance to the Companys management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair

presentation of published financial statements

All internal control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even those systems

determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation

The Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer assessed the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 In making this assessment the

Companys management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO in Internal Controlintegrated Framework 1992 edition Based on this assessment management concluded that as of

December 31 2013 the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria

David Tacka

Chief Financial Officer

John Bilbrey

Chief Executive Officer
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Item 9B OTHER INFORMA HON

None
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PART Ill

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The names ages positions held with our Company periods of service as director principal occupations business

experience and other directorships of directors and nominees for director of our Company together with discussion of the

specific experience qualifications attributes and skills that led the Board to conclude that the director or nominee should serve as

director at this time are located in the Proxy Statement in the section entitled Proposal No 1Election of Directors following

the question Who are the nominees which information is incorporated herein by reference

Our Executive Officers as of February 2014

Name Age Positions Held During the Last Five Years

Humberto Alfonso 56 President International May 2013 Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer

and ChiefAdministrative Officer September 2011 Senior Vice President Chief

Financial Officer July 2007

John Bilbrey 57 President and Chief Executive Officer June 2011 Executive Vice President Chief

Operating Officer November 2010 Senior Vice President President Hershey North

America December 2007

Michele Buck 52 President North America May 2013 Senior Vice President Chief Growth Officer

September 2011 Senior Vice President Global Chief Marketing Officer

December 2007

Richard McConville 60 Vice President ChiefAccounting Officer July 2012 Corporate Controller

June 2011 Director International Controller International Commercial Group

April 2007

Terence ODay 64 Senior Vice President Chief Supply Chain Officer May 2013 Senior Vice President

Global Operations December 2008

David Tacka 60 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer May 2013 Vice President Special

Projects July 2012 Vice President Chief Accounting Officer February 2004

Leslie Turner 56 Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary July 2012

Kevin Walling 48 Senior Vice President Chief Human Resources Officer November 2011 Senior Vice

President Chief People Officer June 2011

Michael Wege 51 Senior Vice President Chief Growth and Marketing Officer May 2013 Senior Vice

President Chief Commercial Officer September 2011 Senior Vice President

Chocolate Strategic Business Unit December 2010 Vice President U.S Chocolate

April 2008

Waheed Zaman 53 Senior Vice President Chief Corporate Strategy and Administrative Officer

August 2013 Senior Vice President Chief Administrative Officer April 2013

There are no family relationships among any of the above-named officers of our Company

Ms Turner was elected Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary effective July 2012 Prior to joining our

Company she was Chief Legal Officer of Coca-Cola North America June 2008 and Associate General Counsel Coca-Cola

Company Bottling Investments Group January 2006
Mr Walling was elected Senior Vice President Chief People Officer effective June 2011 Prior to joining our Company

he was \Tice President and Chief Human Resource Officer of Kennametal Inc November 2005
Mr Zaman was elected Senior Vice President ChiefCorporate Strategy and Administrative Officer effective August

2013 Prior to joining our Company he was President and Chief Executive Officer of WA Consulting May 2012 Senior

Vice President Special Assignments of Chiquita Brands International February 2012 Senior Vice President Global

Product Supply of Chiquita Brands International October 2007

Our Executive Officers are generally elected each
year at the organization meeting of the Board in April
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Infonnation regarding the identification of the Audit Committee as separately-designated standing committee of the Board

and information regarding the status of one or more members of the Audit Committee being an audit committee financial expert

is located in the Proxy Statement in the section entitled Governance of the Company following the question What are the

committees of the Board and what are their functions which information is incorporated herein by reference

Reporting of any inadvertent late filings under Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended is located

in the section of the Proxy Statement entitled Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance This information is

incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding our Code of Ethical Business Conduct applicable to our directors officers and employees is located in

Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading Available Information

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding compensation of each of the named executive officers including our Chief Executive Officer and the

Compensation Committee Report are set forth in the section of the Proxy Statement entitled Executive Compensation which

information is incorporated herein by reference Information regarding compensation of our directors is located in the section of the

Proxy Statement entitled Director Compensation which information is incorporated herein by reference

ttem 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANA GEMENT AND RELA TED

STOCKHOLDER MA TTERS

Information concerning ownership of our voting securities by certain beneficial owners individual nominees for director

the named executive officers including persons serving as our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and directors

and executive officers as group is set forth in the section entitled Ownership of the Companys Securities in the Proxy

Statement which information is incorporated herein by reference

The following table provides information about all of the Companys equity compensation plans as of December 31

2013

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to be Weighted-average available for future issuance

issued upon exercise of exercise price of under equity compensation

outstanding options outstanding options plans excluding securities

Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in coumna

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders1

Stock Options 8535735 55.60

Performance Stock Units and Restricted

Stock Units 1411399 N/A

Subtotal 9947134 16088632

Equity compensation plans not approved by

security ho1ders2

Stock Options 124601 46.44

Total 10071735 55473 16088632

Column includes stock options performance stock units and restricted stock units granted under the stockholder-

approved EICP Of the securities available for future issuances under the EICP in column 9929709 are available for

awards of stock options and 6158923 are available for full-value awards such as performance stock units performance

stock restricted stock units restricted stock and other stock-based awards Securities available for future issuance of full

value awards may also be used for stock option awards As of December 31 2013 29596 performance stock units were

excluded from the number of securities remaining available for issuance in column because the measurement date had

not yet occurred
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for accounting purposes For more information see Note 17 Stock Compensation Plans of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Column includes 124601 stock options outstanding that were granted under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan In

July 2004 we announced worldwide stock option grant under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan which provided over

13000 eligible employees with grant of 100 non-qualified stock options each The stock options were granted at price

of $46.44 per share which equates to 100% of the fair market value of our Common Stock on the date of grant

determined as the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange on the trading day immediately preceding the date the

stock options were granted and vested on July 19 2009 No additional awards may be made under the Broad Based Stock

Option Plan or Directors Compensation Plan

Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding stock options only

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELA TED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding transactions with related persons
is located in the section of the Proxy Statement entitled Certain

Transactions and Relationships and information regarding director independence is located in the section of the Proxy Statement

entitled Governance of the Company following the question Which directors are independent and how does the Board make

that determination which information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 PRINCIPAL CCOUNTANT FEES AND SER VICES

Information regarding Principal Accountant Fees and Services including the policy regarding pre-approval of audit and

non-audit services performed by our Companys independent auditors is located in the section entitled Information About Our

Independent Auditors in the Proxy Statement which information is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STA TEMENT SCHEDULES

Item 15a1 Financial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and the Report of the Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm thereon as required to be filed with this report are located under Item of this report

Item 15a2 Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts see Page 109 for our Company and its subsidiaries for the
years

ended

December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 is filed as required by Item 15c

We omitted other schedules which were not applicable or not required or because we provided the required information in

the consolidated financial statements or the notes to consolidated financial statements

We omitted the financial statements of our parent company because we are primarily an operating company and there are no

significant restricted net assets of consolidated and unconsolidated subsidiaries

Item 15a3 Exhibits

The following items are attached or incorporated by reference in response to Item 15c

Plans of acquisition reorganization arrangement liquidation or succession

2.1 Share Purchase Agreement by and among Shanghai Golden Monkey Food Joint Stock Co LTD and Hershey Netherlands

B.V wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as of December 18 2013 is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 2.1

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

3.1 The Companys Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended is incorporated by reference from Exhibit to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended April 2005 The By-laws as amended and restated as

of February 21 2012 are incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

February 24 2012

Instruments defining the rights of security holders including indentures

4.1 The Company has issued certain long-term debt instruments no one class of which creates indebtedness exceeding 10% of

the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis These classes consist of the following

4.850% Notes due 2015

5.450% Notes due 2016

1.500% Notes due 2016

4.125% Notes due 2020

8.8% Debentures due 2021

2.625% Notes due 2023

7.2% Debentures due 2027

Other Obligations

We will furnish copies of the above debt instruments to the Commission upon request
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Material contracts

10.1 Kit Kat and Rob License Agreement the License Agreement between the Company and Rowntree Mackintosh

Confectionery Limited is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10a to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31 1980 The License Agreement was amended in 1988 and the

Amendment Agreement is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 19 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

0-Q for the quarter ended July 1988 The License Agreement was assigned by Rowntree Mackintosh

Confectionery Limited to SociØtØ des Produits NestlØ SA as of January 1990 The Assignment Agreement is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 19 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31 1990

10.2 Peter Paul/York Domestic Trademark Technology License Agreement between the Company and Cadbury

Schweppes Inc now Cadbury Ireland Limited dated August 25 1988 is incorporated by reference from Exhibit

2a to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 1988 This agreement was assigned by the

Company to its wholly-owned subsidiary Hershey Chocolate Confectionery Corporation

10.3 Cadbuiy Trademark Technology License Agreement between the Company and Cadbury Limited now Cadbury

UK Limited dated August 25 1988 is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2a to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K dated September 1988 This agreement was assigned by the Company to its wholly-owned

subsidiary Hershey Chocolate Confectionery Corporation

10.4 Trademark and Technology License Agreement between Huhtamäki and the Company dated December 30 1996

is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 26

1997 This agreement was assigned by the Company to its wholly-owned subsidiary Hershey Chocolate

Confectionery Corporation The agreement was amended and restated in 1999 and the Amended and Restated

Trademark and Technology License Agreement is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys

Atmual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1999

10.5 Five Year Credit Agreement dated as of October 14 2011 among the Company and the banks financial

institutions and other institutional lenders listed on the respective signature pages thereof Lenders Bank of

America N.A as administrative agent
for the Lenders JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as syndication agent

Citibank N.A and PNC Bank National Association as documentation agents
and Bank of America Merrill

Lynch J.P Morgan Securities LLC Citigroup Global Markets Inc and PNC Capital Markets LLC as joint lead

arrangers and joint book managers is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current Report

on Form 8-K filed October 20 2011

10.6 Amendment No Ito Credit Agreement dated as of November 12 2013 among the Company the banks financial

institutions and other institutional lenders who are parties to the Five Year Credit Agreement and Bank of America

N.A as agent is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 10.6

10.7 Master Innovation and Supply Agreement between the Company and Barry Callebaut AG dated July 13 2007 is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 19 2007

10.8 First Amendment to Master Innovation and Supply Agreement between the Company and Barry Callebaut AG
dated April 14 2011 is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

lO-Q for the quarter ended July 2011

10.9 Supply Agreement for Monterrey Mexico between the Company and Barry Callebaut AG dated July 13 2007 is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 19 2007
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Executive Compensation Plans and Management Contracts

10.10 The Companys Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan amended and restated February 22 2011 and approved

by our stockholders on April 28 2011 is incorporated by reference from Appendix to the Companys proxy

statement filed March 15 2011

10.11 Terms and Conditions of Nonqualified Stock Option Awards under the Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24

2012

10.12 The Companys Executive Benefits Protection Plan Group 3A Amended and Restated as of June 27 2012 is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter

ended July 2012

10.13 The Companys Deferred Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of June 27 2012 is incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 2012

10.14 Executive Confidentiality and Restrictive Covenant Agreement adopted as of February 16 2009 is incorporated

by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended

December 31 2008

10.15 Employee Confidentiality and Restrictive Covenant Agreement amended as of February 18 2013 is incorporated

by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended March 31

2013

10.16 The Companys Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amended and Restated as of October 2007 is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 31 2007

10.17 First Amendment to the Companys Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amended and Restated as of

October 2007 is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008

10.18 The Companys Compensation Limit Replacement Plan Amended and Restated as of January 2009 is

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2008

10.19 The Companys Directors Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of December 2008 is incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2008

10.20 Form of Notice of Special Award of Restricted Stock Units is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 16 2011

10.21 Executive Employment Agreement with John Bilbrey dated as of August 2012 is incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 12012

10.22 Form of Notice of Award of Performance Stock Units is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24 2012

10.23 The Long-Term Incentive Program Participation Agreement is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18 2005

Broad Based Equity Compensation Plans

10.24 The Companys Broad Based Stock Option Plan as amended is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2002
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Other Exhibits

12.1 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges statement

computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the fiscal years ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

2010 and 2009 is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 12.1

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

list setting forth subsidiaries of the Company is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 21.1

23.1 Independent Auditors Consent

The consent dated February 21 2014 to the incorporation of reports of the Companys Independent Auditors is

attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 23.1

31.1 Certification of John Bilbrey Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 31.1

31.2 Certification of David Tacka Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 31.2

32.1 Certification of John Bilbrey Chief Executive Officer and David Tacka Chief Financial Officer pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto and furnished as Exhibit 32.1

101 INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

10l.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

107



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Company has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized this 21st day of February 2014

THE HERSHEY COMPANY
Registrant

By IS DAVID TACKA

David Tacka

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Signature Title Date

/S/ JOHN BILBREY Chief Executive Officer and Director February 21 2014

John Bilbrey

IS DAVID TACKA Chief Financial Officer February 21 2014

David Tacka

/S RICHARD MCCONVILLE Chief Accounting Officer February 21 2014

Richard McConville

IS PAMELA ARWAY Director February 21 2014

Pamela Arway

IS ROBERT CAVANAUGH Director February 21 2014

Robert Cavanaugh

IS CHARLES DAVIS Director February 21 2014

Charles Davis

/S MARY KAY HABEN Director February 21 2014

Mary Kay Haben

IS ROBERT MALCOLM Director February 21 2014

Robert Malcolm

IS JAMES MEAD Director February 21 2014

James Mead

/SI JAMES NEVELS Director February 21 2014

James Nevels

/S ANTHONY PALMER Director February 21 2014

Anthony Palmer

/S THOMAS RIDGE Director February 21 2014

Thomas Ridge

/S DAVID SHEDLARZ Director February 21 2014

David Shedlarz
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Schedule II

THE HERSHEY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE 11VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the Years Ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011

Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged Deductions Balance

Beginning Costs and to Other from at End

Description
of Period Expenses Accounts Reserves of Period

In thousands of dollars

Year Ended lecember 31 2013

Reserves deducted in the consolidated balance sheet from the

assets to which they apply

Accounts ReceivableTrade Net 10435 154092 154283 $10244

Year Ended December 31 2012

Reserves deducted in the consolidated balance sheet from the

assets to which they apply

Accounts ReceivableTrade Net 14977 134972 $139514 $10435

Year Ended December 31 2011

Reserves deducted in the consolidated balance sheet from the

assets to which they apply

Accounts ReceivableTrade Net 15190 135147 135360 $14977

Includes allowances for doubtful accounts and anticipated discounts
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CERTIFICATION

John Bilbrey certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Hershey Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting

and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

John Bilbrey

Chief Executive Officer

February 21 2014
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CERTIFICATION

David Tacka certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Hershey Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-l5e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5f and 15d-l5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting

and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

c2
David Tacka

Chief Financial Officer

February 21 2014
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
As of March 18 2014

Directors

James Nevels

Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Hershey Company
Chairman

The Swarthmore Group

Philadelphia PA

Pamela Arway
Former Executive

American Express Company Inc

New York NY

John Bilbrey

President and Chief Executive Officer

The Hershey Company

Robert Cavanaugh

Former Chief Executive Officer

ValueRock Investment Partners

Irvine CA

Charles Davis

Chief Executive Officer

Stone Point Capital LLC

Greenwich CT

Mary Kay Haben

Retired President North America

Wm Wrigley Jr Company

Chicago IL

Robert Malcolm

Retired President Global Marketing

Sales Innovation

Diageo PLC

London UK

James Mead

President

JM Mead LLC

Camp Hill PA

Anthony Palmer

President

Global Brands and Innovation

Kimberly-Clark Corporation

Dallas TX

Thomas Ridge

President and Chief Executive Officer

Ridge Global LLC

Washington D.C

David Shedlarz

Retired Vice Chairman

Pfizer Inc

New York NY

Audit Committee

Charles Davis Chair

Pamela Arway
James Mead

James Nevels

Compensation and Executive

Organization Committee

Robert Cavanaugh Chair

Mary Kay Haben

Robert Malcolm

Anthony Palmer

David Shedlarz

Finance and Risk

Management Committee

David Shedlarz Chair

Robert Cavanaugh

Robert Malcolm

Anthony Palmer

Thomas Ridge

Governance Committee
Pamela Arway Chair

Robert Cavanaugh
James Mead
James Nevels

Thomas Ridge

Executive Committee

James Nevels Chair

Pamela Arway
Robert Cavanaugh

Charles Davis

David Shedlarz

Executive Officers

John Bilbrey

President and Chief Executive Officer

Terence ODay
Senior Vice President

Chief Supply Chain Officer

William Papa
Vice President

Chief Research and

Development Officer

David Tacka

Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

Leslie Turner

Senior Vice President

General Counsel and Secretary

Kevin Walling

Senior Vice President

Chief Human Resources Officer

Michael Wege

Senior Vice President

Chief Growth and Marketing Officer

Waheed Zaman

Senior Vice President

Chief Corporate Strategy and

Administrative Officer

Humberto Alfonso

President International

Michele Buck

President North America

STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computers ha re

Standard Delivery

P.O Box 30170 College Station TX 77842-3170

Overnight Delivery

211 Quality Circle Suite 210 College Station TX 77845

Domestic Holders 800 851-4216

Foreign Holders 201 680-6578

Hearing Impaired Domestic 800 952-9245

Hearing Impaired Foreign 312 588-4110

www.computershare.com investor

Investor Relations Contact Financial Information

Mark Pogharian

Vice President Investor Relations

100 Crystal Drive

P.O Box 810

Hershey PA 17033-0810

800 539-0261

www.thehersheycompany.com



DIRECTIONS TO GIANT CENTER

Traveling South on 1-81

Take exit 80 and follow Route 743 South to Hershey

Follow Route 743 South Hersheypark Drive to

GIANT Center Follow signs for parking

Traveling North on 1-81

Take exit 77 and follow Route 39 East to Hershey

Continue to GIANT Center Follow signs for parking

Traveling West on the PA Turnpike 1-76

Take exit 26g Turn left on Route 72 North Follow

Route 72 North to Route 322 West Follow Route 322

West into Hershey Stay straight as Route 322 West

becomes Hersheypark Drive Route 39 West

Continue to GIANT Center Follow signs for parking

Traveling East on PA Turnpike 1-76

Take exit 247 Take 1-283 North to exit and follow Route 322 East to Hershey

Take the Hersheypark Drive Route 39 West exit Follow Route 39 to GIANT

Center Follow signs for parking

Traveling North on 1-83

Approaching Harrisburg follow signs to continue on 1-83 North Follow 1-83

North to Route 322 East to Hershey Take the Hersheypark Drive Route 39

West exit Follow Route 39 to GIANT Center Follow signs for parking
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